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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

FERS

Dear shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”), the Company
and its subsidiaries, Ascendent Bio-Technology Company Limited
(“Ascendent”), Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Neptunus Fuyao”) and lJiangsu Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus”) (collectively the “Group”) conducted the
gradual expansion of the current business of Neptunus Fuyao, meanwhile,
carried out the establishment of production base for biological products
of Jiangsu Neptunus, location selecting and preliminary design of the
second production base of Neptunus Fuyao, the developments in various
directions of biological product R&D business of the Company and the
Company gradually engaged into the purchase and sales of pharmaceuticals,
healthcare foods and foods businesses. During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao
with its subsidiaries have achieved sustainable development in several drug
categories, including transfusion, generic drugs, herbal medicine and anti-
tumor drugs, etc., meanwhile the early stage preparation for the second
production base advanced steadily. Jiangsu Neptunus’s construction of its
production base proceeded as planned in the Year, and its phase | clinical
work for the new product, recombinant human thymosin o1 for injection,
was completed. Phase Il clinical work has also been commenced in January
2013. The Company, cooperated with a number of research institutions in
research and development, has proceeded R&D project of new products,
including exploration and research of biological products and bio-agriculture,
in order to explore a new direction for the development of the Group.

Neptunus Fuyao, a subsidiary of the Company, is a modernized
pharmaceutical enterprise with the largest scale of dosage and the most
comprehensive range of Chinese and Western medicine in Fujian Province.
It is also one of the 100 Key Enterprises of Fujian Province (fB2&HBEXR
EEF). Neptunus Fuyao, together with its subsidiaries, own more than
450 pharmaceutical production permits and 17 types of dosage medicine
covering several categories, including transfusion, generic drugs, herbal
medicine and anti-tumor drugs, etc.. The trade mark of “Neptunus Fuyao”
and “Fuzhou Jinxiang” are well-known in Fujian Province. Along with the
development and improvement of China’s medical insurance system, China’s
generic drugs market is currently growing rapidly in the Year. Neptunus
Fuyao is committed to expanding the sales income. It has kept its stable
growth in turnover and profitability and provided an important sources
for the Group’s operating income and profitability. With the saturating
production capacity, Neptunus Fuyao planned for establishment of the
second production base. The Company, through its two PRC subsidiaries,
has successfully bidden for two pieces of lands at Lianjiang County, Fujian
Province on public auction. The relevant approvals and procedures of
entry into the Land Use Rights Transfer Contracts is being in progress. The
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management of the Group has been working and communicating closely
with the local government authorities, and prompts the relevant approval
and procedures to be completed as soon as possible. The establishment
of the second production base would be managed and regulated in strict
compliance with requirements of the New GMP, policies and regulations on
medicine of the State and international advanced pharmaceutical production
qualifications, with a view to establishing a production and R&D base for
various medicines and healthcare products including modernized herbal
medicine, bio-pharmaceuticals and basic drugs for Neptunus Fuyao, and lay a
solid foundation for the Group’s future expansion and development. Neptunus
Fuyao also planned to commence the upgrading and enhancement of part
of its production lines to meet the requirements of the Good Manufacturing
Practice for the Pharmaceutical Products (2010 Revision) (the “New GMP").
After the preliminary work of the upgrading and enhancement project
being carried out in the Year, it has been commenced in January 2013. The
enhancement of the production lines would safeguard Neptunus Fuyao to
meet the regulatory requirements of producing qualified products in the
future.

Jiangsu Neptunus, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
established with the aim of undertaking the research and development
and the industrialization of recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs
(including but not limited to recombinant human thymosin a1 for injection).
During the Year, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased
to RMB55,000,000. The renovation of office area of the production base
of Jiangsu Neptunus for recombinant protein and polypeptide drugs in
Taizhou was completed; and the purifying renovation of production area was
also finished. The equipment debugging and verification work is currently
undergoing. The construction is properly implemented according to project
plan and the progress is smooth. Phase | clinical research on recombinant
human thymosin a1 for injection has also been completed and the result
showed that the drug has good resistance. Phase Il clinical research also
commenced in January 2013. It is expected that Jiangsu Neptunus’ business
of recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs will provide the Group with
new opportunity to enhance its future profits.

The Company has also been focusing on the R&D business, In addition to
the provision of R&D services to related companies, the Company entered
into a technical cooperation agreement with research institutions such as Jilin
University and Harbin Institute of Technology, to carry out R&D projects for
new products. It is expected that the first R&D product will be launched to
market in 2013, which provides a new source for the growth of the business
of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
F fE s

The Group also entered into the purchase and sales agreement with
various suppliers for the development of pharmaceuticals, healthcare foods
and foods businesses. In addition, the Group also purchased ventures
with operation certificates of purchasing and selling pharmaceuticals and
healthcare foods, which facilitated the steady development of this business
of the Group.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) believes that the business of the Group
is developing well and is confident about the business prospects of the
Group. On behalf of the Company and the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and staff for their
continuing support to and trust in the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis‘":'

BEERNWR DM

Business Review

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in various medicine
businesses such as herbal medicine, generic drugs, transfusion and anti-
tumor drugs and the research and development of modern biological
pharmaceuticals (the “R&D Business”). Among which, businesses such
as herbal medicine, generic drugs, transfusion and anti-tumor drugs
were operated through Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries while the
industrialization of biological technology products was operated by our
subsidiary, Jiangsu Neptunus. Meanwhile, the Company dedicated itself
to the R&D Business of biological pharmaceuticals and expanded the scale
of the research and development of chemosynthetic anti-tumor drugs.
The Company also gradually engaged in the sales of healthcare foods and
foods business and the application of bio-technology in the fields of bio-
agriculture. Through acquisition of wholesale enterprises such as drug,
healthcare foods and foods, the Company expanded its businesses in such
sectors.

Neptunus Fuyao Business

Neptunus Fuyao is a subsidiary of the Company. Neptunus Fuyao and its
subsidiaries together own more than 40 production lines for 17 types of
medications in dose form, all of which have passed the GMP qualifications
and obtained the relevant national GMP certificates. In addition, Neptunus
Fuyao and its subsidiaries together own 450 approvals in relation to the
production of drugs. Along with the development and improvement of
China’s medical insurance system, generic drugs market is growing rapidly.
During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao operated normally and recorded an income
from principal business totaling approximately RMB529,795,000 while
continuing on a steady growth trend.

Pursuant to the notice issued by the PRC State Food and Drug Administration
for the implementation of the New GMP, it is required that, the production
of sterile products (e.g. blood products, vaccine and injection etc.) of existing
medicine manufacturers shall meet the requirements of the New GMP by
31 December 2013 and the production of medicine in other categories shall
meet the requirements of the New GMP by 31 December 2015. Therefore,
Neptunus Fuyao considered the upgrading and enhancement of a part of
the existing production equipments to meet the requirements of the New
GMP. Upgrading and enhancement as well as validation work commenced
in January 2013, certain production lines which involve upgrading and
enhancement have taken turns to suspend production for a short period
according to the plan. It is expected that part of the production lines which
take turns to suspend production will obtain GMP certificate before the end
of 2013, and all the production lines which have been suspended will be
resumed when the validation is completed. The short period of production
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR R am MDA

suspension will affect normal production and supply of certain products
of Neptunus Fuyao in 2013. In order to reduce or eliminate the effect to
operating income and profit, Neptunus Fuyao is currently implementing the
following measures: (1) expanding the production volume before suspending
production and preparing the stocks in advance, especially the stock of bid-
winning categories and high gross profit margin products; (2) formulating
detailed plans for sales, ensuring sufficient medicine supply to key markets
and key clients and minimizing the occurrence of shortage of medicine in the
market; and (3) enhancing the marketing efforts in products manufactured
by the non-upgrading production lines in 2013 so as to improve the sales
income of medicine of this part.

As the existing production capacities for production lines of certain
formulations of Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries are almost fully utilised,
the Group prepares to construct the second production base in Lianjiang
County, Fuzhou City. In earlier this Year, the Company intended to grant
RMB40,000,000 as a loan or an interest-bearing financial assistance to
Neptunus Fuyao for its construction of the second production base. In
addition, the Company’s holding company, Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-
engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”) also intended to grant
approximately RMB80,000,000 to Neptunus Fuyao or indirectly through
the Company to Neptunus Fuyao in the form of loan or interest-bearing
financial assistance for its construction of the second production base. As
at 31 December 2012, Neptunus Bio-engineering provided interest-bearing
financial assistance of RMB23,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 to Neptunus
Fuyao indirectly through the Company and Shandong Neptunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Shandong Neptunus Yinhe”) for the
bidding of the industrial land of the second production base.

As the preliminary preparation work for the construction of the second
production base, the Group established three subsidiaries at Lianjiang
County, Fuzhou City. The first subsidiary is Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang”) /8T @ &E5leE (3#,T)

BBRAR], which is preparing the production of chemical medicine with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000, among which RMB47,500,000 and
RMB2,500,000 was contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Fuyao’s
subsidiary Fuzhou Neptunus lJinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Neptunus Jinxiang”) 188 T &5 P &3 8 HR A F] in cash as at
31 December 2012, which hold 95% and 5% interests in Neptunus Fuyao
Lianjiang, respectively. The second subsidiary is Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang”) /8 £ &
SR EgRE (38T) AIRAF], which is preparing the production of Chinese
patent medicine with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000, among which
RMB1,550,000 and RMB29,450,000 was contributed by Neptunus Fuyao
and Neptunus Jinxiang in cash as at 31 December 2012, which hold 5%
and 95% interests in Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang, respectively. The third
subsidiary is Lianjing Neptunus Fuyao Foods Trading Co., Ltd. (“Lianjing
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Neptunus Foods”) EIHBTRERMESHBMAT]. Its business scope
is wholesale and retail of prepackaged foods (HtZEETEBBER M)
with a registered capital of RMB500,000, among which RMB475,000 and
RMB25,000 was contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Jinxiang in
cash as at 31 December 2012, which hold 95% and 5% interests in Lianjing
Neptunus Foods, respectively.

On 15 August 2011, the Board resolved to increase the registered capital
of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang to RMB112,000,000 from RMB50,000,000,
among which RMB106,400,000 and RMB5,600,000 were contributed by
Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Jinxiang respectively, to fund the construction
of the second production base at Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City. At present,
the registered capital of both Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang and Neptunus
Jinxiang Lianjiang remained to be RMB50,000,000 and RMB50,000,000
respectively. The latter part of the capital increase plan will be arranged
according to the progress of the second production base.

On 19 April 2012, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang and Neptunus lJinxiang
Lianjiang, won two bids at the tender by the Bureau of Land Resources
of Lianjiang, Fuzhou City for acquiring two pieces of land located at
Aojiangyuan District, Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City at the consideration
of approximately RMB22,940,000 and RMB13,280,000, respectively. The
parcel number of the two pieces of land were No.#T2012-T%-002 and
No.#/T2012-T 3-003, with total land area of 121,349 sq.m. and 70,258
sg.m. respectively. The relevant construction work of the second production
base in Lianjiang will commence on the two pieces of land. After the Group
has been granted the approval of industrial project and completed relevant
procedures for environmental assessment and construction planning, the
Bureau of Land Resources of Lianjiang will enter into a Land Use Rights
Transfer Contract with Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang and Neptunus Jinxiang
Lianjiang respectively. As the progress of demolition by the local government
is slower than expected, the Land Use Rights Transfer Contracts have not
been signed. The Company and Neptunus Fuyao are communicating with
the local government department proactively in order to facilitate the local
government department for completion of demolition and relocation of
such piece of land. According to a letter from local government authority in
December 2012, the relevant approval and procedures before entering into
Land Use Rights Transfer Contracts will be completed in the first quarter
in 2013. By that time, the signing of the relevant Land Use Rights Transfer
Contracts could be arranged.

In March 2012, Neptunus Fuyao received a letter from Fuzhou Land
Development Centre which expressed its intention to acquire the
industrial land of Neptunus Fuyao's existing production base. The Group is
communicating preliminarily with Fuzhou Land Development Centre for such
acquisition intention.
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Recombinant Proteins and Polypeptide Drugs Business

The business scope of Jiangsu Neptunus, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, includes R&D of bio-medical products and sale of class 1
medical equipment. Business scope of manufacture of medicine will be
added one by one after the manufacture condition of relevant medicines is
reached. Jiangsu Neptunus is conducting the research and development on
recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs (including but not limited to
recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection). In October 2011, Jiangsu
Neptunus conducted phase | clinical trial on recombinant human thymosin
a 1 for injection, utilizing the "approval for recombinant human thymosin
a1 clinical research”, an intangible asset owned by Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Pharmaceutical”). Jiangsu Neptunus
plans to acquire the intangible assets, “approval for recombinant human
thymosin a1 clinical research” at fair price in the first half of 2013. Since
clinical trial has proceeded smoothly, the Board approved to contribute
further RMB80,000,000 into Jiangsu Neptunus to increase its registered
capital to RMB90,000,000. The contribution of RMB80,000,000 will be made
in stages according to construction progress of Jiangsu Neptunus’ production
base and progress of foreign exchange translation and settlement of the
Company. As at the date hereof, the renovation of the office area and the
purifying renovation of the production area of Jiangsu Neptunus’ production
base were completed. At present, equipment debugging and verification
work are in progress. The construction is properly implemented according to
project plan and the progress is smooth.

On 5 December 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
increased to RMB55,000,000 and its equity interest was wholly held by the
Company. Jiangsu Neptunus obtained production permit on 1 December
2012 and it planned to add the manufacture of medicine into its business
scope in the next capital injection.

Clinical trial on recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection is undergoing
according to the plan. Phase I clinical trial was completed in December 2012.
The purpose of phase | clinical trial is to test the safety of the drugs. From the
results of phase | clinical trial, under the conditions stipulated by the clinical
programs, the safety of recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection is
well performed. Phase Il clinical trial has begun in January 2013.
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R&D Business

Since January 2009, the Company has been focusing on the R&D Business
and the expansion of the R&D Business by providing R&D services to
Neptunus Bio-engineering and its subsidiaries. Due to the Company’s own
development in R&D Business in the Year, no R&D service was provided
to Neptunus Bio-engineering and its subsidiaries. The Company also
endeavored to seek R&D projects for new products externally, thereby
exploring a new direction for its future development.

The Company entered into a technical cooperation agreement with School
of Life Sciences, Jilin University on 1 March 2012 to cooperate in R&D of
polypeptide and chemicals primarily by microsphere technology and to
explore and establish a more advanced platform for long term drug delivery
technology.

The Company entered into an academic subsidy and entrusted R&D
agreement with Harbin Institute of Technology (“Harbin Institute”) on 2
May 2012 for cooperative R&D of the Project ET-743 (a chemosynthetic anti-
tumor drug).

With the State policy of supporting application of bio-technology to the
field of agriculture, the Company utilised its strengths and resources in bio-
technology during the Year, cooperated with top-class research institutions
in relevant fields in China, and explored in the field of bio-agriculture.
At present, it is developing animal healthcare products with preventive
healthcare functions and bio-feed additive products. It is expected that the
first products will be industrialized in 2013.

Financial Review

The Group's turnover for the Year was approximately RMB530,458,000,
representing an increase of 11.8% from that of approximately
RMB474,652,000 in the corresponding period last year. All turnover for the
Year was mainly derived from sales income of pharmaceutical products of a
subsidiary, Neptunus Fuyao. The increase in turnover was because that the
sales income of Neptunus Fuyao increased by approximately 12.1% compared
with the corresponding period last year.

The Group's gross profit and gross profit margin for the Year were
approximately RMB195,498,000 and 37% respectively, increasing by
approximately RMB30,657,000 and 2% respectively compared with that of
the corresponding period last year. The increase in gross profit and gross profit
margin was because that products with higher gross profit margin accounted
for a higher proportion of the products sold by Neptunus Fuyao and there was
an increase in operating income for the Year.
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The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB75,743,000, representing an increase of RMB11,971,000
over RMB63,772,000 of the same period last year, which was mainly due to
increase in sales income resulting in corresponding increase in relevant sales
and distribution expenses.

The Group's administrative expenses for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB48,253,000, representing a decrease of RMB8,207,000 as compared
to approximately RMB56,460,000 in the corresponding period last year.
The variation of administrative expenses was caused by: (i) disposal of
GSK-Neptunus which significantly reduced depreciation cost; and (i) the
depreciation of RMB during the Year decreased significantly, exchange loss
significantly reduced.

The Group’s other operating expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB36,305,000, increasing by approximately RMB15,452,000
compared with that of the corresponding period last year. The increase was
due to the Group’s increasing input in research and development which
significantly increased technological R&D expenses for the Year.

The Group's finance costs for the Year was approximately RMB6,590,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB7,494,000 from approximately
RMB14,084,000 in the corresponding period last year. The decrease was
primarily due to the fact that the Company repaid all the long-term loan
from China Development Bank and substantial entrusted loan and financial
assistance from shareholders of Neptunus Bio-engineering, and therefore no
longer had obligation to pay interests accrued thereon.

The Group's profit before income tax (excluding discontinued operations) for
the Year increased to approximately RMB40,603,000 from approximately
RMB29,937,000 for the corresponding period last year, which was mainly
due to (i) increase in turnover and gross profit of Neptunus Fuyao during the
Year; and (i) repayment of substantial borrowings and therefore a significant
decrease in finance costs.

As such, profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB24,298,000 for the Year, compared with that of
approximately RMB2 1,686,000 for the corresponding period last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2012, total bank borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB86,000,000, all of which were short-term bank
borrowings.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's short-term bank borrowings were
RMB86,000,000, all of which were short-term bank borrowings of Neptunus
Fuyao.

On 23 August 2012, Neptunus Fuyao was granted a short-term loan of
RMB66,000,000 from the Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia
Bank, by pledging its land use rights and buildings. This loan will be repaid
on 22 August 2013 and is bearing an annual interest rate of 6.00%.

On 31 October 2012, Neptunus Fuyao was granted a short-term loan of
RMB20,000,000 from the Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia
Bank, by pledging its land use rights and buildings. This loan will be repaid
on 30 October 2013 and is bearing an annual interest rate of 6.00%.

Shareholder’s Interest-Bearing Financial Assistance

As at 31 December 2012, the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance obtained by the Company from Neptunus Bio-engineering
amounted to approximately RMB23,000,000. Such shareholder’s interest-
bearing financial assistance is unsecured and bearing a monthly interest rate
of 0.5%. The Company provided such fund to Neptunus Fuyao by way of
shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance for the construction plan
of second production base at the same month. As of 31 December 2012,
the outstanding accrued interest of shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance  from Neptunus Bio-engineering amounted to approximately
RMBS5,263,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the subsidiary of the Company obtained
shareholder’s financial assistance from Shandong Neptunus Yinhe, a
subsidiary of Neptunus Bio-engineering, of RMB10,000,000 bearing an
annual interest rate of 6%.

Shareholder’s Entrusted Loans

The Company obtained a shareholder’s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Neptunus Bio-engineering through an entrusted arrangement with
a bank. This shareholder’s entrusted loan is unsecured, bears an annual
interest rate of 5% and is repayable on 5 April 2009. Neptunus Bio-
engineering undertook that the repayment date of this entrusted loan
be postponed to 5 April 2011. However, Neptunus Bio-engineering had
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undertaken to the Company that it would not demand repayment of
the above-mentioned shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1)
the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives as set
out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
“Prospectus”); (2) each of the independent nonexecutive Directors was
of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan
would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/or the
implementation of its business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and
the Company would make an announcement in respect of the decision
of the independent non-executive Directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant
financial year. The Company did not repay such shareholder’s entrusted
loans during the Year.

On 26 March 2012, the Company obtained another shareholder’s entrusted
loan of RMB30,000,000 from Neptunus Bio-engineering through an
entrusted loan agreement with Bank of Hangzhou. This shareholder’s
entrusted loan is unsecured, bears a monthly interest rate of 0.5% and is
repayable on 26 June 2012. The Company granted the proceeds from the
entrusted loan to Neptunus Fuyao by way of shareholder’s interest-bearing
financial assistance for tendering for the land used for the second production
base in April 2012. The Company has repaid all the principal and interest of
such entrusted loans in September 2012.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB172,818,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB248,366,000, pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB19,060,000, inventories of approximately RMB134,365,000, tax
recoverable of approximately RMB1,328,000 and trade and other
receivables of approximately RMB81,931,000. Current liabilities comprised
trade and bills payables of approximately RMB113,723,000, interest-
bearing bank borrowings to be repaid within one year of approximately
RMB86,000,000, tax payable of approximately RMB5,543,000, amounts
due to related companies of approximately RMB52,530,000, receipts in
advance of approximately RMB6,434,000, entrusted loans of approximately
RMB9,000,000, and other payables of approximately RMB39,002,000. The
net current assets decreased approximately by 7% as compared with that of
approximately RMB185,448,000 as at 31 December 2011. The decrease in
net current assets was because that the current assets were transferred to
non-current assets due to the construction of Jiangsu Neptunes’ production
base and the bidding of the land of the second production base of Neptunus
Fuyao.
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Pledge of Assets

Pursuant to the Loan Agreements entered into between Neptunus Fuyao,
the Company'’s subsidiary, and Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia
Bank on 23 August 2012 and 31 October 2012, respectively, Neptunus
has pledged part of the land use rights and building it owned to Sanshan
Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia Bank.

Foreign Currency Risk

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in RMB. Proceeds from the issue of
189,330,000 new H shares of approximately HK$164,252,000 were not
fully translated into RMB in accordance with national foreign exchange
regulations. As at 31 December 2012, approximately HK$21,733,000 was
still not translated into RMB. In addition, in the consideration from disposal
in a jointly controlled entity, which was denominated in USD, approximately
UsD7,859,000 was still not translated into RMB as at 31 December 2012. As
such, the exchange rate fluctuation of Hong Kong dollars and USD against
RMB may affect the Group’s profit for the Year. However, the foreign
currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the Group has not
adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

Segment Information

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB48,767,000. The Board believes
that such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits
and bank borrowings.

Contingent Liability
As at 31 December 2012, neither the Group nor the Company had any
significant contingent liability.

Major Investment Plans

During the Year, other than developing the businesses disclosed in the
Prospectus, the aforesaid proposed second production base of Neptunus
Fuyao at Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City and the production base of Jiangsu
Neptunus, the Company did not make any other major investments.
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of 1,139 staff (2011:
1,183). During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration
which amounted to approximately RMB62,213,000 (2011: approximately
RMB48,027,000 (excluding discontinued operations)). The salaries and
fringe benefits of the Group’s employees remained competitive. The
employees’ incentives were reviewed and determined annually pursuant
to the remuneration and bonus policies of the Group based on the
performance of the employees. The Group also provided various other
benefits to its employees.

As at 31 December 2012, the number of employees of the Group
categorized by various functions was set out as follows:
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2012 2011
The Company AT
R&D iy 37 22
Administration THERE 15 12
Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries BIGERANELR
Production & Manufacture FERGE 853 963
Sales & Marketing SHE KI5 43 74
Administration THER 127 94
R&D s 30 9
Jiangsu Neptunus TEEE
Engineering Project Team TiRTEBE 4 24 9
Administration TRITHER 10 -
Total HBEr 1,139 1,183

Compared with 31 December 2011, the movement in the number of
employees of the Group for the Year was due to following reasons: (i)
Jiangsu Neptunus recruited more staff as a result of engineering progress;
(i) the Company increased input in R&D projects, therefore increased
its R&D staff; and (i) Neptunus Fuyao reduced the employees of the
manufacturing department.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of
the employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group's
business performance. In addition, training and development opportunities
for the employees were also provided by the Group.

HHR = E——F+ = A=+—A  AAFEA
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

EE -EENSHNEEERER

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Feng (3k%%), aged 41, has been the chairman of the Board since REBEE M BZE——FRAAREZE
June 2011. He is also the Compliance officer of the Company. He obtained BARBESER AR RREREM - 5Kt
a MBA degree from University of Technology, Sydney. Mr. Zhang studied i%%ﬁé‘?&)@ﬂ&ﬁﬂ CETEEE (MBA)EL
in Goteborg University, Sweden. He is a member of the 10th session of All- B DHERHAFEEABED TEHESH
China Youth Federation and the 10th session of Chinese People’s Political % pE2R EJEH‘J*/\@%—F):éE\ B AR
Consultative Committee of Jilin Province, the deputy chairman of Jilin Youth LETREESZE  TMESTFHASE T
Federation, the deputy president of the 8th session of council of Guangdong f EREEFEFLEZBEE\EEEERE
Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association and the 5th session of council AR EFLERMEFTLEREEAT
of Shenzhen City Youth Entrepreneurs Association. Mr. Zhang served as E o NERTE  BFERIIEFEERR A REL
the general manager of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and B RYETEFRERRAFBLRE  RIH
Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd., 5EE%IEH&@%F&’&Emll,i%',ﬁ‘:‘éfiﬁu‘:&Hi‘e'?iﬁiﬁ
the deputy general manager and the chief marketing officer of Shenzhen e FYTEITEENEERARARE
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd., and a director of Shenzhen Neptunus F RABTEMEREEZRAER -

Health Technology Development Co., Ltd. (RYIIT/8 EREERIEEARA

A)). He is currently the deputy chairman of the 5th session of the board of

directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (%€[A13), aged 52, has been appointed as the general LemESELE 25 BETEF_ARES
manager of the Company since February 2000, and is responsible for the EF%$ ABKE  BREARFINBETEEERE
Company’s day-to-day management and overall activities. In April 2002, BER RZZETZ-_FNABZARES - &4k
he was appointed as director of the Company. Mr. Chai is a doctor in EZ%EP BEMAE LB A 2R By T2
chemistry jointly cultivated by Jilin University of the PRC and Super Molecule EREHSEBENLCER L  TEETMHRELE
Chemical Laboratory of Collége de France (EBIPEERR) of France, and REIFEMF - R - R ENMEESHRUERRE 2
was a former deputy director and professor of Chemistry Department of FEMBAE‘LL o Bede A8 AR K BT FEHIF K
Jilin University of the PRC. Mr. Chai also obtained an EMBA degree from ﬂIIKﬂMBA%&g ZE®LE S ERELET
Euro-China International Business College. Mr. Chai is currently a visiting B NREE MERRNAREITEEEEAER
professor of Shenzhen University and member of MBA Education Committee HEGEELER -

of Shenzhen University. He has extensive experience in listed medical

companies management and international project cooperation with domestic

companies.

Mr. Xu Yan He (f%#EA), aged 56, has been appointed as a director of RERSAE 565k BT ——FNAREE
the Company since June 2011. He graduated from Zhejiang Engineering TAERRARESE - — NN\ ZFRFPEHNT &
College, the PRC, with a bachelor degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years ARIEZE  FRFRSEREETEGOI=-TFENE
of experience in pharmaceutical manufacturing industry in China. He is BAR TENSRK  REAEETERSE
the deputy president of Fujian Pharmaceutical Profession Association (f&# gk BRAEZEGRBEER EERR %1%5”‘
HEEITEWS), Fujian Pharmaceutical Association (f&Z%&%E£®) and mEaeR  BEENEIRERNEERA
Fujian Medical Insurance Association (t&F1#& BERMBHE). Mr. Xu is the FHRE  RINEBXIERPEFNEFERA 75%
managing director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company IR BMNBHEBEBRAGTIEARSE 1Rk
Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and AERRERREEFLER  PREFEMEZIA
authorized representative of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd.. Mr. Xu has B

received a number of recognition, including Outstanding Entrepreneur in
Fujian and Outstanding Pharmacist in China.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

% BERSAEEERER

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (2I(5%), aged 55, has been appointed as a director of the
Company since June 2011. He graduated from Nankai University, the PRC
in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a postdoctoral degree
in Management. As a professor, he is a renowned expert in corporate
management and development strategies. Mr. Liu served as assistant to
the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department of China
Development Institute in Shenzhen, China, and an independent director of
Neptunus Bio-engineering. He led and participated in a number of national
key research projects and corporate consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has
extensive experience in corporate management and capital operation. He is
currently a director of the 5th session of the board of directors and president
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ms. Yu Lin (F#f), aged 56, has been appointed as a director of the
Company since February 2005. Currently, she is the director and vice
president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and is responsible for its new
products research and development. Ms. Yu graduated from Sun VYat-
Sen University of the PRC, and has more than 30 years of experience in
biochemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC.

Mr. Ren De Quan ({Ef&#E), aged 68, has been appointed as a director of
the Company since November 2006. Mr. Ren has previously served as the
deputy Commissioner of National Chinese Medicine Administrative Bureau
and the deputy Commissioner of National Drugs Surveillance Administrative
Bureau, and retired in early 2005. Mr. Ren is also an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of China Shineway
Pharmaceutical Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

FHTES
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (%K), aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since August 2005.
Mr. Yick holds a bachelor Degree in business administration, majoring
in accounting, from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has
more than 29 years of experience in auditing, direct investment, investment
banking and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is also an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee
of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China
Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited, (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (#%3zf%), aged 46, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since August 2005. Mr.
Poon obtained his bachelor degree in mathematics with minor in economics
and marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and
was further admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United
Kingdom, in 1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as a Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong since April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related
subjects for the master degree in science program, MBA program and
Global Executive MBA program (OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Since June 2008, he has been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate
Professor in the Department of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Huang Yao Wen (E#30), aged 42, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since June 2011. He graduated from
Southwest University of Political Science & Law, the PRC, in 1992, and
obtained a MBA degree from Euro-China International Business College
the PRC. Mr. Huang is a member of All-China Youth Federation, Central
Government Youth Federation (R EIZHREIEE), Central State-owned
Enterprises Youth Federation (FR{PZEFE) and Chongging Youth
Federation (EE M &), and an adjunct professor of Law School of Central
University of Finance and Economics (7 REFE B AE2). He is an executive
partner of Kaiwen Law Firm, Beijing, an independent director of the 5th
session of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, Sino-i
Technology Ltd.(#F B &85 & 514 fR 2 71) and Nan Hai Corporation Limited.

RYIHBERBFEEDRMBRHBERLQE
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

% EEREAEREEE

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (Fk#£5R), aged 57, has been a supervisor of the
Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was appointed as
an independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering up to August 2007.
Mr. Xiong is currently the department head and professor of the Accounting
Department of School of Economics of Shenzhen University, the independent
director of Shahe Industry Company Limited, Shenzhen Laibao High-Tech
Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Feima International Supply Chain Company Limited and
Shenzhen Beauty Star Company Limited.

Mr. Wang Bin (£#), aged 53, has been a supervisor of the Company
since June 2011. He graduated from Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master degree in 1986. He
served as a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of Harbin Institute
of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Jingshan Group
Joint-stock Company Limited (FIIR LB RZD AR ), the chief human
resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Limited (between
1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of Technology
Shenzhen Graduate School.

Mr. Yu Jun ("81E), aged 41, has been elected as a supervisor of the Company
since June 2002. Mr. Yu is now the manager of IT Department of the
Company.

Senior Management

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (Z234%), aged 45, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company since 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is a director
of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 20
years of experience in the corporate secretarial area.

Mr. Huang Jian Bo (E#&I)f), aged 37, has been appointed as a joint
company secretary and an authorized representative of the Company since 1
December 2008 and as a financial controller of the Company since 1 January
2012. Mr. Huang graduated from College of Accounting at Hunan University
with a bachelor degree in economics. Mr. Huang has been the secretary
to the Board of the Company since 2007. Mr. Huang is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company is a high and new technology enterprise incorporated in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the sale
of a variety of pharmaceuticals, such as herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs, and the R&D Business in the PRC and
commission income derived from the distribution of Healthcare food
products and food products.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2012, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 49 to 169.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2011: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are set
out in note 31 to financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2012, the Company had no distributable reserves, while its
accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB122,856,000.

Capitalized Interest
The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.
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Report of the Directors
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company
The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the

Company'’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
also did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 18.27% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 4.48%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 23.79% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 6.02%.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and their
terms of employment were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Xu Yan He 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ren De Quan 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Ms. Yu Lin 3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

22 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Huang Yao Wen 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Yu Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received
annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung, and Mr. Huang Yao Wen. The Company still considers these
three Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2014 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company and
its supervisors, the Company shall pay the supervisors Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong,
Mr. Wang Bin and Mr. Yu Jun the remuneration of RMB30,000, RMB30,000
and RMB20,000 per annum respectively.
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Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note 8
to the financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its controlling shareholder was a party and in which a
Director or supervisor of the Company had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Listed
Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2012, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (including interests
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to the “required
standard of dealings” for directors as set out in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or had
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

hEmREHMNES
RERSHMES REFH - MRAHERRN
8o

ESNESHNEEER

BEXFHBNAATNEERESREA R
AARRHIERBREY EITAARAFNEERE
FEERMERAEAES - ERAFELERE
HAFE RS DAL RN EAMERAR -

EE  EEk&ESTHRAEBRLED
EEPNERERAR

AARREFTHEZAA HE-_T——F+=
A=+—B XRRAES HERRFTHRAR
RARR R EEBEE 2 Ity - HEEMR G RE#E
ETHREAREES LAEGRD ([EHRPERF
BI) E+REBAMGRRE MR P 2w Mok R
(BRERERESZMAEEN 28 BIFE X EFk
BRREHRA D)  LAREESFRPERK
126 352 A Tt 2 B M Prac ik 2 ETOK
B RBAIRR EMARRIE S A6 RATEE R
[R50 TIR%E | ARG AR AR R APk AR
T RAERRR 2 E KRBT

24 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
FERHE

RARBBD 2557

Approximate

Approximate percentage of

percentage of the Company’s

Number of all the issued

domestic domestic shares share capital

Type of shares held e HAEARE

Director/supervisor Capacity interests = RERZ BITRAZ

BEx 2= 514 EREE RNERHA BHBED T BHED

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (Note (1)) Beneficial owner Personal 30,561,000 2.44% 1.82%
SemER S A (WA (1)) BaEBA TEA

Mr. Yu Jun (Note (2)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,014,000 0.08% 0.06%
WE S (M (2) BanlEBA TEA

Notes: Biat -

(1) Executive Director and general manager of the Company

(2)  Supervisor and employee of the Company.

(1) BRARRHITEERELHE
(2) RARAREEFRES
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Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company: RARQABEESEERD ZFE -

Approximate

percentage of

associated

Number of corporation’s

Name of shares in issued

associated associated share capital

Type of corporation corporation {LAEEEE

Director Capacity interests piElid BEEELE ERITREZ

B g4 fERER EEEE ZROEA BHBEDE

Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 532,437 0.08%

REg&EE (H5t@) BERBEEA f8A  Bio-engineering

BEEY
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 266,217 0.04%
Bl5ERAE (Bab) BEmEEA fEA  Bio-engineering

BIEY
Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 79,864 0.01%
Tzt (K7Ec) BB A fEA  Bio-engineering

SEED

Notes: Ket -

(@) Mr. Zhang Feng, deputy chairman of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio- (a) BIEYEERIETFERELEESHEADA
engineering, was beneficially interested in approximately 0.08% of the entire RS T AR BB EITRAL0.08% 21
issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling HoMETAYEELEEERBEEAATEY
shareholder, which in turn held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest EEITIRAAT71.67% 2% EH70.38% AH
in approximately 71.67% of the entire issued share capital of the Company, BB 1.29% ERYETRAREBRARME
of which 70.38% was directly held and 1.29% was indirectly held through j2= Y=
Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company Limited.

(b)  Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, director and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
beneficially interested in approximately 0.04% of the entire issued capital of (b) BEIEVEERLHBHEELLBESHEEALANF
Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn ERIRRE T EMEHE EITRAL0.04% 2 1
held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 71.67% of the HMETAYEELEEERBEEALAT LY
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held EEITIRAAT71.67% 2% EF70.38% AH
and 1.29% was indirectly held through Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment BB 1.29% EREBTRAREBRARME
Company Limited. BEE e
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(©  Ms. Yu Lin, director and vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
beneficially interested in approximately 0.01% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering, which in turn held directly and indirectly the
beneficial interest in approximately 71.67% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 1.29% was indirectly held
through Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “required standard of dealings” for
directors as set out in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants

Up to 31 December 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries have not
adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Share Options,
Warrants or Convertible Bonds

At any time during the Year, none of the Directors or supervisors of the
Company or their respective spouse or minor children were granted any
share options, warrants or convertible bonds of the Company, its subsidiaries
or associated corporation.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2012, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders
(not being a Director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company)
in shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
entered in the register pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:

RARBBM 2R

Approximate

Approximate

percentage of

Number of percentage of the Company’s
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
BE A HARDT]
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity RER RERK EETRAN
FTERRER 514 ROEE BABIHE BHAESH
Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note (a)) Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
T L (ML (@) EmEA A
Interest in controlled 21,650,000 1.73% 1.29%
corporation
BA X EE N ER
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) corporation
(Note (b)) RAEXEEENER
FY BT EERDERAR
(NgE&® D (K D)
Ankeen Enterprises Limited (“Ankeen Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
Enterprises”) (Note (c)) corporation
BERERLEBRAR(MEEELE]) IHAEXEHEENER
(K172 ()
Ms. Wang Jin Song (Note (d) Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
F R (H1aE () corporation
BAEXESERNER
Notes: Bz -
(@  Neptunus Bio-engineering was deemed to be interested in the 21,650,000 (a) BRETAMEXREASRYETESREERAD

domestic shares of the Company held by Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Oriental”) as the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Oriental was beneficially owned by Neptunus Bio-engineering.

RI([BEEF]) 2 HITRA100% KEE
/e TR F#HAEARRQT 21,650,000 % AERMDE
BE AEESTEYREAREHRETESEA
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(b)

(d)

Neptunus Bio-engineering was also directly interested in 1,181,000,000 domestic
shares of the Company. Therefore, Neptunus Bio-engineering was directly and
indirectly interested in 1,202,650,000 domestic shares of the Company.

Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in the 1,202,650,000 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 27.66% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ankeen Enterprises was deemed to be interested in 1,202,650,000 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ankeen Enterprises was
beneficially interested in approximately 41.90% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately
27.66% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ms. Wang lJin Song (“Ms. Wang”) was deemed to be interested in
1,202,650,000 domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel
of shares referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ms.
Wang was beneficially interested in 85% of the entire issued share capital of
Ankeen Enterprises, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately
41.9% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Group, which in turn was
beneficially interested in approximately 27.66% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) who held any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2012.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
The continuing connected transactions that are exempt from the GEM Listing
Rules during the Year are set out as follows:

(i)

Trademark licensing

The Company entered into trademark licence contracts (the
“Trademark Licence Contracts”) with Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Neptunus Pharmaceutical”) on 28 December
2002 and 1 April 2004 respectively pursuant to which Neptunus
Pharmaceutical granted a non-exclusive licence to the Company to use
the trademarks owned by Neptunus Pharmaceutical at nil consideration
for the period until the term of registration of such trademarks
expires. The term of the Trademark Licence Contracts will be extended
automatically as long as the registrations of such trademarks remain
effective.
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HIZNA R 21,650,000 RNE RN K - RIRE
TAEYEEFHBARAET1,181,000,000 i A E K
DHER A TEYESAEERMEERS
/AT 1,202,650,000 R AE D HIEES ©

(b) AREBTEEERHABTEMEBEHITRA
#4927.66% M - FItE TEEWE AEEH
BT EYHEFARARER1,202,650,000 i A E K
DEVERS - B E IR (a) ATt R — A% 18R -

(0 MARNERCEEXRBASIEEZPDBITR
AE41.90% IR MEBTEEESEEST
EMEHCBETRAL27.66%MER - At
BRCEFRAEERETEMIBIENERAR
1,202,650,000 RN E B& 5 Ky #e s - B2 F B aE
(a) ATt A — E f% {5 48R -

(d HBHRISRLZE(TILLEZBEERLES
HEBHTRANSS% MiED MERCEER
HHBTSEE2EHCEHTRAL41.9% HiER
METEEERREEFTEYERBEBITRAL
27.66% Mg - At TRt WA BEEHET
AW AR QEF1,202,650,000 f% AE 1D E
Wz o B SO (a) BRIl R — R D FER o
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=t—8  ARREFREEHIANBAEAHE
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RARBZBMD AR T - HHEREZF R
HEGRPIE 336 RATHR 2 ECMATHE R
KRR -
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(i) EEERE
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(ii)

(iii)

As there was no consideration payable under the Trademark Licence
Contracts for the Year, pursuant to Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the above transaction was exempt from any reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Property lease

Factory

On 1 January 2010, the Company and Shenzhen Neptunus
Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd. (“Tongai
Pharmaceutical”) entered into a property lease contract pursuant to
which Tongai Pharmaceutical as landlord agreed to lease a property
with a total gross floor area of approximately 3,722 sq.m. to the
Company as tenant for factory and R&D manufacturing uses for a
period of three years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring
on 31 December 2012 at an annual rental of RMB267,984. The
leased property is located at portions of levels 1 and whole of level
4, Neptunus Industrial Complex, the Fifth Industrial Zone, Beihuan
Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. Tongai Pharmaceutical has
waived the rental of RMB267,984 payable by the Company in the Year.

As the aggregate rental under the lease contracts payable to Tongai
Pharmaceutical for the Year were less than HK$1,000,000 and each of
the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) was less than 5% on
an annual basis, pursuant to Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the above transaction was exempt from any reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Financial assistance

Details of the financial assistance by controlling shareholder and
management shareholder are set out in the section headed “Material
Related Party Transactions” in note 35 to the financial statements.
As the financial assistance was on normal commercial terms and
no security over the assets of the Company was granted in respect
of the financial assistance, pursuant to Rule 20.65(4) of the GEM
Listing Rules such financial assistance was exempt from any reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(ii)

MR A F B R E AR A& R I & A 7] e
FARME - RIFAIZER EHARRIE 20.3303) 15
BE - LAXSEHBRETEER ETR
AIF20EBH AR - AERBLELE
ZHTE °

WFEEE

=

N_ZE—ZTHE—F—H  AQFREFRIE
TEEHEERAA([EEHIE]) T —
BEEHEAR  EBHH(EAET)E
RERELAREEEmEN A3 722FA
KEOMETFARR(HEATERE) (ERE R
BEERS AYPA=ZF BH-_T—ZF
—A—HBAE-_ZE——F+-A=+—HIt
FHRAAR267,9847 - ZBEWMELR
FREFNTELURILRESATIERST
TERHIVENBHRIERE - RAFET
HEDRERAREINE2HFERS A
R# 267,984 T °

HRAFERERESRIT FEE Bl 5
ZEEMELEIR 1,000,000/87T 0 ML
MR P2 EED R CEF L RBRIN) 2
FEEHLR5%  RIBAIER ETRAIE
20.333)I§ME - EMRZ SRR GBIETAIZE
RETRANE20EBHEREFK  RERBL
RE AL Z FRIE o

(iii) B &R

ERBRREERERR MG EFIBER
R EREWEISEAFEERS ] - AR
MBEEPTIZRBRESTHEGITIREMR S BX
ARV ER BB EENARRREESE
IR - IRIRBIZER E MR A 20.65(4) 5 -
BB EEREETAIEIR ETHA
F0EHFHEMTWER  RERESBE LR
HALEZHRE °
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Continuing Connected Transaction Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transaction exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 20.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules undertaken by the Group during the Year is set out below:

Sale of goods agreement with Neptunus Changjian

On 30 March 2012, Neptunus Fuyao entered into a sale of goods agreement
(“Neptunus Changjian Sales Agreement”) with Shenzhen Neptunus
Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Bio-engineering during the
Year, pursuant to which Neptunus Fuyao agreed to supply self-manufactured
drugs to Neptunus Changjian at the prescribed prices for the period
from 30 March 2012 to 31 December 2014. The Company has made an
announcement in relation to such continuing connected transaction on 30
March 2012 and disclosed that the annual cap of such transaction for the
period from 30 March 2012 to 31 December 2012 and for the two financial
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 would not exceed
RMB13,000,000, RMB14,000,000 and RMB 17,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao has supplied self-manufactured drugs of
approximately RMB7,794,000 to Neptunus Changjian pursuant to Neptunus
Changjian Sales Agreement, which did not exceed the annual cap disclosed
in the relevant announcement dated 30 March 2012 mentioned above.

Sale of goods agreement with Nepstar

On 30 March 2012, Neptunus Fuyao entered into a sale of goods agreement
("Nepstar Sales Agreement”), with Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Nepstar”) a company indirectly owned by the former
chairman of the Company’s Board, Mr. Zhang Si Min pursuant to which
Neptunus Fuyao agreed to supply self-manufactured drugs at prescribed
prices to Nepstar for the period from 30 March 2012 to 31 December 2014.
The Company has made an announcement in relation to such continuing
connected transaction on 30 March 2012 and disclosed that the annual cap
of such transaction for the period from 30 March 2012 to 31 December
2012 and the two financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2014 would not exceed RMB13,000,000, RMB16,000,000 and
RMB21,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao has supplied self-manufactured drugs
of approximately RMB5,817,000 to Nepstar pursuant to Nepstar Sales
Agreement, which did not exceed the annual cap disclosed in the relevant
announcement dated 30 March 2012 mentioned above.
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Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
the terms of the Neptunus Changjian Sales Agreement and the Nepstar Sales
Agreement are fair and reasonable and on normal commercial terms, the
entering into of these agreements is in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Continuing Connected Transaction Not Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transaction not exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 20.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules undertaken by the Group during the Year is set out below:

Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement

On 16 October 2012, the Company entered into a distribution of goods
agreement (“Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement”) with &I
BERFBEREEEARAT (Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Technology
Development Company Limited, (“Neptunus Jiankang”), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase various
food products and healthcare food products manufactured by Neptunus
Jiankang at prescribed prices.

The Company has issued a circular in relation to such continuing connected
transaction on 3 September 2012 and disclosed that the annual cap of
such transaction for the period from the date of entering into Jiankang
Distribution Agreement to 31 December 2012 and for the two financial
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 would not exceed
RMB35,000,000, RMB62,000,000 and RMB65,000,000 respectively.
Such continuing connected transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 15 October 2012.

During the Year, the Company has received total distribution commission of
approximately RMB663,000 in relation to Jiankang Distribution Agreement,
which did not exceed the annual cap disclosed in the relevant circular dated
3 September 2012 mentioned above.

Having taken into account the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
the terms of Jiankang Distribution Agreement are fair and reasonable and on
normal commercial terms, and the entering into of the Jiankang Distribution
Agreement is in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

32 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED

REBEXML  EE(BEFNTEEREY
FNPITER)RR BIRBEVHEEHERE
IEREVHEHANGERIBAFAEL IR —
MREEGERETL AT LR EMAETEARNRFRE
BERM BB M -

TERRBIYRRMERENSEBERS

REBARNEE NETNER R AR LR
F2034 G BYRER ERTNEERES S
HAwT ¢

BIREEYR B
RZZF—ZF+A+TRB  ARAERYTEE
REMEERERAR(NEERE]) (RFZA
EWBRADFI L —HEMREHE(EERE
EMREHE])  ARTAEERFERREER
RESIRFEHEERMMRERM

RRABIREZFERELR SN _T——_FNA=
HELBEK BFRZBEBHERSEFILET
RESYARENREZAEE_T——F+_8
=t—RIBEEREE—_E—=F+_-_A=1+—
B —E—NE+-_A=+—B I MEAMKE
EX 5 LR R EER AR 35000,000T
62,000,000 7T & 65,000,000 7T ;T EHER
SEEARNRBIRERN_T——F+A+HA
BAHMARRRERFRARE EHLE -

RAEE  ARARGBETREEYREHEIE
RBALIRE LYW AR 663,0007T © Lill X5
SEVERL FMARA-—T——FALA=ZH®
BB RATIRTENFEE LR o

REBEXmL  EE(BEFATEEREY
HEHRTER)RR  BEREEDRE BRI
RIBAVFEELIR—RERENETL  71UE
IRFEMREBETAARRRERROEE

Rz o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Connected Transaction Exempt from Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirements

Equity Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering and
Neptunus Yinhe

On 11 December 2012, the Company entered into an Equity Transfer
Agreement with Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co. Ltd. (“Neptunus
Bio-engineering”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Shenzhen
Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical Investment Company Limited (“Neptunus
Yinhe"), a wholly owned Subsidiary of Neptunus Bio-engineering, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to purchase the entire equity interests in
Neptunus Changjian. The consideration for the acquisition is RMB5,080,000
of which RMB1,524,000 shall be payable to Neptunus Bio-engineering and
RMB3,556,000 shall be payable to Neptunus Yinhe. The acquisition was
completed on 4 January 2013.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering entered into an agreement
with the Company containing undertakings relating to non-competition and
preferential rights of investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”),
pursuant to which Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company and its associates (among others), that as long as the securities of
the Company are listed on GEM:

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly
held as a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its
subsidiaries), participate in or operate any business in whatever form, or
manufacture any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar
to that of the products of the Company) which may constitute direct
or indirect competition to the business operated by the Company from
time to time; and

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.
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Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the
Company will also be entitled to the preferential rights to participate in the
investments in such new investment projects.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in note 1
(0) and 5 to the financial statements.

Auditor

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was
appointed as the Company’s auditor in 2012. The financial statements has
been audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Due to the merger of business between CCIF CPA Limited and PCP CPA
Limited, CCIF CPA Limited resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 June 2010. Following the resignation of CCIF CPA Limited,
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no change in the Company’s auditors in
the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited
Zhang Feng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
19 March 2013
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The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal control transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

(B)

(Q

The Corporate Governance Code was effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The Company put strong
emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and rationality of corporate
governance. The Board is of the view that the Company has complied
with the requirements set out in Appendix 15 “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.

The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of the
management. As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to executive
Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. And
the management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company under the guidance of the General Manager.

During the Year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance duties:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
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(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional (il BAREREERASREEAEMNE
development of Directors and senior management; RFEEEER

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on (i) BT MERAQNGRETELAEREE
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; ERMBER LT

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to (iv) #lE B hERBARNEERES
employees and Directors; and B SFAER

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate v) BEIAR hEERTANER
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance &Em%g/n ERNHIRE ©

Report.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings FHTEEFLEEES  BEWERTRAR
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company's strategy, AIMEREE KRB AIEBRLEEREREFD

performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered. One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out under the Directors and Senior Management section from pages
17 to 20. The terms of office of the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are set out under the Directors
and Supervisors section from pages 22 to 23.

The Company held four board meetings during the Year.
During the Year, the Directors did not authorize any alternate director
to attend any Board meetings. Details of the attendances of the Board

are as follows:

Member of the Board

EE R ﬁi#utﬁm,mﬁ'ﬁ&ﬁaz@
EEZEINARNREERENFZ - Eh—
%?ﬁiiF%ﬂfTi%ﬂﬁ@%W?%ﬁ% .
S NIEEVEEREERE - EEEF
HIE BHREI7TE20EEELRSREIRE
— i RITEESRIEBILIERTESHE
HIZES  HRE 202 BEE23BEEENEE—
e

ARTNAFEAHEF BRI -
AEEEFLMERAAEEEFRSE
BEAEFEaS - FFEOHEREE
T -

Number of meetings attended

ESERE HEERRH
Zhang Feng Chairman, Executive Director 4/4
g FERNTEE

Chai Xiang Dong Executive Director, General Manager (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
SemR HTE FFRAEACEE (1TIHAE#)

Xu Yan He Executive Director, General Manager of Neptunus Fuyao 4/4
IRIRA HITEFEFR G T 15 ZBHTE

Liu Zhan Jun Non-executive Director 4/4
2EHE HHITEE

Yu Lin Non-executive Director 4/4
Tk FHITEE

Ren De Quan Non-executive Director 4/4
Bty HHITEE

Yick Wing Fat, Simon Independent Non-executive Director 4/4
FKEE B ITEE

Poon Ka Yeung Independent Non-executive Director 4/4
S HIHHTEE

Huang Yao Wen Independent Non-executive Director 4/4

EIEX BUHATEF
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(D) Chairman and General Manager (Chief

(E)

Executive Officer)

As the leader of the Board, the Chairman is responsible for the
approval and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the
Company, approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation
of the Company’s performance and oversight of the management. The
General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company. The articles of the association of the Company has set out
the role and powers of the Chairman and General Manager. The roles
of the Chairman and General Manager should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August 2005,
comprising one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Poon Ka Yeung is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The scope of duties of the Remuneration
Committee is stated in the Corporate Governance Handbook of the
Company.

The principal terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
prepared in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and include:

(i)  pursuant to code provision B.1.2(c)ii), making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i)  the determination of the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company and the
making of recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors; and

(iii)  the review and approval of their performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives of the Company
resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration of the
Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and commitment to
the Company with reference to the Company’s profitability and the
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee should
consult the executive Director and the General Manager about its
proposals relating to the remuneration of the Senior Management.
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(F)

E/D#&m

During the Year, members of Remuneration Committee of the
Company did not authorize any alternate member or Director to
attend meetings of Remuneration Committee. One meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held during the Year.

Member of Remuneration Committee

AEEARAFHEEGZELEREY
TREREERALEFHNEZESEH
FIER R ENAFERNRT —REHE -

Number of meetings attended

YMESEZES8 HEERRH
Poon Ka Yeung Committee Chairman, Independent Non-executive Director 171
ERS CE B FEHREVIHNTEE

Yick Wing Fat, Simon Independent Non-executive Director 11

FoKEE BUHITEE
Zhang Feng Executive Director

% HITEFE

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16 March
2012, which comprises one executive Director, Mr. Zhang Feng, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat,
Simon, Mr. Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Huang Yao Wen. Mr. Zhang Feng
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year on its date of
establishment, to draw up terms of reference for Nomination Committee.
Four committee members, Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Huang Yao Wen attended such meeting. No
alternate member or Director was authorized to attend such meeting.
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(G) Auditor’'s Remuneration

An amount of approximately RMB1,751,000 (2011: RMB1,710,000)
was charged to the Group’s income statement for the Year as follows:

Services rendered

Corporate Governance Report

Al A

ﬁ:\%g\l\#& =

(G) AT <
RAFEEREEBREZRNBRNSEOR
AR®1,751,000c (=2 ——%F : AR¥
1,710,0007T) « FEWAT -

Fee paid/payable
Approximately

FRiR A AR 7% B ENERAMASE
RMB
ARHEETT

Audit services ZERTE

(2011: approximately RMB1,300,000) (ZZ—%F : HAK¥1,300,0007T) 1,200,000
Other services (Note 1) E MRS (Mrat 1)

(2011: approximately RMB410,000) (ZZT——% : HAR¥410,0007T) 551,000
Total: “Et 1,751,000
Note: Hiat -

1. In 2012, other services mainly comprise the review of interim financial 1. CE - CHFEEMRBEIERLETHUBRE

report of approximately RMB250,000 and internal audit fee of
approximately RMB157,000.

(H) Audit Committee

The Company had established the Audit Committee on 21 August
2005. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive Director,
namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The scope of
duties of the Audit Committee is stated in the Corporate Governance
Handbook of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i)  to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve any issues of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process in
accordance with applicable accounting standards;
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

E/D#&m

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm are involved;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board,
focusing particularly on any changes in accounting policies
and practices, major judgmental areas, significant adjustments
resulting from the audit, etc.

to review the Company’s financial control, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and to ensure the management has discharged its duties in
maintaining an effective internal control system;

to review the external auditors’ letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s letter to the management;

to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and, in
particular, the matters required to be performed by the Audit
Committee under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices;

to act as the key representative body overseeing the Company’s
relationship with the external auditors; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to discuss (in
the absence of management where necessary).

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)
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(1)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year to discuss
matters relating to the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Company, internal control and financial reporting matters, etc.,
including the review of the audited consolidated financial statements
and results for the Year. During the Year, members of Audit Committee
of the Company did not authorize any alternate member or Director to
attend meetings of Audit Committee.
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ERREENAFEANERTHREH -
AWmEEES RARBMRAN G ER
RIEH - RAEZERMBHREEES &
EREAANFENEEREAVBRRRE
B AFEARFEZZEGYEREY
TZESEERALFEERZESEH -

Member of the Number of
Audit Committee meetings attended
ENEBEEES HEERRE
Yick Wing Fat, Simon Committee Chairman, 4/4
SKEE Independent Non-executive Director

SRR L EREVIHNTEE
Poon Ka Yeung Independent Non-executive Director 4/4
&G B I TEE
Yu Lin Non-executive Director 4/4
Tk HHTEE

The Audit Committee has held meetings with the external auditors of
the Company to discuss the annual consolidated financial statements
and results and the internal control system of the Company. The
General Manager and financial manager also attended the meetings to
answer questions in respect of the financial results of the Company.

The management of the Company provided all ledgers, analysis and
supporting documents as required by the Audit Committee to facilitate
their review on the financial statements and control system of the
Company to their satisfaction so that they would be able to submit
appropriate advice to the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

The Directors have confirmed and acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in compliance
with the relative regulations and applicable accounting standards. The
Board has also warranted that the Company’s financial statements
would be distributed in due course.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the system of internal control
of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. To facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the
importance of a sound internal control system. The Company’s system
of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance against
any material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business objectives.

During the Year, the management of the Company has appointed
an external consultant to review the effectiveness of the internal
control system with focus on risk management of the Company and
has submitted the results of the review and its recommendations and
opinions for consideration to the Audit Committee and the Board. The
Audit Committee and the Board have discussed the relevant results
of the review and appropriate modifications will be made to the
management system of the Company according to the findings and
recommendations therein. The Board is satisfied that, based on the
information supplied, coupled with its own observations and with the
assistance of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and
risk management process are satisfactory for the nature and size of the
Group's operations and business.

(K) Continuous Professional Development for

Directors

During the Year, each member of the Board has attended relevant
professional development such as trainings or seminars according to
their own professionals. The Company also gave advice to Directors
from time to time in respect of training courses. At the same time, the
Company arranged Tricor Services Limited to provide training in relation
to “Introduction to Corporate Regulatory Requirements” for all the
Directors and part of the management of the Company on 8 November
2012. Nine Directors of the Company have attended such training in
person.
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(L) Change of Articles of Association

According to the announcement of the Company dated 17 October
2012, the original Article 12 was deleted in its entirety and substituted
by the new Article 12, which details are stated as follow:

Original

“Article 12 The business scope of the Company is subject to the items
approved by the company registration authority.

The business scope of the Company comprises the biotech
consulting service; purchase and sales of biochemical
instruments; biotech services as well as the development,
production (operated by the branches) and sales of
biotech products (excluding items restricted by the special
policy of the state); and import & export business (subject
to the certificate of qualification).

The Company has applied for registration of the business
scope described in this article to the company registration
authority.

Subject to the business scope described in this article, the
Company can, according to the legal procedure (including
the resolution by the General Meeting of Shareholders
and approval by relevant authorities), set up branches,
subsidiaries, joint ventures and representative offices at
home and abroad.”

Amended

“Article 12 The business scope of the Company is subject to the items
approved by the company registration authority.

The business scope of the company comprises the
biotechnology consulting service; purchase and sales of
biochemical instruments; biotechnology services as well as
the development, production (operated by the branches)
and sales of biotechnology products (excluding items
restricted by the special policy of the state); import &
export business (subject to the certificate of qualification);
wholesales of pre-packaged food (excluding reheated
pre-packaged food) and dairy products (including infant
formula milk); wholesales of healthcare food products
(gold bottle oyster bean meat oral liquid); and investment
holding (actual projects are to be separately submitted).
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The Company has applied for registration of the business
scope described in this article to the company registration
authority.

Subject to the business scope described in this article, the
Company can, according to the legal procedure (including
the resolution by the General Meeting of Shareholders
and approval by relevant authorities), set up branches,
subsidiaries, joint ventures and representative offices at
home and abroad.”

2 7 fc 5 7K B A
B AARBRRASHEE
2

‘ﬂ1i€$)“‘$1 Pt 48 & 86
RERCEERF (BREBRER
ERZL A RIRPIHLAE)
BER TME%W?I\?&I
DRF - FRAE - BESR
EMBPFERE -

Save for the above, there is no other change in the Company’s articles B i prE AN REFEARRNRFE
of association during the Year. T M A At E o

(M)Attendance of General Meetings (MR KRG HEE
The Company held one general meeting and one extraordinary meeting ARBIRAGEECBRFERERAG KRR
during the Year. BRIAEE—IK o

Member of the Board

Number of meetings attended

EEZgHE HES R
Zhang Feng Chairman, Executive Director 172
R4 FEEBTEE

Chai Xiang Dong Executive Director, General Manager (Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
SemR TTE FFRAEACEE (1TIHAE#)

Xu Yan He Executive Director, General Manager of Neptunus Fuyao 1/2
TRAEAN HITEFFR G T BEAREHE

Liu Zhan Jun Non-executive Director 12
25T HHITEE

Yu Lin Non-executive Director 12
Tk HHITEE

Ren De Quan Non-executive Director 12
Rty HHITEE

Yick Wing Fat, Simon Independent Non-executive Director 172
SKE HIHPTEE

Poon Ka Yeung Independent Non-executive Director 172
E=B HIHPTEE

Huang Yao Wen Independent Non-executive Director 172
=13 HIHPTEE
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(N) Shareholder’s Rights

0

(ii)

(iii)

According to the article of association of the Company, two or
more shareholders holding more than 10% or more of the shares
with voting rights can sign one or more written requests with
the same format and contents, requesting the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and stating the topics of the
meeting. After receipt of the aforesaid written request, the Board
shall hold the extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible.
If the Board does not distribute the notice on holding the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
shareholder(s) putting forward such requirement can convene
the meeting on his/their own within four months after the Board
receives such request.

Shareholders of the Company can make enquires to the Board
or the Company in relation to corporate governance or other
matters. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company, by email to hjb@interlong.com, or by fax to
(86) 755 26643537 or by mail to Room F, 14th Floor, Tower A,
Neptunus Mansion, Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend and give advice
in the general meeting, or appoints proxies to attend general
meetings, and vote for them when they could not attend general
meetings. Under appropriate circumstances, chairman of the
Board, other members of the Board, Chairman of committees
under the Board or representative appointed by them, and
external auditors would attend general meeting of the Company,
and they would answer for the shareholders. They will also
consider or respond to the suggestions made by shareholders.

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information to the Company, by
email to hjb@interlong.com, or by fax to (86) 755 26643537 or by mail
to Room F, 14th Floor, Tower A, Neptunus Mansion, Nanhai Avenue,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The request
will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

RYIHBERBFEEDRMBRHBERLQE
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To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers
seriously to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders,
complied with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties
conscientiously and undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong
laws, regulations and the articles of association of the Company (the
" Articles of Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors
believe that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were
sufficient to reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were
reasonable. The profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interest of
shareholders and the Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve
and public welfare fund made during the Year has complied with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interest of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
19 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Reporf

Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-techniqgue Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 169,
which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012 and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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BE%E (B8) SrtMSBRERARA
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

B RS BEETTS BEP L
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

%55 Main +852 2894 6888

fHH Fax +852 2895 3752
www.crowehorwath.hk
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVE A TRy

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 March 2013

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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Consolidated Income Statement'

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E T _F+_A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR®T T ARET T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RERE X
TURNOVER EE 301 3,12 530,458 474,652
COST OF SALES SHEM A (334,960) (309,811)
GROSS PROFIT EF 195,498 164,841
OTHER REVENUE Ha A 4 11,371 9,965
OTHER NET INCOME Hi A EE 4 625 1,823
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD HHR S (75,743) (63,772)
Administrative expenses THAX (48,253) (48,272)
Other operating expenses HAb RS (36,305) (20,772)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS R 47,193 43,813
Finance costs Wi5EA 5(a) (6,590) (13,876)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION R A R F 5 40,603 29,937
Income tax FiSHt 6(a) (4,525) (13,045)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REEFELSEEF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 36,078 16,892
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS R IEER
Profit from discontinued operations BB A 13 = 12,561
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERZRF] 36,078 29,453
Attributable to: AT R, -
Owners of the Company INNETE Z DN 24,298 21,686
Non-controlling interests eI 11,780 7,767
36,078 29,453
Profit attributable to owners RAEIHEE AEMSEF
of the Company arises from: xE :
Continuing operations FELEET 24,298 9,125
Discontinued operations BERIEER - 12,561
24,298 21,686
RMB RMB
AR ARE
Earnings per share sREAR
From continuing and discontinued BREKERERILER
operations
Basic and diluted HANES 1
1.45 cents & 1.29 cents
From continuing operations BIFERE
Basic and diluted HEAREE 11 1.45 cents & 0.54 cents 5>
The notes on pages 59 to 169 form part of these financial statements. FESIBEF 169 MM BN ZEN B REHN—
B o

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

20124F 55 49



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(E_E—_F+_A=+T—HILFE

2012 2011
=F-=F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Profit for the year AEERR 36,078 29,453
Other comprehensive income AEENEMEEKE
for the year
Reclassification adjustment for exchange BRALE LREH B
difference relating to disposal of a EAERDE N ERERKES
jointly controlled entity R = 4,155
Total other comprehensive income AEEHME2ERSEAEE
for the year, net of tax (BRBi%) - 4,155
Total comprehensive income AEEHEZENSEALEE
for the year 36,078 33,608
Attributable to: DU B
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ 2N 24,298 25,841
Non-controlling interests IR A A 11,780 7,767
Total comprehensive income AEENEZEKSHARE
for the year 36,078 33,608
Total comprehensive income EATHEEA
attributable to owners EiE2mE
of the Company arises from: Wes 45
Continuing operations FEE R T 24,298 9,125
Discontinued operations RIS E TS - 16,716
24,298 25,841
The notes on pages 59 to 169 form part of these financial statements. ES9EEF 169 B MM EREA L EM SRR —

BB
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position"'

e BARRR

As at 31 December 2012
R-E——F+_A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——& —E——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 AR¥T T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - WE k& 14 164,635 131,045
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 15 68,729 70,299
Intangible assets | EE 16 130,770 135,376
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEWE  BEREESN
plant and equipment Ze 17 2,614 5,369
Deposit for acquisition of land BEITHHNIES 18 17,330 8,630
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 21 300 300
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 28(b) 1,308 1,548
385,686 352,567
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories rE 22 134,365 94,334
Trade and other receivables JFE Ui BR % B EL i JE LK R TR 23 81,931 77,573
Tax recoverable A el R IE 28(a) 1,328 =
Pledged bank deposit EHIRRITIER 24 19,060 10,168
Cash and cash equivalents e MREEEY 25 248,366 226,675
485,050 408,750
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables FEAS BRFN R E A FE A< 5RIE 26 211,689 132,226
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt RERITIEE 27 86,000 76,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate BB ARERTER
parent company 29 9,000 9,000
Current taxation BIEAR 1R 28(a) 5,543 6,076
(312,232) (223,302)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBNEEFE 172,818 185,448
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B&ERAEAE 558,504 538,015

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NN P

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE——F+—A=+—HLHFE

2012 2011
—s——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FsE ARET T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred revenue EEW 30 3,937 11,443
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 28(b) 36,213 40,296
(40,150) (51,739)
NET ASSETS EEFE 518,354 486,276
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to RATEB A
owners of the Company FE(hHE R
Share capital [N 31 167,800 167,800
Reserves (] 32 273,171 248,873
440,971 416,673
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEIERR RS 77,383 69,603
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 518,354 486,276
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March RZE—=F=AThBEEZSIEREET
2013. 2 o
Zhang Feng Chai Xiang Dong
R LmR
Director Director
EFE EEa

BZEF169 BRI BRI B/ 5 R H) —

The notes on pages 59 to 169 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B AR 2R

As at 31 December 2012
RZE——F+=ZA=+—H

2012 2011
—E——& —E——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEss ARBT T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y] 14 14,734 18,275
Intangible assets mEE 16 12 19
Interest in subsidiaries RHB A R f iR 19 499,440 454,440
Interest in a jointly controlled entity LRI B B R 2 20 = =
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME BER
plant and equipment RERIRS 17 - 780
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 21 300 300
Deferred tax assets RETIBE E 28(b) 969 969
515,455 474,783
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables PR M52 R 35 e EL At W I8 23 59,988 15,682
Cash and cash equivalents e MREEEY 25 78,579 143,333
138,567 159,015
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables FEAS BRFN R H A FE A< 5RIE 26 36,873 13,802
Entrusted loans from the immediate BB RREFRER
parent company 29 9,000 9,000
Current taxation BNHARE 18 28(a) 2,342 2,342
(48,215) (25,144)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 90,352 133,871
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&EERREEE 605,807 608,654

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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Statement of Financial Position

B FEARILZR

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE——F+=—HA=+—H

2012 2011
—s——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FsE ARET T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred revenue EEW 30 2,689 10,314
(2,689) (10,314)
NET ASSETS EERE 603,118 598,340
EQUITY En
Equity attributable to RAREB A
owners of the Company FE(h#E R
Share capital R 31 167,800 167,800
Reserves G 32 435,318 430,540
TOTAL EQUITY R 603,118 598,340
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March RZZT—=F=At+tNLBLEETSHAERTET
2013. £
Zhang Feng Chai Xiang Dong
Rig SEmER
Director Director
EF EZE
The notes on pages 59 to 169 form part of these financial statements. F50HEF 169 B MM TSI S8 B REH—

B -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity"'
SEARBBDE

As at 31 December 2012
RZE——F+=ZA=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALARE AL
Statutory Non-
Share Share  reserve Exchange  Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium fund  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity

R RGEE GEAR EXRE ERRE  REB NOFERER AR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
(Note31)  (Note32)  (Note32)
(zE31)  (WsE32)  (BiEE32)

At 1 January 2011 R=Z—%-F-A 167,800 554,844 8,302 (4,155)  (194339)  (141,610) 390,842 65026 455,868
Change in equity for 2011 “2--EREEY
Profit for the year REFHT - - - - - 2168 21,68 7767 29493
Disposal of interest in a jointly HEARIENEEER

controlled entity - - - 4,155 - - 4,155 - 4,155

Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEEH2ARELE
for the year, net of tax (BBi) = = = 4,155 - 21,686 25,841 7,767 33,608

Acquisition of non-controling YRR —RHB AR

interests in subsidiary LI ERER = = - = = (10) (10) (190) (200)
Dividend paid from subsidiary to TR 3EEARIER

non-controlling interests HHBARRE - - - - - - - (30000 (3,000)
Transfer to other reserves Bt - - 3,974 - = (3,974) = = =
At 31 December 2011 R_E--£+-F=1-H 167,800 554,844 12,276 - (194339) (123,908) 416,673 69,603 486,276
At 1 January 2012 RZZE-—%-f-H 167,800 554,844 12,276 - (194339) (123,908) 416,673 69,603 486,276
Change in equity for 2012 “E-CERERE
Profit for the year AEEET - - - - - 24298 24298 11,780 36,078

Total comprehensive income ~ AFEHEEAREER
for the year, net of tax (KB4 - - - - - 24298 24298 11,780 36,078

Dividend paid from subsidiaryto RS FEE R A

non-controlling interests MBLARRE - - - - - - - (4000)  (4,000)
Transfer to other reserves BEHMERE - - 5,633 - - (563) - - -
At 31 December 2012 WZE-Z£+-A=1-A 167,800 554,844 17,909 - (194339) (105,243) 440971 77383 518354
The notes on pages 59 to 169 form part of these financial statements. FES59EZEF 169 HMM A L S B mzR A —
o o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(E_E—_F+_A=+T—HILFE

2012 2011
—B-CF g%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥TT ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReED
Profit before taxation R 25 B A
— Continuing operations i e 40,603 29,937
— Discontinued operations - BARIEEB - 12,561
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 16,421 18,569
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEfT T E R 8 1,570 1,816
Amortisation of intangible assets m B EEE 3,957 3,968
Impairment of trade receivables FEWBRFURE 504 =
Impairment of other receivables H A ERIB R E 65 33
Recovery of impairment allowance on LK B A FE AR K
trade receivables before the acquisition BER R O - (1,251)
Recovery of impairment on FEUR AR TR (B B
trade receivables (282) -
Recovery of impairment H A fEWRIE R (B
on other receivables B[] (148) (572)
Finance costs B 5% F 6,590 14,084
Interest income F B WA (1,508) (1,141)
Subsidy income released from B RIREN =R
deferred revenue WA (8,911) (8,121)
Gain on disposal of 51% equity HE L EESIZEEE51%
interest in a jointly controlled entity R AE A W 2 — (21,030)
Written down of inventories WoRAF & 359 435
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFAERSSE 649 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE - BKE REHE
plant and equipment ol 5t 412 631
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL BELESBE 60,281 49,919
Increase in inventories FE#Emn (40,390) (7,579)
(Increase)/decrease in trade JFEE L B R e L A PR UR R TE
and other receivables (), (4,498) 58
Increase/(decrease) in trade JEASF BR AN R EL At A5 3R TR
and other payables 2, Crd) 46,463 (91,122)
1,575 (98,643)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E T _F+_A=+—HIFE

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 AR¥T T ARETTT
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) ReEELES (FTA)
OPERATIONS 61,856 (48,724)
Income tax paid — PRC ERFTSH — (10,228) (14,465)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) &E&EEBELRS (FTA) FHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 51.628 (63,189)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BERRENIZES
plant and equipment (1,115) (4,581)
Deposit for acquisition of land BB THRiLe (8,700) (8,630)
Payment for purchase of property, BEMZE - BERZENNK
plant and equipment (46,710) (51,807)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling  YEERHIEB A A1H) IEIE A ERS A
interests in a subsidiary (NES - (200)
Payment for acquisition of W AT SR B TR
available-for-sale investments - (240)
Net cash inflow from disposal of 51% i HRIFESI E 82 51% IRER
equity interest in a jointly controlled entity ~ IR&RAFEE 36 - 237,189
Payment for expenditure of intangible assets & & EE 5 X< W15 3K - (649)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMEEN
plant and equipment Fr{S 38 157 76
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRI TR RIE N (8,892) (4,528)
Interest received B U FI S 1,508 1,141
Government grants received IEGSEEEIL N 1,405 2,721
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM R&5EE (FTH) E4%
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBHE (62,347) 170,492

20124F 55 57




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

“\/ y Eﬁi/llbii

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E— T —F+_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—s——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARET T AREFT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETEH
Proceeds from new bank loans FTILIRTT ERRPTIS FRIE 91,000 96,400
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (81,000) (168,000)
Proceeds from financial assistance B Z [T /B A R B 5 & B TS 5UE
from a fellow subsidiary 10,000 -
Proceeds from financial assistance HEES QAWK EBMERIA
from the immediate parent company 30,000 =
Repayment of financial assistance BEEBNAMNEER
to the immediate parent company (7,000) -
Proceeds from entrusted loan from the BB ARETER
immediate parent company Fr135K38 30,000 =
Repayment of entrusted loans to BEEBSAT
the immediate parent company ZEEER (30,000) (39,000)
Interest paid BEATHLE (6,590) (14,084)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A FEFE R b 2 O R (4,000) (3,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING SEFHMARE
ACTIVITIES HEE 32,410 (127,684)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBLSEEYEMN (D)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS pik: 21,691 (20,381)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BHWRERREEZEY
AT | JANUARY 226,675 247,056
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT=ZA=+—HWHRER
AT 31 DECEMBER REZEY 25 248,366 226,675
The notes on pages 59 to 169 form part of these financial statements. F59H £ 5 169 MK It S MR —
&5 o
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a)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements"'

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), and it is also the
functional currency of the Company and the Group's presentation
currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except that the following assets
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

—  financial instruments classified as available-for-sale investments or
as trading securities (see note 1(e)).

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

a)

b)

BT AS SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(BT —F+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P e

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(E_E—_F+_A=+T—HILFE

b)

)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 40.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

b)

(9)

FTESTBER (&)
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ZEMFT RABERRERFEEET LR
A o B EFH AT NET R EZIRE -
AIFRMERINET RGN HMER - X
i ZERT & 2 B Al & B2 B - BIRMERT
HAfE & B 1R ERRE] RERR o

EEEMRFRABYBERRBEATE
B E BB ELERIEL O HE - AR
sHEARAE R e £ B ARIR IR RE405 7

o) PNGIDSE L 8
MBAREASEEZEHNER SAEHE
BEEAR - FXEBNYBRGEHRINE
HEABTRSMNERAFEES - &Y
2HIEITREE 0 At R B RTATTEMNE
FERERE -

R—RH B R R R IRE %32 5 4 5 45 79
BHIEERH#ER L BGAREE T
BER SEMEBREZIARHEERRR
) FITEE HE B (R 1] 180 R TE 2R s 1129 10 e L A
EMBRREZEME - AEEEX M
EENABRBERERERRNNAR T
AT UAMGEHE - AW BBENERE -

60 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(BT —F+_A=+—HILFE

1. FESEHBER (&)
O MEATRFZRES ()

FERERERENNB AR EREPILIEAR

REEEHFEREENED

C A KEL

EpLULEZFE RSN B AR E EEI
R REARERERZSREAES

EHMBRBERNENEE -

FEBREENEAMBMRRARNER S
5 - BEIRARAIER ARMEERS -

AEBRERNNFZERESE

AR

KR a2 E R A AR F g 18 K R
FREFZEREENARAREEAZENE
E AR D SR o BIE S S HOIRE K
REABRERELS  WEARZEKAR
BNBBEARRREA A MIFERER -
KEFEREEFEANEREHZERF
BEANEMEHEME  RIEEEUERER

BUBARREINBMBFEALE -

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

2012FF 4 61



Notes to the Financial Statements

P e

For the year ended 31 December 2012

bZs —
x_=

(9]

d)

—HE+-A=1t—HItEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
the relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale.

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company and
other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that the
Group or the Company and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activities of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements on a proportionate consolidation
basis. Under this method, the Group combines its proportionate share
of a jointly controlled entity’s turnover and expenses with each major
turnover and expense caption of the Group’s income statement and
combines its proportionate share of the jointly controlled entity’s
assets and liabilities with each major asset and liability caption of the
Group's statement of financial position, from the date that joint control
commences until the date that joint control ceases.

(9]
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d)

e)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Jointly controlled entity (Continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised profits and losses arising
from transactions with a jointly controlled entity is eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss. When the Group disposed of the interests in jointly controlled
entity partially without loss of joint control, the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, interest in a jointly
controlled entity is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)),
unless classified as held for sale.

Investments in equity securities

Available-for-sale equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss. When these investments
are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses (see note 1(j)) at the end of the
reporting period.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group and/
or the Company commits to purchase/sell the investments or when they
expire.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
—F+=-A=1t—HItFE
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f)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(j)).

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value of 5 to 10% on
cost, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;

—  other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

5to 10 years
5to 10 years
5to 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

64 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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f)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and machinery and
equipment under construction and equipment pending installation,
which is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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—HE+-A=1t—HItEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Technical know-how 10 years
Computer software 5to 10 years
Trademarks 10 years
Customer list 10 years

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and

only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sales;

e theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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g)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

Other intangible assets arising from business combinations
Anesthetic drug production & selling right, trade name and customer
list acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The anesthetic drug production & selling right
and trade name has indefinite useful life and are carried at cost less
impairment losses. The useful life of the anesthetic drug production &
selling right and trade name are considered by the management of the
Group as indefinite because the anesthetic drug production & selling
right and trade name is expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash
inflows indefinitely. The customer list has a finite useful life of 10 years
and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

h) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exception:

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

ii)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such
assets are included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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1.
h)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

iv) Leasehold land
Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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P e

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(E_FE—_F+_A=1T—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESTEER (&)
j)  Impairment of assets ) EERE
i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other ) BRARESFKERE MR E

receivables

Investment in equity securities and other current and non-current AR AR 5415 8 I AR B 7N 3 S A AR

receivable that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified 3 $R R A 4 B R AN 3B 5 9 E At

as available-for-sale equity securities are reviewed at the end of ) K IEM BN FE W GRIE RN & 2 R4

each reporting period to determine whether there is objective FEH R - UAERSBRENE

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment BIlR - RENZTETREEREE

includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group EEIMABUATH—IA A EEE

about one or more of the following loss events: EHE A R EUE

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — EBEAERTHEE

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in — EBREXQN - MRRIERF]E K
interest or principal payments; NI

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy — EBAFREGETERSA M
or other financial reorganisation; T%EMH

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic — Rfli - W% KEIERREE
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the HEHEBAB TN ENEAY
debtor; and g &

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an — BRAIERENAFEKNESE
investment in an equity instrument below its cost. HTBREEAEKAE -
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESFTBER (&)
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREGE)
i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other ) RAEFKER A ML E HEAE
receivables (Continued) (#&)
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If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note
1(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(j)ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities are not
reversed.

For trade receivables and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost, impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.
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BE_T—
1.
)
i)
ii)

—HE+-A=1t—HItEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investment in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  prepaid lease payments;

- intangible assets; and

- interest in subsidiaries.
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1.

j)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are
not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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—HE+-A=1t—HItEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare a quarterly financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of each quarter of the financial year. At the end of the
quarterly period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1())).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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k)

m)

n)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts (see note 1(j)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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o)

p)

—HE+-A=1t—HItEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central
pension scheme
The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the
“CPS") operated by the local government authority for all of
its employees. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the CPS to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
CPS is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the CPS.
Contributions under the CPS are recognised in profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
central pension scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

ii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amount of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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p)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the payment of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

i)

ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which
are present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially
recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 1(qg)(ii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with note 1(qg)(ii).

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts and returns.

Research and development service income
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Commission income
Commission income are recognised when services are rendered.

Government grant

Government grants and subsidies are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit and loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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s)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e., partial disposals of associates that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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(E_E-—_F+_A=T—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. EEGHBER(E)

t) Borrowing costs t) BEERE
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, REZEREREXFEEERRERER
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a HEEAARARTAEREENEENE
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are BT AEARIN o HEE KRG R
capitalised as part of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in A HARRT AR ©

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying EBEEXNEAEBREEL DK ANZE
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, ENASELE  BERAZEMBEESE
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary BrEEBER R HEMS EB EEITH
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. HETEN ZEBEeEREEEBIELR
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when ERZSIEEMTARIT D EBHEFRE
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset ST AIEES R IEEERABETER o

for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

u) Related parties u) BEEAL
a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to (@) ZBATHZBATRELR  HE
the Group if that person: REAEEBRE  WzB AL
i) has control or joint control over the Group; i) HAREEF Sk R
i) has significant influence over the Group; or i)y HAEEEEATEN X
i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group i) ARAEEFIAEERAREEE
or the Group's parent. HERKE o
b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (b) T~ {|7|<1¢Lﬁﬁ BlZE B RAH
applies: REEE@E
i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group ) REREASEARR-— E@H’J)ﬁ%
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow BRRI(EBREMKNERRIEH
subsidiary is related to the others). AT - KB A R RRF R
BAar) -
i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity iy —(EEEAHEA 73& —EE
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of REELE(AKNERANS —
which the other entity is a member). ERA—HEEFR—EKE AR
H— R E QR REERE) -
i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. i) MEEBHAR—F=AHEE

X -
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1.

u)

v)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s executive directors for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants and subsidies are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grants and subsidies will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grants and subsidies relate to an expense item, they are recognised
as income or net off against directly related borrowing costs (see note
1(1)), over the periods necessary to match the grants and subsidies on
a systematic basis to the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Where the grants and subsidies relate to an asset, they are presented
as deferred revenue and are released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if
earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented on the face of the income statement, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and
—  the post-tax gain/loss recognised on the measurement to fair

value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group constituting the discontinued operation.
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Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of financial assets; and

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these financial statements.

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the research and development
("R&D") of modern biological technology and the provision of R&D
services, production and sales of medicines and commission income
derived from the distribution of food products and healthcare food
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold net of value-
added tax, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, net
invoiced value of R&D services provided net of sales tax and commission
income.
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2012 2011
—B-CfF =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Continuing operations RHEREER
Sales of medicines B IHERE 529,795 472,652
R & D service income A EE AR AS WA - 2,000
Commission income [EEAON 663 =
530,458 474,652

Further details regarding the Group'’s principal activities are disclosed in
note 12 to these financial statements.
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(E_E—_F+_A=+T—HILFE

4. Other Revenue and Other Net Income 4. HWARHEMU A FEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
b5 H BALER At
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$F -x¢ S 3% [S®cE 3¢
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Wik ARBTR  \RETT  ARMTR  AR%TT ARBTn | ARETR

Other revenue EftA
Interest income from bank deposits ST IS4 1,508 1133 - 8 1,508 1,141

Total interest income on financial W 3EEBRERATFEE
assets not at fair value through £ REERFSNALE

profit or loss 1,508 1133 - 8 1,508 1,141
Subsidyincome released from BB AERMEHBEARA
deferred revenue 30() 8911 8,121 - - 8911 8,121
Others i 952 m - - 952 m
131 9,965 - 8 13N 9973
Other net income HtMARE
Gain on disposal of 51% HEAREHEE
equity interest of a jointly S1%RE I E
controlled entity - - - 21,030 - 21,030
Recovery of impairment RIS E
on trade receivables K
before the acquisition - 1,251 - - - 1,251
Recovery of impairment U AENEE
on trade receivables 282 - - - 282 -
Recovery of impairment Hit YA
on other receivables igp el 148 572 - - 148 572
Wite off of other payables HSH 2 e RN 195 - - = 195 -
625 1,823 - 21,030 625 22,853
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i E—T——F+_A=+—HIFE
5. Profit before Taxation 5. BRBLADRER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the R AR A TH &R LA R R I8 -
following:
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
lEsE FRELE &f
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201
~g-§ 5% B-Zf -E--E  C®R-Zf  E--£
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETm  ARETR
a)  Finance costs a) HHER:
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable hENERRRRBIERNTE
within five years 4,760 7532 - 208 4,760 7,740
Interest on financial assistance from BESARBEENNHE
the immediate parent company 590 4,586 - - 590 4,586
Interest on financial assistance from BRI CITIES
afellow subsidiary 430 - - - 430 =
Interest on entrusted loans from EBRARZHERNTHE
the immediate parent company 810 1,758 - - 810 1,758
Total interest expense on financial liabilities WIEARBERATE]E
not at fair value through profit or loss SHEENHEHTLE 6,590 13,876 - 208 6,590 14,084
b)  Staff costs b) BIHA:
(including directors' remuneration) (BREESHS)
Contributions to defined contribution TR R Bl R
retirement plan 11,482 9,586 - 251 11,482 9837
Salaries, wages and other benefits &9 - TARHER 50,731 38441 - 2405 50,731 40,846
62,213 48,027 - 2,656 62,213 50,683
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(E_E-—_F+_A=T—HILFE

5. Profit before Taxation (Continued) 5. BR¥ADER (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
5 H FiEgE Gl
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

g -—z-£ |8 T |ZBZF | “F-F&
RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTT [ARETR @ ARETT  AR®TR @ ARETR

¢ Otheritems o EfiER:

Amortisation &3

~ prepaid lease payments -RREFNR 1570 1570 - 246 1,570 1816

- intangiole assets * -EVEE 3,957 3,968 - - 3957 3968
Depreciation &

— assets held for own use under -REEEHEREERNER

operating leases 2,990 3,032 - 1,750 2,990 4782

- other assets -EfpEE 13,431 13,023 - 764 13,431 13,787
Impairment of e

- trade receivables * ~felE 504 - - - 504 -

~ other receivables * —HfbdaE 65 3 - - 65 3
Write down of inventories * Ty 359 435 - - 359 435
Net foreign exchange loss EREETE 263 4039 - 89 263 4128
Loss on disposal of property, LENE - BREREENEE

plant and equipment * 412 631 - - 42 631
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEVAERIE 649 - - - 649 -
Auditor's remuneration vERHE

- audit senvices ~Eithk 1,200 1,300 - - 1,200 1,300

- other services ~ BB 551 410 - - 551 410
Qperating lease charges: BEMERY  5EAS

minimum lease payment 4,989 526 = = 4,989 526
Cost of inventories FRAR 331,85 305,034 - - 31,854 305,034
R&D costs * e 30,878 13,275 - - 30,878 13,275
*  These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses” on the * WEREALGAERERE [ HgE

face of the consolidated income statement. FAZ] A e
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

Income Tax in the Consolidated Income 6. MIFEWERYIEHEH
Statement
a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents: a) MREAW=ERIIERIFEHIE
2012 2011
—B-=F =5
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥T T AREFIT
Current tax BUEA T 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A (B SEFTIS TR 9,801 12,695
Over provision for PRC Enterprise 5t/ Bl 12 FT/5 71 O R RB B 5
income tax (1,433) -
Deferred tax EER
Origination and reversal of RN DT A K
temporary differences 28(b) (3.241) 350
Attributable to a change in AR R e
tax rate 28(b) (602) -
4,525 13,045

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
has no income assessable to Hong Kong Profits Tax (2011: Nil).

Currently, a subsidiary established in the PRC is recognised
by the Fujian Province Bureau of Science and Technology as a
high technology enterprise. In accordance with the applicable
enterprise income tax of the PRC, the subsidiary is subject to the
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) at a preferential rate of 15%.

The other PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 25%).

BN B EAHAEBMNEH
ERTHA - MU EEHEFEFEH
BECE——%:F)-

B AT - —RR B AHE QR
BEAMBRMBER R DI RM D
F o RETBEEBREEMENE @ &
BB X BZR R 15% M B BB R 8
FREEMEH ([REMAEH]) -

BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLHF
& Hibh BB AR A 25% K
BlEMERRENR (ZE——F
25%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——_F+_A=1T—HILFE

6. Income Tax in the Consolidated Income 6. REaWERYIBHAE
Statement (Continued) (%)
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at the b) BEXHHEREERMEFENS
applicable tax rates: MY AR -
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Profit before taxation BRA% A& A
— Continuing operation — BRI ET 40,603 29,937
— Discontinued operation —BARIEE - 12,561
Notional tax on profit before RIRTE AR BT 7% ml AR [ 8 e A
taxation, calculated at the rates 3@ BT R EHE BB BT 1 EY
applicable to profits in the tax BEVE
jurisdictions concerned 5,061 10,628
Tax effect of non-deductible RN 2 BB R
expenses 404 1,389
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FERFHU I T o & (2,481) (5,258)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERR AT ARIBEENT G E
not recognised 3,576 6,286
Over provision in prior year BT F R (1,433) =
Decrease in opening deferred = H) 5| R
tax liability resulting from HIEBR RS
a change in tax rate (602) -
Actual tax expenses BRRFITE S H 4,525 13,045
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Directors’ and General Manager’s Remuneration 7.

Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the general manager’s remuneration are as follows:

B 5 R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-F——f+-A=+—HILFE
BEERBLKENE

BE_T——_FR-_F——F+=A

St HLFEEEME RAKENESIR
BEBRAGHIZE 161 BIREWT :

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2012
fees in kind contributions Total
FIic = 1: BIRGHE —B-C—F
ExHe REYHS R #@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥T R ARETT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (General Manager) — S[AIEE oA (484538 ) - 626 29 655
Mr. Zhang Feng RIS - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He RIS A - 376 24 400
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Yu Lin T+ - - - -
Mr. Ren De Quan L 200 - - 200
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 2| hERE - - - —
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SXBERE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERREE 106 - - 106
Mr. Huang Yao Wen EBRNEE 100 - - 100
618

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. Directors’ and General Manager’s Remuneration 7. EEREREMNS (B)
(Continued)
Salaries,

allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2011
fees inkind  contributions Total
e A RIRGHE —E——F
EE0E REDFI= % fmEr
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETRL AR®TT ARETR

Executive directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Si Min RBEREE(RZZ—F
(Resigned on 24/6/2011) NAZTHEEHE) 49 - - 49
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (General Manager) 4[R5t 4 (4RACEE) 51 553 26 630
Mr. Zhang Feng REEGE(RZT—F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) NEZTHBEME) - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He REANEE(RZF—4F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) ANAZtTARBZM) - 330 17 347
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Yu Lin TR+ 49 - - 49
Mr. Ren De Quan EEERE 200 - - 200
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun EEEE(RNZT—F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) NAZtTARBZM) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FEHITES
Mr. Lu Sun BERE(RZT—F
(Resigned on 24/6/2011) NAZTHBEHE) 51 = = 51
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SIKBEE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERGEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Huang Yao Wen BRI EE (RZE——4F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) ANAZTHRBZE) 51 - - 51
769 883 43 1,695
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong is the director and the general manager of the LRREERBRAGNESRBKLE - 8
company and is responsible for the Company’s day to day management BEARFRIBEBEEREBEER - ELa4ER
and overall activities. The remuneration of Mr. Chai for 2011 and 2012 “TE—FRIZFE-FHMER L3R
is disclosed above. = -
During both years, no remuneration was paid or payable by the Group RIEFE - RNEEN &R EF KT8 AT
to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out MG EEIXNME ERMAR
in note 8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 5 B 5 hn A 7 55 [ 42 Y 22 B 31 7 B TR 4R
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under B RAEFE  WREESHRENXRZR
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during BEEAMENLH - MERNBIBELASE
both years. No bonus was paid or payable to directors which are BXRRMESZC N KEMNIEL -

discretionary or are based on the Group’s performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

Individuals with Highest Emoluments 8. meFMES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, RAFERNAI B ARG TMNEERE
two (2011: one) are directors of the Company whose emoluments are ME(ZE—F : —R)ARRES H
included in the disclosures in note 7. The emoluments of the remaining HINFBERMET c Ep =R (=T ——&F :
three (2011: four) individuals are as follows: M%) &= 3 MiE 8 EBEFISIT -
2012 2011
g% —g——%
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMF 1,325 1,866
Retirement scheme contributions RN R 88 117
1,413 1,983
Their emoluments are all within the band HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 T —ER_T——F+_-_A=1+—H
(equivalent to approximately RMB804,000) for the years ended 31 ItESFNEENFHEEN TEKSE
December 2012 and 2011, 78 #51,000,0007T (F65 49 A R #804,000
JT) °
Profit attributable to Owners of the Company 9. RNATEE AELERR
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company RKARBEEAEEHZE RN BIEE R A
includes a profit of approximately RMB4,778,000 (2011: approximately N BHRRAARREEN NN AR
RMB2,390,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements 4778000 ( —FE——F: HARK
of the Company. 2,390,0007T) °
Dividends 10. R E

The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
(E_E—_F+_A=+T—HILFE

11. Earnings Per Share

a) For continuing and discontinued operation
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB24,298,000 (2011: approximately RMB21,686,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2011:
1,678,000,000 ordinary shares) issued during the year.

b) For continuing operation
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB24,298,000 (2011: approximately RMB9,125,000) and the
denominators used are same as those detailed above for basic earnings
per share from continuing and discontinued operations.

c¢) For discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations for the year
ended 31 December 2011 is RMBO0.75 cents per share which is based
on the profit from the discontinued operations of approximately
RMB12,561,000 and the denominators used are same as those detailed
above for basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

d) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.

11.

a)

b)

(9]

d)

BREF
REECERCRILEBTS
BRERBFNTIBREARBES A BT
FH AR 24,298,000 T(—T——%F : A
R#4921,686,0007T) * ARAFEAND 2
178 BAR A INHE 9 4 1,678,000,000 A%
—T——4 :1,678,000,000 % E A% ) 5+

B o
ZAF

BRBESEEEMS
FRERBFITIRA R RHEE A E (LG T
HANREE24,298,000T(=ZF——F : HHA
R#9,125,0007C) st ERFIER 2 HETY
HEVHFLEFEMEFRECEELENS
IREAZFEE o

MERIEEKME
BE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—HILEE "
IRFELCENTRERZFABARK0.75
ATERFEFELEMBRENAARE
12,561,000 Lt ERFIFER 25 & T8 £
N ERERERECEEENERE
REFER o

BREERT
HRMEERNEHYBECHTEEREYE
B BEESREERNERERELRR
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

12. Segment Reporting 12. D EBFRE
The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised REEBRDPERHEER  DEMIEMIEE
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and 4% (B o R IRTS ) Be & 03B & 1 42 481
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information ZEEHNMAEBNNITESIERNLRE
is reported internally to the Group's executive directors for the purposes R BEERRIERRNE - AEEE 27
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has THME R BRI o B THHREN D
presented the following two reportable segments. No operating AT B FRAE & EB o
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.
i) Manufacturing and selling of medicine products ) EEMEEER
ii)  Provision of R&D services of modern biological technology i) REIRREM MRS
Currently all the Group’s activities are carried out in the PRC. No BRI TEAEEESHEFRAM
reportable operating segment has been aggregated. BB o WHESEEM A RHEE D -
The medical products segment derives its revenue from HERHEEWRATIRE R EETHEE
manufacture and sale of medical products. B o
The R&D services segment derives its revenue from the provision 3% AR 75 0 2B AT UL A TS 2R B A B AL A7t
of R&D services. BRT -
The others segment derives commission income from the EMoTESWMATIRERRIER
distribution of food products and healthcare food products. mRRERM °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E— T —F+_A=+—HILFE

12. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s executive directors monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of deferred tax assets, tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
attributable to the activities of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted EBITDA”
i.e. "adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including investment
income and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, the executive directors are provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings managed directly by
the segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to
the Group's executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the year ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 is set out below.

The operation in a jointly controlled entity was discontinued in the year

2011. The segment information reported on the followings does not
include any amounts for the discontinued operations.
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12.

a)

7 EbER = (4R)

DEWEM  AERAM

BB BRARD BSEERME -
AEEGHITEF R T ERE RS S
EAWEAOEE - BEREE -

DEMEEREMBRAN  BREENRRD
BE BETERELEHBEEE A EEH
BREMEEREE - pEBEEREERN D
HMEBRENE S REMRIBANZEDH
HEEREEMNRITER

WARRXTIRSERBO MELNHE
BREBOMELENFAS AR BEMN
BENTEXBEMEEINRARIEE

BRI EL o

ARBED>BREANN T EZRIEHE
EBITDA] - Bl [HIBRFE « FiIA - 78 k#
SHAT 2 SHBERF ] - Hp [FI 2] BIFRE
WA - TITE R BIEERBEEZR
B8 - BEFIEHAEEBITDA - AEEZ
BRTBEE REEBRERS B2 HEE E
HE—FAE WESERZHEM2BE
Hib @ =R A RITHRE S o

U35 AR FEEBITDA 2 5 EBE K SN -
PITESEREERAREN S HER - &
BRSO PEETENS PREEE - KE
DEEETEZRESEHREEZFEK
ARTH  DERBEEERFERZIER
FHRBEENTE BHERBEBEUR
ARE - DEEHEE K2 EINBALRE
PRTEELMEBRMETEE -

RHEHE-_Z-—-—FR-_FT——F+=A
=t RIEFEZERD ERFEDBE
RAARFRRTESRUEBASNEERE
D2 BRBAN T -

RERAZEHERNEBER T ——FK
- REATEENDBERTBELE
AR ETFHER R
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
E T _F+_A=+—HIFE

12. 7 EBERE (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) OBEE EEREREH)
Continuing operations
BREERY
Manufacturing and
selling of medicine
products R & D service Others Total
EENHERR e Bt 3t
For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BEt-A=T-ALEE 8- -“F—% ZB-2f "% ZB-Zf -T--F ZB-Zf T %
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTn ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn  ARETR
Segment revenue AEHRA
Revenue from external customers — SMREPIA 529,795 472,652 - 2,000 663 - 530,458 474,652
Inter-segment revenue AHERA - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue E:E G0N 529,795 472,652 - 2,000 663 - 530,458 474,652
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ TR RALEF/ (FE)
before taxation (Bs%iaD) 74,619 67,546 (15201)  (10,618) 662 - 60,080 56,928
Interest income from bank deposits ST FI S UA 1,308 922 200 211 - = 1,508 1,133
Interest expenses HEF% 5,190 6,136 1,400 7,740 - = 6,590 13,876
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE
—Property, plant and equipment ~ —¥1% + FE LR (E 131712 12,922 3,49 3,133 - - 16,421 16,055
~ Prepaid lease payment -BNRENE 1,570 1,570 - - - - 1,570 1570
- Intangible assets -BWAE 3,950 3,950 7 18 - - 3,957 3,968
Witten down of inventories HAzE 359 435 - - o = 359 435
Impairment of WA
~ trade receivables — YR 504 - - - - - 504 =
— other receivables —H it EYFE 55 3 10 10 - = 65 3
Recovery of impairment on HERE
~ trade receivables ~ B (282) = - = - = (282) -
- other receivables — Bt W (148) (149) - (423) - = (148) (572)
Recovery of impairment on trade &R R AR SURIE
receivables before acquisition igge ] - (1,251) - - - - - (1,251)
Income tax expense FRHE 4,525 13,288 - (243) - - 4,525 13,045
Reportable segment assets TREIHEE 714,089 584,667 153,772 174,850 - - 867,861 759,517
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERESNY
(other than financial instruments ~ EERE (TAELR
and deferred tax assets) TAREEHEEE) 16,759 12,341 43,635 1,590 - - 60,394 57,740
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AIRHATEE 261,481 196,594 49,206 32,123 - = 310,687 28,717
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2T ——F+_A=+—HILFE
12. Segment Reporting (Continued) 12. ZEbERE (&)
a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) DHEE -EEREE(E)

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.

Ai%l%i)fﬁ%ﬁft CERYERSEA
AV KR S ASEBEKRAR 10% ©

b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, b) THBH/MPUA 1B  BEERABHY
assets and liabilities B
2012 2011
—B-=F —_E——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Continuing operations BRREER
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue A[ERER D FBULA 530,458 474,652
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %3 &RFEIH AL $5 = =
Consolidated turnover REEER 530,458 474,652
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit A R 3R 55 &4 A 60,080 56,928
Elimination of inter-segment profit o3 B FE s A1) K 5 - =
Reportable segment profit derived REEEINRE R A R
from the Group's external customers 23 2B Kl 60,080 56,928
Other revenue and other net income E A R A FRE 11,996 11,788
Depreciation and amortisation EREE (21,948) (21,593)
Finance costs WIS E R (6,590) (13,876)
Unallocated head office and ROMBIERRATRE
corporate expense (2,935) (3,310)
Consolidated profit BRBAFECEEB 2
from continuing A E A
operations before taxation 40,603 29,937
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

12. 7 EbsR & (&)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, b) THHEIBWA - 1B% - BEREENY
assets and liabilities (Continued) BR (48)
2012 2011
—B-=F —T——%
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR I EE 867,861 759,517
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 &P i & G TE K (61) (48)
867,800 759,469
Unallocated head office and ROEBNERRATEE
corporate assets 300 300
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE E 1,308 1,548
Tax recoverable A EHE 1,328 =
Consolidated total assets A EERE 870,736 761,317
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities Ao EE 310,687 228,717
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 3B FE {5 FUB K § (61) (48)
310,626 228,669
Tax payable JERTFRIR 5,543 6,076
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIE B & 36,213 40,296
Consolidated total liabilities ire BEeRE 352,382 275,041
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12
)

d)

13.

. Segment Reporting (Continued)

12. 7 EbsR S (&)

Revenue from major products and services <) REAFEEZRBRBHWKA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing LT AEREFRGEREERATEE S
operations from its major products and services: FMIRTEHI U A D HfT -
2012 2011
—E-C=F —B——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Medicines AR 529,795 472,652
R&D service Tt EE AR TS - 2,000
Commission e 663 -
530,458 474,652
Geographic Information d) HEEH
The Group's turnover and results from operations mainly derived from AEENEEBRECEERETERGT
activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were located WERKEE - FA - AEBENFEEEM
in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical AR o El - BEEREMIES O -
segment is provided.
Discontinued Operation 13. ERLLER

On 13 June 2011, the Company and GlaxoSmithKline Pte Limited
("GSK") entered into an agreement pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell its 51% equity interest in GSK-Neptunus to GSK at a
consideration of US$39,000,000. All necessary internal approvals and
procedures of the Company and GSK respectively for the disposal,
including without limitation the approval by the board of directors
and the shareholders of the Company and the approval by the
board of directors of the Company’'s holding company, Neptunus
Bio-engineering, have been duly obtained and completed. On 20
September 2011, the transaction was completed and GSK-Neptunus
ceased to be a jointly controlled entity of the Company.

The results of the discontinued operations included in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of cash flows are set out below.

100 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED

RZE——F~A+=8B' AAF &
GlaxoSmithKline Pte Limited ([GSKJ)&T
Vi BUARRRERGSKEHEER
ERELREETZRES1%KE REA
39,000,000 Tt © # A EUS R FEK AR T
RGSKAREBEESHEZAMBMNENA
HHERER - BEETRRR) RNRRE
2 RREZHE - ARARRBERAF]
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HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

13. ORI ¥ (&)

2012 2011
—B—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Turnover B - =
Cost of sales HEMKA = =
Gross profit EF - =
Other revenue E A A - 8
Other net income EAbFUA - 21,030
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAX - =
Administrative expenses THRERRY - (8,188)
Other operating expenses H A E RS - (81)
Profit from operations BEHER - 12,769
Finance costs LY I - (208)
Profit before taxation R A F - 12,561
Income tax Frig %5 = =
Profit for the year from AEEFELSEEBER
discontinued operation - 12,561
Attributable to: T,
Owners of the Company RARER A - 12,561
Cash flows from discontinued operations: ERUEEEREBHESRE :
2012 2011
—B-C=F —E——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Net cash used in operating activities KEEFFT AR 2358 - (30,605)
Net cash used in investing activities WEFEFAR 2358 - (25,748)
Net cash generated from SERBELERSFHE
financing activities - 40,000
Net cash outflows WReMEFE - (16,353)
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. )% - MERRME
a) The Group a) AEH
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment  in-progress Total
HE %8
BF  HBERRE RE e ERIR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Cost REAR
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——%—-f—H 62,754 86,451 2,983 6,762 2,201 161,151
Additions AE 1,216 3,562 1,760 2,665 - 9,203
Construction expenditure ER(LEERRY
capitalised - - - - 4,377 4,377
Disposals HE - (1,793) (1,090) (319) (260) (3,462)
Transfer in/(out) BA/(H) 1,709 = = - (1,709) =
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-—F+-A=1—H 65,679 88,220 3,653 9,108 41,609 208,269
Accumulated depreciation ~ RiHERAEE
and Impairment
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——%—-f—H (3.353) (22,495) (998) (2,426) (834) (30,106)
Charge for the year REER (2,990) (11,246) (615) (1,570) - (16,421)
Written back on disposals HEAE - 1,573 1,022 298 - 2,893
At 31 December 2012 RZB——&+-A=+-R (6,343) (32,168) (591) (3,698) (834) (43,634)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZF+-A=1—H 59,336 56,052 3,062 5410 40,775 164,635
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

a)

The Group (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B S R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T——F+-A=1+—HIFE

14. 9% ~ BERFR R (&)
a) AfE (M)

Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
KB £F
BF  RBRERX "E B EETR &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TR  ARBTR
Cost BRAE
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—-A—H 135,267 118,527 3,209 8,397 95,465 360,865
Additions B 2,250 8,689 379 1,969 - 13,287
Construction expenditure BEALEERRY
capitalised - - - - 38,520 38,520
Disposals HE = (4,313) (339) (152) @3) (4,807)
Disposal of a jointly HELREHER
controlled entity (84,454) (43,515) (266) (3,452) (115,027) (246,714)
Transfer in/(out) #A/(H) 9,691 7,063 - = (16,754) =
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+ZA=1+—H 62,754 86,451 2,983 6,762 2,201 161,151
Accumulated depreciation ~ RiHFEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 R-Z—%-f-A (3321) (16,796) (942) (2,063) (10,846) (33,968)
Charged for the year RAEETH (4,782) (12,000) (489) (1,298) = (18,569)
Transfer infout) #A /(1) (76) 76 = = S =
Disposal of a jointly HELREHER
controlled entity 4,826 2,579 m 803 10,012 18,331
Written back on disposals HERR = 3,646 322 132 = 4,100
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+ZA=1+—H (3,353) (22,495) (998) (2,426) (834) (30,106)
Carrying amounts RHE
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+ZA=+-A 59,401 63,956 1,985 4,336 1,367 131,045
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P e

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BHE-Z——F+_A=1+—HIEFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
a) The Group (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
total carrying amount of approximately RMB32,523,000 (2011:
approximately RMB32,287,000) were pledged as part of the
securities to secure the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings of
RMB86,000,000 (2011: RMB76,000,000) (Note 27).

14. Y% - BMERRE (B)

a) ZA&EE (&
RZTE——F+-_A=+—8  REERZE
A B ARME32,523,000C(ZE——%F : 4
AR 32,287,00070) B TAEBETF -
ERBRIFAEERHERA  UIBARE
ERTERBE AR 86,000,000 (=F
——%& : AR#76,000,0007T)(Hiz%27) °

b) The Company b) ZAAF
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and Construction-
machinery vehicles ~ equipment in-progress Total
BE-%E
BERRE RE e EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETT ARMTR AR%TR AR®TR
Cost RRAE
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-—-£-f-8 34,440 942 2,221 834 38,437
Additions "E 12 318 1,058 - 1,388
Construction expenditure BALEERRS
capitalised - - - 53 53
Disposals HE (3.429) (275) (231) - (3,935)
At 31 December 2012 RW=E-—%+-A=1+-A 31,023 985 3,048 887 35,943
Accumulated depreciation REAHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 R=Z—=f-f—H (16,792) (847) (1,689) (834) (20,162)
Charge for the year AEEX (2.718) (9) (265) - (2,992)
Written back on disposals & EE 1,489 247 209 - 1,945
At 31 December 2012 RIZ——F+-A=t—H (18,021) (609) (1,745) (834) (21,209)
Carrying amounts FEE
At 31 December 2012 RIZ——F+-f=+—-H 13,002 376 1,303 53 14,734
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. ¥)3% ~ BENEME (8)
b) The Company (Continued) b) ZA&2AF (&)
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
KB £F
EUAES HE RkfE ERIR 5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETL  ARETE  ARETR

Cost ERAE
At 1 January 2011 R-F——F—f—H 34,516 942 2,026 834 38,318
Additions NE 15 - 215 = 230
Disposals HE (91) = (20) = (111)
At 31 December 2011 R-_E—&+-A=+-H 34,440 942 2,221 834 38,437
Accumulated depreciation RIHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 R=F——F—A—H (13,948) (839) (1,498) (834) (17,119
Charge for the year AEETH (2,862) ©) (199) = (3,069)
Written back on disposals HEBE 18 - 8 = 26
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%+ZA=1+—-H (16,792) (847) (1,689) (834) (20,162)
Carrying amounts RHE
At 31 December 2011 RZB——%+ZA=1+—H 17,648 95 532 - 18,275
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——_F+_A=+T—HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. 1% - BEREE (&)
c¢) The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold properties is as <) HEVENEEEIFOT :
follows:
2012 2011
—E-C=F —E——F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥T T ARBTFT
Outside Hong Kong EREN
Medium-term leases FREAfE 128,065 129,700
Representing R
Buildings carried at cost BRARARNETF 59,336 59,401
Interest in leasehold land held for REERE T RHERR
own use under operating leases HE TR 15 68,729 70,299
Medium-term leases REITRE 128,065 129,700
15. Prepaid Lease Payments 15. T ERIE
The Group AEE
2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Cost REAME
At 1 January n—HA—H 72,000 91,269
Disposal of a jointly controlled entity S A I R - (19,269)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 72,000 72,000
Accumulated depreciation Rt mTERE#H
and amortisation
At 1 January m—H—H (1,701) (601)
Charge for the year KEETH (1,570) (1,816)
Disposal of a jointly controlled entity & Rl H E a2 = 716
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H (3.271) (1,701)
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 68,729 70,299
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15. Prepaid Lease Payments (Continued)

All the prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in the
PRC under medium-term leases which were amortised over the lease

term of 50 years on a straight-line basis.

At 31 December 2011 and 2012, all of the Group’s prepaid lease
payments were pledged as part of the securities to secure the Group's

bank loan of RMB86,000,000 (2011: RMB76,000,000) (Note 27).

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

15. BAHEERE ()
7 T8 AR 0O 9 AR R SRR i 7
B0 B S0 - RSN E AR
R 50 F R E SRR AR -

RZB——FR_B—ZF+A=+—
B AEEMEBENBEERE  (EAIKH
NEBMIBHEIER o LIS AEFERTE
HELE AR 86,000,000 T (—F——4F :
AR 76,000,000 7T ) (Ht3E27) ©

16. Intangible Assets 16. B &=
a) The Group a) AEE
Anesthetic
drug Internally
production developed
Computer and selling Trade  Customer technical
software Trademarks rights name list  know-how Total
LS
ElEH BE MEEESE EBEE  FFRE HHINA EH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETr AREBTR ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2011 RZE——&—f—H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 - 139,559
Additions NE - - - - - 649 649
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+=A=1-H
and 1 January 2012 h=E-—F—f—H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 649 140,208
Disposals HE - - - - - (649) (649)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——E+ZA=1+—H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 - 139,559
Accumulated amortisation Rt E#EKFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 R=F—4%—F—H (344) (50) - - (470) = (864)
Charge for the year KEEZH (12) (6) - - (3,950) = (3,968)
At 31 December 2011 WZZ—%+=RA=1—H
and 1 January 2012 k=ZE——%#—-f—-H (356) (56) = = (4,420) = (4,832)
Charge for the year AEEZH - (7) - = (3,950) = (3,957)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——F+=A=1—H (356) (63) - - (8,370) - (8,789)
Carrying amounts EHE
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-—F+-A=+-H - 12 53,143 46,483 31,132 - 130,770
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+-A=1+—H - 19 53,143 46,483 35,082 649 135,376
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

16. BELEE (&)

b) The Company b) ZA&AF
Computer
software Trademarks Total
B4 B et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T AREFTT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2011, 1 January Rn=—ZE—F—HA—A8-
2012 and 31 December RZZE——F—HA—H8 Xk
2012 R-E——F+A=+— 356 75 431
Accumulated amortisation Rt EHERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H (344) (50) (394)
Charge for the year REEZH (12) (6) (18)
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=A=+—H
and 1 January 2012 kr—ZT——F—H—H (356) (56) (412)
Charge for the year REFEZH - @) @)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H (356) (63) (419)
Carrying amounts BRMEE
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+-_fA=+—H = 12 12
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=A=+—H = 19 19

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

)

d)

Intangible assets arising from business combination

The anesthetic drug production & selling right, trade name and
customer list are intangible assets acquired on 30 November 2010
through the acquisition of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (“Neptunus Fuyao”).

Anesthetic drug production & selling right represents the fair value of
the rights as at the acquisition date in respect of the production and
selling of specific anesthetic drug in PRC.

The anesthetic drug production & selling right, and trade name is
considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely. It is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may have been impaired.

Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the anesthetic drug production
& selling right and trade name was approximately RMB91,077,000 (2011:
approximately RMB64,031,000) and approximately RMB65,728,000
(2011: approximately RMB58,749,000) respectively, which were assessed
by reference to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent
qualified professional valuer independent of the Group and with
appropriate qualification and experience in the valuation of similar assets
in the relevant industry. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, no
impairment to the carrying amount of the Anesthetic drug production &
selling right and trade name as at 31 December 2012 is required since its
fair value as at the date of the report is higher than its carrying amount of
approximately RMB53,143,000 (2011: approximately RMB53,143,000)
and approximately RMB46,483,000 (2011: approximately
RMB46,483,000) respectively.

The recoverable amount of the anesthetic drug production &
selling right is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budget
approved by the executive directors covering a four-year period. Cash
flow beyond four-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3.19% which is consistent with the
forecasts. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the medical industries. The cash flows are discounted
using a discount rate of 27.35%. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E T _F+_A=+—HIFE

16. BILEE (&)

)

d)

EBEHELENEREE

M SEEEE  XBERMREFPBETIR
“E-ZF+-A=THEBKEREMNE
ITRENEFRAR([BERE]) KB
MWEBTEE °

TA U B B A i e % 7 4 7 55 E I I R Y
EHE  AEEEETREEREEM
MENENNATE -

AEEE R ER DM BEE R AR XS
T E) {2 P 4R HARE T AR TR - R N2 il R E 5
AR TS R T TR I R A S B E R )T
NFRERA ° ZREB BFETRER -
NAAEE RSB REERE

REBRKBIRMESNNMBEEEHEER
REKERE

RZE——F+_A=+—"H MEEE
HENREBABOATFTEIRAHAR
#91,077,000 (=2 ——F : HARK
64,031,0007T ) & 4 A R ¥ 65,728,000 7T
(ZZF——%F : HH AR ¥ 58,749,0007T)
T2 BB IR K BB 7 F XL EARD
Ascent Partners (E#EB ¥ HERATTE=IEMUE
EETHENES RER) (FHHERE
TG - ARBESZRA - ARMBEE
HENREBZBRAREAHNATES
I EBREEHARKES3,143,0000( ==
——F : HHAR®53,143,0007T) R4 A
R#46,483,000(=ZZE——F : HAR
#46,483,00070) B - EFHER=Z
—— &+ A=t+—HNEEEETRE -

T R % E SE R DA R TS B A R A W Bl 2 BB
DIRBERAEENGETEMEE - %25
FTEAAFERKERITE S E 2 MFE R
KEEREENRSRBAME - B8
WEH 2B REMEH3.19% K& T N
S8 R R (B TEAI R —BR) AT TR o
RIS R RSB EE A & H s
RE -REMEMNTIAER27.35% ° A
RBEIR R AT ATANIRE - WRM B RS H
KR E R ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+_A=+—HILLFE

16.

d)

e)

17.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name
(Continued)

The fair value of trade name is measured using a royalty rate of 4.5%
on sales. The trade name has indefinite useful life.

Customer list

The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer list is
determined with reference to the estimated future revenue from the
customer list which is based on historical information. The management
is of the view that the future economic benefits that can be derived
from the customer list beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.

The fair value of the customer list at the date of business combination
was measured using the excess earnings method under the income
approach. This calculation is based on the present value of the
incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the customer list
and a discount rate of 21%. The annual cash flow is calculated
by reference to the latest applicable annual revenue from existing
customers and has been extrapolated using an averaged 14% growth
rate. The averaged 14% growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth and management forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. At the date of the
business combination, the fair value of the customer list amounted to
RMB39,502,000.

Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment

The Group is conducting research and development activities on
recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs.

The amount represents deposits of approximately RMB2,614,000
(2011: approximately RMB5,369,000) to acquire property, plant and
equipment in Taizhou for research and development. During the year,
additional deposit of RMB1,115,000 was paid and property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB3,870,000 was transferred and
delivered to the Group and reclassified as construction-in-progress. The
amount will be reclassified as property, plant and equipment after the
completion of installation and testing.
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16.

d)

e)

17.

BILEE (&)

A S5t L o 4G B9 B9 R R B SR
R £ (M)
EBABATEDERAKEEI5% 0
FPHEME R R o E75 A TR M AR A0 62
HAR -

BEFEE

EFREAREAEAFRILAERER
10FEREHE - FPEENARAFERDHZ
ERBEELENMSEREELBENMG
AARARKEMERE - EEERR - 10FH
B - RETFPRENRREHEMST)
BEM -

REBEHBHENEFPBERNTFEIIAR
BRIENRAGE - ZTETIUERE
BREEEERTERSRERER21% T
REERE - FERGRENSEHAR
FPRETAEBFE W mat B F R 14% F
B R ERMER - 14% FHEBRETDER
FEETERERREEERR B W AREIBE
BATHE 2 FHIRERE - REBKEHB
HHNREFHEATEAARK 39,502,000

JG ©

BEYE  BERREHZRE

AEERFEHAZEHENSRENERD
PR -

ZEHERE—THEENBERENM
HME BMERKIENKRSSEHNAR
#2,614,000L( =T ——F : HARK
5,369,000t ) c AFER BEXTAR
1115000t BN RS RO AR
3,870,000 cHI % - WE REHBEER
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18.

19.

Deposit of Acquisition of Land

In 2011, the Group applied to the relevant local authorities in relation
to the acquisition of land use right (“Lands Acquisition”) for the new
production base in Lianjiang through auction for which a deposit of
RMB8,630,000 was paid.

During the year, the Group won two bids at the tender held by the
Bureau of Land Resources of Lianjiang, Fuzhou City at the consideration
of approximately RMB22,940,000 and RMB13,280,000 respectively.
The Group paid additional deposits of RMB8,700,000 to the Bureau of
Land Resources of Lianjiang.

The deposit is refundable if the transaction is not completed.

Interest in Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R M e

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

18. BELT RS

R-F——%F AKERMEEE BT
AERMBEREBLNE TN EEELD
T ML liE])  EREXMEZ
® AR 8,630,000 7T °

RER REBERMNTEIZRLE
BRAOMR LB REEEPFEZE RE
2 Al A& AR #22,940,0007T & A R #
13,280,0007T ° AE B m:E T HE T EIR
BRI e AR 8,700,000 7T ©

o

il

MR AARTEK » %R E A AR

A E AR R ER

The Company
AAF
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD © AR 500,480 455,480
Less: impairment loss B RERE (1,040) (1,040)
499,440 454,440

In previous years, a subsidiary became dormant and it is expected that
no further business activities will be conducted to generate sufficient
income to fully repay the outstanding balance due to the Company.
The investment cost of RMB1,040,000 and the amount due from
the subsidiary of approximately RMB311,000 were assessed to be
fully impaired. After considering the poor operating performance of
the subsidiary, the directors of the Company are of opinion that the
impairment loss should not be reversed.

RBEFE ZWBRARATES 178
HieE —SREEBUEERHERA
FREBRNARRNKRERSHK - RE
A A R ¥ 1,040,000 7T K fE IGZ B A B
H&EAAREE 311,000 2 51 E A2 ER
B - REEMBAGTENKSEEEE
RABEER AT EEEBRERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
(E_E-—_F+_A=T—HILFE

19. R 2 B2 (45)
AEBETHERANEBERIMT - B
SEHRBE - FHENRHBEER -

19. Interest in Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of RERERLA
Place of authorised/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
MR &R /EROR AEEW A L)

GRS EXuE BRRARE BRER ksl ksl IEXH

Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited B 15T gmes

L ENRERAR

Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC RMB30,000,000 80% 80% - Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Company Limited A AR 30,000,000 of medicine
("Neptunus Fuyao”)* EEREEEY

BMETREREERAR ((ELRE)

Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang PRC RMB10,000,000 76% - 95% Production and sales
Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd HE AR 10,000,0007C of medicine
("Neptunus Jinxiang")* EEREEEN

BMBE R ERILE
ARAA(IEZEK])*

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC RMB30,000,000 80% - 100% Production and sales
("Fuzhou Fuyao")* EF AE30,000,0007 of medicine

RMBEREERAR ([RMNEE]) HERHERY

Jiangsu Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company ~ PRC RMB55,000,000 100% 100% - Research and
Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus")* (Note |, i e AR 55,000,000 7 development of

IR EMRBERLR (DIRET]) biopharmaceutical
(P& Rii) products

HEENEEER

Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Co., Ltd  PRC RMB50,000,000 79.8% - 100% Production of
(“Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang”)* (Note iii) HE AR 50,000,000 7 chemical

BT RENE(BT)ERAF medicine
(MBTRE®L)* (Wtii) EEEED

Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC RMB50,000,000/ 76.21% - 100% Production of chemical
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Company Limited i RMB31,000,000 medicine
(“Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang”)* (Note iv) AR 50,000,000/ EE(CEEY)

BIZRPERE(ET)ERAA] AR#31,000,00070
(DBE&RET])* (W)

Lianjing Neptunus Fuyao Foods PRC RMB500,000 79.80% - 100% Wholesale and retail of
Trading Co., Ltd. (“Lianjiang Neptunus i AR®500,0007C packaging materials and
Foods")* (Note v) pre-packaged food

BB TRERREHERDE HERTEARMHR
(FETeTeml) (M) BEXRM
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19. Interest in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

i)

iii)

On 8 June 2011, the Company acquired 20% equity interest in Jiangsu
Neptunus held by Neptunus Pharmaceutical at a consideration of
RMB200,000. Following completion of the equity transaction, Jiangsu
Neptunus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased to RMB10,000,000
through additional capital contribution of RMB9,000,000 by the Company
on the same date.

On 4 November 2011, the board of the directors of the Company
passed a resolution in respect of the “additional capital contribution of
RMB80,000,000 to Jiangsu Neptunus to increase its registered capital to
RMB90,000,000.

On 12 July 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased
to RMB35,000,000 of which additional capital of RMB25,000,000 was
paid up on 20 July 2012.

On 3 December 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB55,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB20,000,000 was paid up on 5 December 2012.

Up to the date of the financial statements, the formalities for the increase
of registered capital to RMB90,000,000 is still in progress.

On 21 March 2011, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang was newly formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid
up during the year 2011. On 17 April 2012, the remaining registered
capital of RMB40,000,000 was paid up.

On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000 and
RMB5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus
Jinxiang, respectively. Up to the date of financial statements, the
formalities for the increase of registered capital is still in progress.

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus lJinxiang Lianjiang was formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was
paid up during the year ended 31 December 2011. Additional capital of
RMB21,000,000 was paid up on 17 April 2012. According to the articles of
association, the remaining registered capital of RMB19,000,000 should be
paid on or before 15 June 2013.

On 30 May 2011, Lianjiang Neptunus Foods was formed with a registered
capital of RMB500,000.

These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as limited
liability companies.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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B 5 R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E T _F+_A=+—HIFE

19. RKTE 2 BRI ER (&)

GER

) MRZE——FXANB " ARRKEEST
BEMBFIHST20% WEE  REAR
#6200,0007C - EEHKRER HE @ 1805
ETRAEARARZEMBAR - ARRRE
B¥HIERS T E AR 9,000,000 @ Al
LE8 FaEfMEARIEE AR 10,000,000
=5

iy RNZIE—F+—AMNA: ARQAESFE
BIENIERE TFINEE AR 80,000,000
JCl BB RER - LENMEFREARE
AE# 90,000,000 T °

R-_ZE——FtA+=-8 IHESTM:F
fit & R n= A R ¥ 35,000,000t @ EF
FINE AR NERH 25,000,000 R =T ——
FLXA-—+HAZf

R-BE——F+-F=0 " I&HEENZ
it & A — M= AR 55,000,000
JC + HHPEEINE AR AR 20,000,000 T 7
R+ -FARAXf-

HEVBKRERBE  EINBEINERARE
90,000,000 LK) IE X FE L HHIE -

iy R-ZE——%=A-+—H BIREE
JLETEK AL - REf AR AN A A R #50,000,000
T ERR =T ——%F AR 10,000,000
TEXN RZZE——FWA++H " &
TEEM A A R # 40,000,000 7L E 2+t ©

R-Z——FN\A+HA  ARFEEE
RENGE T REE THEMBRAR AR
50,000,000 T 3% in = A K # 112,000,000
7T Hrh A R#106,400,000 7T & A R #&
5,600,000 T D RIREGERERFLEIER
SEE  BEMBHER B - BINEINER
BTEELT ©

vy RZE——&XA-+WB:  BXs5E
IR - R AN A A R % 50,000,000
T EFREE=TE——F+t=ZA=1+—
BHIEFEE AR 10,000,000 TE 27 - 48
INER AR # 21,000,000 tER =T —=
FOA+EAIN - RIBZRMEA - % T
5 A% X A R % 19,000,000 7T ERA — &
—=FEXNATHEBSZAIXT o

vy R-ZE——FHA=1+H FIEEAER
Bz - AR A A AR 500,000 7T ©

* ZERRRETEEEELAEREMEAR
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20. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity

20. REEEFIERAER

The Company

ARDF]
2012 2011
—E-—C—fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETT

FELETRRAD - A
W ORER1R

Unlisted shares at cost
Less: impairment loss

Notes:

i) On 9 June 2009, the Company and Glaxosmithkline Pte Limited (“GSK")
entered into a joint venture contract for the establishment of GSK-
Neptunus, a sino-foreign equity joint venture company. GSK-Neptunus was
incorporated in the PRC on 6 August 2009 with its equity capital owned as

to 60% by the Company and 40% by GSK.

ii) Pursuant to the articles of association of GSK-Neptunus, the board of
directors of GSK-Neptunus shall initially consist of six directors, of whom
three shall be nominated by the Company and three shall be nominated
by GSK, both parties having equal voting rights in the management and
control of the GSK-Neptunus. As such, the GSK-Neptunus is considered as

a jointly controlled entity of the Group.

i) The registered capital of the GSK-Neptunus is US$78,330,000
(approximately RMB535,000,000). In 2009, the Company contributed
assets with an agreed value of US$45,530,000 (approximately
RMB311,000,000) and made a cash contribution of US$1,470,000
(approximately RMB10,000,000) to GSK-Neptunus in return for a 60%
interest in GSK-Neptunus. GSK had contributed cash of US$13,820,000
(approximately RMB94,710,000), with a remaining balance of
US$17,510,000 (approximately RMB120,000,000) to be contributed in

cash in return for a 40% interest in GSK-Neptunus.

During the year 2010, GSK made further cash contribution of
US$17,510,000(approximately RMB120,000,000) to GSK-Neptunus and

completed the cash contribution.

iii)

RZZTEZTAENANB ARERE
Glaxosmithkline Pte Limited ([ GSK) BkAK
VYRIEEBEEERRBHELRETEEFT
GEERE - EWMELREIN_ZTTNE
NASNBRFBKY - ERADBIEAA
Al K GSK#H 60% K 40% °

BREEFEZLREINAZSRME B
HMELRETESERYBA N GEEMH
K ARBIRGSKEDRIRE=ZREE -
S UER RS R TNEEREH AR
RSHEEE - At BEELRETH
BAERNEBHLRZGEE -

EWELREBETMNEMELRA78,330,000
Z 7t (4 A R #535,000,0007T ) © 7 =
ZENF  ARFAABEBHELREEE
AW E & B 545,530,000 T (4 AR
#311,000,0007T ) K EE W H © H &
1,470,000% 7T (I A R #10,000,0007T)
BB EES ST 60%KEL o GSK
Pte B HHE I £ 13,820,000 T (AR
94,710,0007T) * #25X 17,510,000 %7t (%)
AR# 120,000,000 70) # AR SIEA + A
BHEBRL /AT 40% K ©

R-ZT—TFEE  GKAEWBELTEE
ELE— IS EE 17,510,000F 7T (KA
R ¥120,000,0007T) * WESTKREEE °
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20. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity
(Continued)

iii)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

20. NAREFIERAVER (&)

Notes: (Continued) M« (8)
(Continued) i) (&)
The movement in the allowance for impairment losses during the year R ——FFREERNBENEZS M
2011 was as follows: T:
2012 2011
= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARETT
Balance brought forward AR AR — 19,518
Disposal of a jointly controlled entity & —RERIEHIEEE - (19,518)
Balance carried forward Bia KRR - -
By the 5th anniversary of the establishment date, upon GSK Pte’s request, iv) MBS ERERESH - EGSK Pte 2

the Company and GSK shall negotiate with and the Company for the
sale of the Company’s equity interest of GSK-Neptunus to GSK in such
percentage as necessary for GSK equity interests to reach a minimun of
fifty-one percent and a maximum of sixty percent of the registered capital
of GSK-Neptunus. When GSK-Neptunus has sold on an accumulative
basis three million doses of pre-pandemic flu vaccines it has produced,
or has sold, in any one fiscal year, ten million doses of all seasonal flu
vaccines it has produced, GSK and the Company shall immediately
discuss and agree for GSK to further purchase from the Company the
equity interests of GSK-Neptunus. The equity interests of GSK-Neptunus
to be transferred under these circumstances shall be priced at the fair
market value. Any failure on the part of the Company to comply with the
provisions in relation to GSK right to purchase further equity interests of
GSK-Neptunus from the Company will constitute an event of default under
the JV Contract and will allow GSK to terminate the JV contract and claim
damages of US$2,000,000 from the Company.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

K+ RRARIABEGSKFGSKHERRARNE
BMELREBTZRAERETEN MY
AGSKHR A EBRL 78 T
BEAHBESLEINSLBESZET—(51%)
ERZADZINT(60%) - HEBHEL S
FTEEEHEAEENRRBARITIRBE
HRBEEI =8B AH  IREMN—EH
HESCEEHLAENTHAERBRERE
B—FEAD » BIGSKEARRZASAE
AW REGSKRAARRE—FSHERERH
R RBTHRARER - BREZSFEBRE
FTHENER=ZLRBTRAREERA
EHEERE - WMARFREEESTHBGSK
BREAARRE—SEEESFELTET
B A S RIEX - SEREEEHNTZ—
BHEHOEM  EEAFGKPteRIEEES
49 WHEAAFEHZE 2,000,000 ETHIFEE
%o
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_E——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

20. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity 20. RERIEHERNER (8)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (8)

v)  On 12 August 2010, the Company sold and GSK purchased a 9% equity v) RZZE—ZFNA+=H XAFERE
interests of GSK-Neptunus pursuant to the joint venture contract at a cash AEARALERGKEEEERELRE
consideration of USD10,574,550 which was equivalent to 150% of the TEH9% kHE - BEMN(EA10,574,5503%
original par value of the GSK-Neptunus’ equity interest as at 31 December T HRERERELREEIN_TZAN
2009. FT-A=+—BREREEN150% °
On 13 June 2011, GSK entered into an agreement pursuant to which the RZTE——F X NA+=H " GSKET#H
Company agreed to sell the 51% equity interest of GSK-Neptunus to GSK HEBUEARAIREMGKEHEERE
at the consideration of US$39,000,000. All necessary internal approvals METRBITZ2E251%KE REA
and procedures of the Company and GSK respectively for the disposal, 39,000,000 7T ° #Z ARG RTK AR F]
including the approval by the board of directors and the shareholders of RGSKOREMEEEFEZMENENNR
the Company and the approval by the board of directors of the Company'’s HHERERF  BEAQRAEZEETS MER
holding company, Neptunus Bio-engineering, having been duly obtained 2R AREARERAREEEY 2
and completed. EEHE -

On 20 September 2011, the transaction was completed and GSK- R-ZZBE——FHALA=-TH XHGEKEE
Neptunus ceased to be a jointly controlled entity of the Company. BELREETERARRQRZ ERZE
i A
21. Available-for-Sale Investments 21. HEERE

The Group and the Company

AEERAAQT

2012 2011

—B-=F —T——fF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBFT

Unlisted securities 3 R

— Equity securities in the PRC, at cost ~ —F B AR ANE S - 12K ANME 300 300
As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company held 5%, RZB-——F+-A=+—H Kx&EER
equity interest in JRYITIAERBER AR AER DA (the “Shenzhen ARERHARYITAEERBEEMRRAR
Company”) (2011: 5%) which is a company incorporated in the PRC. ARRINAR D 5% BkE(ZZT——
The Company contributed RMB240,000 to the Shenzhen Company F:5%)  ARA—ERFE AKX
during the year 2011 following an increase of the paid-in capital of ST HA R o BEEIRYIA R E SR ARKA
the Shenzhen Company from RMB1,200,000 to RMB6,000,000. The X #1,200,000 7T £ £ A K #6,000,000
securities do not have a quoted price in an active market and therefore T ARARZZE——FRAEINAEER
their fair value cannot be reliably measured. AERH240,0007T © 7% 7EF R RIKE R T I5

I ERE - A A FERGEA SRS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
 E—E——Ft+ - A=1+—HILFE

22. Inventories 22. 78
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
= —FT——%
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Raw materials B 55,666 42,560
Work-in-progress R m 19,221 14,025
Finished goods 2K i 59,478 37,749
134,365 94,334
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and BWRARX W ABRNFESES TN
included in profit or loss is as follows: TS 8
The Group
KEE
Note 2012 2011
FiYeE —B-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERESRE 331,495 304,599
Write-down of inventories MomFEE (i) 359 435
331,854 305,034
Notes: B E
i) During the year, obsolete inventories of approximately RMB359,000 (2011: ) FAREFELHARK359,000T(=F
RMB435,000) were identified and recognised in the consolidated income ——% : AR¥435,0007T) ER&ZEA W
statement. KRB R o

AT ERBFEEVEMROBRAT 2012F 55, 117
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_E——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

23. Trade and Other Receivables 23. FEUWRBR R H i FE U 718
The Group The Company
bS] b NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E-—F —T——F —E--F —E——F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BizE ARET T AREFTT AR®TR ARETTT
Trade and bill receivables YRR ENEE 55,742 61,780 308 308
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R (1,204) (982) (308) (308)
54,538 60,798 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUB B A RlFvA (i) = = 59,235 12,047
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries ~ FEURE R KB R FFUE (i),35(e) 2,879 4,097 28 2,897
Amounts due from related companies  FEWBFE A B3 (i),35(e) 1,130 3,107 = =
Amount due from immediate EREBEARFE
parent company (i),35(e) 22 2,161 - -
Other receivables H it IR R 10,678 2,922 300 336
Loans and receivables BN YR 69,247 73,085 59,563 15,280
Prepayments and deposits BNFERES 12,684 4,488 425 402
81,931 77,573 59,988 15,682
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered T8 HA BT A FE W AR 50 K2 L i JE UK R IB AT S —
within one year. FAKE -
Note: BEE
i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year. i) EWREAEIRE REARAR—FR
B3 -
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

a)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

23. FEUR RN I HL B UGRRIR (4]

Ageing analysis a) MRERDWT
The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age, presented NTAAEEZE S RINRFIZEZAH
based on the invoice date: 25| 2RO
The Group The Company
TEH NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g——-F —T—% =Z—B-=-f —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR ARETET
Within 3 months 3MEA R 48,318 42,065 - -
More than 3 months but less  #B3@318 AR 1218 A
than 12 months 6,177 18,449 - -
Over 12 months H2iA121E A 43 284 - -
54,538 60,798 _ _
Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of billing. FEWBRR — R EEZHHEHET0BR
Further details on the Group’s credit policy is set out in note 34(a). HEEA - AEEEERENE—FFHE
BRI E 34(a) ©
Impairment of trade receivables b) EWERIFRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using FEUWBR R E BTy A EARE 8 - 1
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of AN £ B R {5 U B 52 OB R AT RE I ARK - 1E
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off BIERT - EEAEBERFTMEERESRE -
against trade receivables directly.
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RERRESE
The Group The Company
b ] b NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-Cf —T——f —E-Cf —Z——F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i3 ARETTR ARETT ARETR ARETT
At 1 January ®—A—H 982 982 308 308
Impairment loss recognised ERRRERE (i) 504 = - -
Recovery of impairment loss W ElRERR (i (282) = - =
At 31 December ®+=ZR=+—8H 1,204

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
= E——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 23. EWBRFA R H At FE W Rk IE (&)

Notes: s -

i) As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of the Group amounting to i) RZZTE—=—F+=-A=+—8 ' xEEHM
RMB504,000 (2011: nil) were individually determined to be impaired and Féuﬁzﬂ% XAR® 504,000 (ZF——4F :
allowance had been made. These individually impaired receivables were ) REFIEERE @ WarREE - 2S5 @5
outstanding for over 1 year as at the end of the reporting period or were ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁlﬂﬁ?ﬂﬁé%iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%E%@,HHEKN
due from companies with financial difficulties. B FeE AMBEEN AT o

i) RMB282,000 (2011: nil) of the trade receivables previously impaired was iy LAMTENESERKREZREARE
recovered during the year. Therefore, the impairment loss was reversed. 282,0007T(=ZF——% : Z)RFEARYE -

Bt - REREERED o

i) The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. i) AEEVERZEEHRFTEEMETRR -
c¢) Trade receivables that are not impaired c) A EWER
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually nor I[ﬂﬂﬂﬂjzyxﬁﬁﬁi%ﬂfﬁﬂ’lf%lﬁﬁ K Y BR
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: pakig N
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011

—EB——-F —T——F ZB-—fF —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBTrT ARETRT ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired I & HA s RE 49,520 51,858 = =
Past due but not impaired mERR R E
Less than 3 months past due  #EHIDH3EA 4,160 6,652 = =
Over 3 months past due 1 B A3 (E A 858 2,288 = =
54,538 60,798 - =
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide 3 4% 380 2R ok R (B Y FE U Gk I8 BE % 5 N A
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. HAR KL SR R = AE T o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of EaHERRENERRBEZEZRER
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. FREBENAEEZFPHEA - BREBTLK
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment 5 ﬁﬁ@ﬁ HAEEKTEmE A
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not &) - MEARNER AR E - tHEA
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still Ejﬂlﬁt#:uﬁ%ﬂg/ﬂfgﬁé1ﬁ NS B 0 A Lt
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral SEBFEEMERR -

over these balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

24. Pledged Bank Deposits 24 EIFRITER
The pledged bank deposits are bank deposits pledged to a bank to BERBOEAARAEHEREFERER
secure credit facilities granted to the Group. The bank deposits that WFIRTHETER - B EBENRITER
have been pledged represent margin deposits to secure bills and other EAEETHREREEREMEZIRE
trade finance facilities granted to the Group from time to time and are EERNRES  AMBEERARBEE -

25.

therefore classified as current assets.

The interest rates on the deposits ranged from 3.05% to 3.3% (2011: FEHRFENTEHEF305%E3.3% 2H (=
2.75% to 3.5%) per annum. T——F :2.75% £3.5%) °
Cash and Cash Equivalents 25. BERAEEEY
The Group The Company
TEH AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB-—F —F——F IZEB-ZF —Z——%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT AR®BTRT ARETT
Cash at bank and on hand RITFEREBRE 248,366 226,675 78,579 143,333
Cash and cash equivalents RirE BRIk R RS

in the consolidated statement RE&REXRMNHE LK
of financial position and the REEFEY
consolidated statement

of cash flows 248,366 226,675 78,579 143,333

In 2012, deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.35% to 3.05%. (2011: 0.36% to 3.5%) per annum.

—E——F RBOERMEMS X
P035% E£3.05% (=T ——4F:
0.36% &3.5%) °

= %
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26. Trade and Other Payables 26. FETERFA R H At RS FRIE
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E-—F —2——F —E--F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Firsk ARET R ARETFTT ARETR AREFT
Trade payables FERERR 113,723 72,373 667 667
Receipts in advances BUFE 6,434 5,497 1,705 1,705
Other payables and accruals HAtERFIE R BT B 39,002 35,056 5,786 4,438
Amount due to subsidiaries FERHB A RFUA (i) - - - 1,353
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries FENRZNEARFA (i), 35(e) 13,298 867 2,813 536
Amount due to the immediate EREBRRAFE
parent company (iii), 35(e) 39,232 18,433 25,902 5,103
Financial liabilities measured RH K EN
at amortised cost HEEE 211,689 132,226 36,873 13,802
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FERBRR R EAn BRI RIERERN —FAX
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. kiR BIRATIZREKER -
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26. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 26.

Notes to the Financial Statements

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

UpGE E
For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
2T ——F+_A=+—HLFE

P BRI H b B 50 ()
22 A SR 15 TR B R B B
REOBRATIT -

The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2-——F —FT——F IZEB-ZF —Z——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETRT AR%ETn AR®TR ARETET
Within 3 months 3MEA A 65,372 50,830 — =
4 to 6 months 45618 A 38,721 10,923 - =
7 to 12 months 721218 A 7,286 7,577 - -
Over 1 year 15 2,344 3,043 667 667
113,723 72,373 667 667
Note: M EE

i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.

ii) Included in amount due to fellow subsidiaries, there was interest-bearing
financial assistance from a fellow subsidiary of RMB10,000,000 (2011: Nil),
which is unsecured, bearing interest at 6% and repayable within one year.
The remaining balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within

one year.

iii)  Included in amount due to the immediate parent company, there was
interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate parent company
of RMB23,000,000 (2011: Nil), which is unsecured, bearing interest at 6%
and repayable within one year. The remaining balances are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

) REEREER MEBEE—FAFEE-

i) FAERMREMBRARZRESEARE
10,000,000 7L (=T ——4F : T) WK S8
BER)  AEIETF  R6%:TE B—FR
BE-BRTLHEAEER 28K —FRA

i) FHABRNEBSRAREBEREERY

AT ARK23.000.000T (=T ——4:
TN ESBEER  AERERIE6%
e BE—FRAEEE - B ToEAEK
HRER—FRAREE -
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27. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

27. M ERTESE

The Group

Effective REH
interest rate Maturity 2012 2011
BRI E#A —E-CF =5
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HizE AR¥TR AREFT
Short-term bank loan - secured KRR T B R — B (a) 6% 2013 86,000 76,000
86,000 76,000

The Group
AEH

2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREFTT
Within 1 year or on demand P F Rk Z ok 86,000 76,000

The interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of
the non-current interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year. All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in

RMB.

A subsidiary of the Group was subject to the fulfilment of financial and
non-financial covenants, as commonly found in lending arrangements
in interest-bearing bank borrowings. The subsidiary was required to
maintain profitability and certain level of gearing ratio.
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27. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

a)

During the year 2012, a director of the Company and
a shareholder of a subsidiary provided guarantees of
RMB40,000,000 to bankers for facilities obtained in respect of
the Group’s bills payable of RMB40,000,000. In 2011, Shenzhen
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”)
the immediate parent company provided guarantees of
RMB20,000,000 and RMB12,000,000 for the Group's short-term
bank loan of RMB20,000,000 and bills payable and short-term
bank loan of RMB10,000,000 respectively.

At 31 December 2012, the banking facilities of the Group
of RMB86,000,000 (2011: RMB56,000,000) were secured
by mortgages over its buildings and prepaid lease payments
with carrying values of approximately RMB32,523,000 (2011:
approximately RMB32,287,000) and RMB68,729,000 (2011:
RMB70,299,000) respectively. The facilities were utilised
to the extent of approximately RMB120,621,000 (2011:
RMB90,600,000) and the Group has available un-utilised banking
facilities of approximately RMB5,379,000 (2011: RMB1,135,000).

The bills payable facilities of approximately RMB34,621,000
(2011: RMB14,600,550) were secured by the pledged
bank deposit of approximately RMB19,060,000 (2011:
RMB10,168,000).
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27. ESRITEE ()

a)

MN-ZTE——F  ARARNEELKE
RAIHBRRERASRENEFEREAR
#.40,000,000 7T RIERTT R ETIETS AL &
12 it & R A K ¥ 40,000,0007C > 7
—E——F HESARZRIMEE
EYTRERHERAR(EBEEY])
12 it A R # 20,000,000 & A R #
12,000,000 ST HERIE A A S E 5 HI R
TERAR 20,000,000 T ARE R
JET R IR R HER1TE 510,000,000 7T
BIHEIR o

R-EBE——F+-_A=+—8 K&
ErRTTEE AR 86,000,0007T(=
T ——4F: AR¥56,000,0007T) H
HalRmE» 54 AR 32,523,000
(Z=2——F : HARK 32,287,000
7T) B AR 68,729,000 L (=T ——
F: AR¥70,299,0007T) M E =%
BRENHEENREER - FEED
BHOAR120,621,0000( =T ——
F . ARM90,600,0007T) K7 &= E AR
FHEE AL ARYS5,379,0007T (=
T——& : AR¥1,135,0007T) °

dl

JENRBRBEELHARE 34,621,000
T(ZZE——%F : AR® 14,600,550
T)BEBEFRITIEROARE
19,060,000 (=T ——F : AR¥
10,168,000 7T ) {EH K ©

2012FF 43 125



Notes to the Financial Statements

P e

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_E——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial

Position

a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

28. BRI R A B PRG35

a) HSeMBHARRARRTIEE

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T =F]-=F —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTrT AREBTRT ARETT
Provision for the year AEEBE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR TSR 1,873 3,734 = =
Balance of PRC Enterprise Income ERYC R E AR
Tax provision relating to prior year B2 PTAS A
B 2,342 2,342 2,342 2,342
4,215 6,076 2,342 2,342
Representing: &ML
Tax recoverable A] UG B] 7 TE (1,328) = = =
Tax payable FERIEEIA 5,543 6,076 2,342 2,342
4,215 6,076 2,342 2,342
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28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial
Position (Continued)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R M e

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
HE_Z——F+_-_A=+—HLHFE

AR R ARG (4

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) BEHAREREZEEKRBE:
The Group REE
The components of deferred tax (assetsyliabilities recognised ERERE B ISR R R B R AR E R IE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (BE)/BERAFENEHNT
movements during the year as follows:
Fair value
change of
non-current
assets Others Total
FRBEE
A fR
EE2F Hit @Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Deferred tax arising from E e R 2 E A RIRERIA ¢
At 1 January 2011 —T——F—HF—H 40,296 (1,898) 38,398
Charged to profit or loss BiE&=RNR - 350 350
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=+—H
1 January 2012 K—_FE——F—H—H 40,296 (1,548) 38,748
Effect of change in tax rate TR B2 (655) 53 (602)
Credited to profit or loss sFABREE (3,428) 187 (3,241)
At 31 December 2012 R-EB——F+—_H=+—H 36,213 (1,308) 34,905

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial MR TRAMWEEH (B)
Position (Continued)
b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued) b) EBREEMBEEERER: (&)
The Group N EE
2012 2011
—E-C-F %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised E“\ & B TSR R R TR A
in the consolidated statement IR IHE E
of financial position (1,308) (1,548)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RGBSR R R
in the consolidated statement % ERIE A &
of financial position 36,213 40,296
At 31 December 2012 R-B——F+-A=+—8H 34,905 38,748
The Company KAF
Others
Hit
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Deferred tax arising from EERRIETIA
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H (726)
Credited to profit or loss ST AB=R (243)
At 31 December 2011, RZB——F+-A=+—8H "
1 January 2012 —E——%—HA—H

and 31 December 2012 r—ZE——#%+—-_HA=+—H (969)
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28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial

Position (Continued)
¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB112,487,000 (2011: RMB86,441,000) available for
offset against future profits that may be carried forward for five
years for PRC Enterprise Income tax purposes. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

29. Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent

Company

The Group and the Company

The entrusted loans from the immediate parent company of which
RMB48,000,000 were repayable on 5 April 2009 were unsecured and
bore interest at 5.00% per annum (2011: 5.00% per annum). On 2
December 2008, the immediate parent company agreed to extend the
repayment date of the entrusted loans for at least one year to 5 April
2010.

On 18 March 2010, the immediate parent company further agreed
that the repayment dates of the entrusted loans in the amount of
RMB48,000,000 were to be extended to 5 April 2011.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI E

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
HE_Z——F+_-_A=+—HLHFE

. IBARR RN RS ()

o WARERNEEHBEE

RERPERE - AEENRBAT
HEE B AR 112,487,000 L (=&
——F: AR¥86,441,0007T) ' A]
FA DASE 88 2K S0 M) Sz AT gt A B 1 3 A
SHEERSF - BREETER KR EF
mE - BRI IEE B ERIEER
HEE °

29. HEB R RERER

AEERAEAT
EESRAREXERBERR 1¢H§
500B(ZF——%F : £FE/5002) -
¢AE%momomﬁ#:§§h¢Eﬂ
AHEZE R-_ZTZNF+-_A=-H ' =B
EEIRE Tm,mkﬁé?ﬁﬂaaﬂﬁﬁgﬁ =P —
FE-T-FTFWMABAA -

R—_E—ZTF=A+N B EESA
AEE " SPREECRZXERARE
48,000,000 T EEHE-_FT——FMAH
A -
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29.

Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent
Company (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of the entrusted loan in the amount
of RMB9,000,000 unless and until: (1) the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations
of the Company and/or its business objectives as set out in the
prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
“Prospectus”); and (2) each of the independent non-executive directors
was of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted
loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/
or the implementation of its business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus, and the Company would make an announcement in
respect of the decision of the independent non-executive directors
made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and had
retained profits in the relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 (2011: RMB450,000) attributable to
the entrusted loan in the amount of RMB9,000,000 was waived by
Neptunus Bio-engineering.

On 25 November 2011, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in the
amount of RMB39,000,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Company obtained a RMB30,000,000 interest-
bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The entrusted
loan was unsecured, bore interest at 0.5% per month and repayable
within one year.

On 4 September 2012 the Company repaid the entrusted loan in
amount of RMB30,000,000.

The carrying amount of the Group’s entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company approximates their fair value.

29.

EB&QTERERE)

AEERAAT (E)

R-ZT——ENARE ABEEATE—
FRIBLERZHERARE 9,000,000 7TH]
EER BRIEREE  (NEEZREERT
EBERETSHHR AR AR _ZEZTRAFN
AZ+NBFENBRER((BRER])
MAQNREERSNHEEBZEXTH
VE: RQSBYIIENTESHRAEE
ZRREZAERETSHARBRERD
ARREER,/SHEEEENEITER
FHEE  BARAGERBILIENTES
REQ)EMEREELH AL  RG)ARQH
REET B EESHBERS R RREEF -

% T & A R #9,000,000 7T B9 fE 5t A1 2
ARBA50,000(ZE——F: ARK
450,000 7T) B8 T EWERE ©

R-ZZE——F+—F=-+HH  KXARIE
BEZERARE 39,000,0007T ©

RZBE——F=A=-+xB '  AQFH
BTEMERS —EMBEETEEBERARE
30,000,000 T ° ZEBRAEET - §A
M E20.5ERER—FARNEE -

R-ZZE——FNLAWH ' ARARIEERZT
&3 AER# 30,000,000 7T °

AEENEBEGARERNERMERLR
FEAE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
e s

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_Z——F+_-_A=1t—HIFE

30. IELE W &=
REE

30. Deferred Revenue
a) The Group a)

Other
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D Subsidy E Subsidy F Subsidy G SubsidyH Subsidy| Subsidy) SubsidyK subsidies  Total
RBA #BB  WEC BBD RBE  WMF  ®MG WEH BB W) BBK HERR g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRT L ARRTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARKT R ARRT L ARRT L ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR

(Note) (Noteb) (Notec) (Noted) (Notee) (Notef) (Noteg) (Noteh) (Notei) (Note) (Notek)  (Notel)
(Wka) (WEb) (Mo (Mad) (e (MEN) (M) (HaEh) (&) (W)  (FE0 (&)
Cost A
At 1 January 2011 R-E——5-f-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 - 450 370 100 - 26620
Addiions 58 - - - - - - - - - -
At31December 2011and RN =ZT——%
January 2012 TZA=1-H
k=%-z%
—A-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 450 370 100 2321 29341
Addiions 8 S s 1
At 31 December 2012 RIF-2f
+-f=1-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 450 370 100 3726 30,746
Accumulated amortisation 25t
At 1 January 2011 R=E——5-f-H 300 - 1,762 233 300 1,054 5,758 - - 370 - - 9,771
Released to income BAREERS
statement for the year Yk 50 = 27 = = 38 529 360 450 = 100 1193 81
At31December 2011and RN =F——%
1 January 2012 TZA=1-H
RR=Z-=%
—A-H 350 - 2,049 233 300 1436 11,057 360 450 370 100 1193 17898
Released to income BAREERY
statement for the year R 50 = 250 = = 383 6943 = = - - 1285 891
At 31 December 2012 RIF-Zf
+-f=1-H 400 - 2299 233 300 1819 18,000 360 450 370 100 2478 26,809
Carrying Amounts HEE
At 31 December 2012 RZE-=F
+-A=t-H 100 500 701 167 - 1,181 - 40 - - - 1,248 3937
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
t-B=1-H 150 500 951 167 - 1,564 6,943 40 - - - 1128 11443

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

30. AWz (48)

b) The Company b) Z&AF
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D  Subsidy E  Subsidy F  Subsidy G  Subsidy H Total
®HA  WHB  WEC  BBD  WHE  WHF  BEG  HEH &zt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR
(Notea) ~ (Noteh)  (Notec)  (Noted)  (Notee) (Notef) ~ (Noteg)  (Noteh)
(WrFa)  (Wskb) (o (Wakd)  (Wie)  (HED (Ko  (K&h)
Cost A
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-f-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 - 25,700
Additions HE - - - - - - - 400 400
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+ZR=1-A
and 1 January 2012 k=E--F-f-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 26,100
Additions AE = = = = = = = = =
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—%+-A=+-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 26,100
Accumulated amortisation it
At 1 January 2011 RZE—%-f-H 300 - 1,762 233 300 1,054 5759 - 9,408
Released to income BAREENE bR
statement for the year 50 - 287 - - 382 5299 360 6,378
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+ZR=1-A
and 1 January 2012 k=E--F-f-H 350 - 2,049 233 300 1,436 11,058 360 15,786
Released to income BAREENE bR
statement for the year 50 - 250 - - 383 6,942 - 7,625
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—%+-A=+-H 400 - 2,299 233 300 1,819 18,000 360 23411
Carrying Amounts KEE
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZF+ZR=1-A 100 500 701 167 - 1,181 - 4 2,689
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+ZR=1-A 150 500 951 167 - 1,564 6,943 40 10314
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

Notes:

a)

d)

e)

In June 2003, a subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen Bureau of
Finance to the Company for the acquisition of certain plant and machinery
for the production of interferon spray. The amount of RMB50,000 (2011:
RMB50,000) was recognised as income over the useful life of the related
plant and machinery.

In July 2003, another subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen
Bureau of Finance for assisting the Company in performing research
and development of interferon ointment. The subsidy is not required to
be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is subsequently approved
and certified by Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance upon its completion. Since the Company
has not yet obtained the approval for the project, the subsidy was not
recognised as income for 2012 and 2011.

In December 2004, a subsidy of RMB2,000,000 was jointly granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and Information and the
Shenzhen Development and Reform Bureau as a science and technology
fund to subsidize the acquisition of certain plant and machinery. A
further subsidy of RMB1,000,000 for the same purpose was granted in
July 2005. These subsidies are not required to be repaid and the amount
of approximately R\MB250,000 (2011: RMB287,000) was recognised as
income over the useful life of the related plant and machinery.

In December 2005, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance for financing the research and development
of interferon vaginal effervescent tablet. The subsidy is not required
to be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is
subsequently approved and certified by the Shenzhen Bureau of Science,
Technology and Information upon its completion. The subsidy was not
recognised as income for 2012 and 2011.

In June 2008, a subsidy of RMB300,000 was granted by the Shenzhen
Bureau of Science and Technology Branch for financing the research and
development of inactivated split influence vaccine. The subsidy is not
required to be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology
Branch. The amount of RMB 300,000 was recognised as income in 2010 as
the project was completed.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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a)

b)

<)

d)

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
 E_ T ——F+_A=1+—HLFE

(&)

ngi_iﬁﬂ RV R R B R
AT BERBAEEREZEREE
ETHRERKES  HRABRFARAARE

500,000 sCHY#E) - AR 50,0007T (=%

——4F : AR#50,0007T)BREBHER

MR A E A FRERBUA

EAfgg F+ A/ ORYIT R R B
YT BB E R T AR S500,0007TH)
%ﬁE}J R ARRMEEAFERE R
ﬁ})—E H‘ﬂﬁ °© \ﬁEIEE %ﬁk?ﬁ ’ ?E?%/ﬁﬁ
YT R 225 B RO YN Th B IS BE A K 5
BHERT - LEHBFBEEE TR
TR E M B FORY T B BB © EHEAZK
ET?#]?KHX%%EZIEE BRI - MR R =
*:fﬁ&— fﬁﬁﬁwﬁtlﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂlﬁz)\ °©

R-ZBZWE+= A FImRIBRmE
BEREFRITEENMKXERERBEFTAR
%ummmﬁmﬁ%'WEﬂ%&&W
B BB ETHRERESE K=
TTRFLA  AEBESHEIEIAR
#1,000,000 7T * {ERMERK AR © SR
B BAEEE - MAOARYE 250,000 (=%
——% : AR#287,0007T) DIREBHE
KR B (5 A SF IR FER AUA ©
REZZFZRF+=A FINTHBEBETF
AR # 400,000 TH B - (EATREER
%%%%@%ﬁmﬁﬁoﬂﬁﬁﬁa%ﬁ
% BRRYITRERENE S B ERR
BOBRAT  WHEBHHHBBEEE - WE
REZTE——FR T ——FHEIAWBHE
BRA o
RZZZENEXA FYMRERGS B
BT ARK300,000THIME - 1EARIFZRE
HABTRTHERERSHBELENRE - %
WHBEEETFRYMBERNS B - A
NZIE B B 7K+ BHARY300,000TH &
BRAZT—ZFHERBUEA -
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

f) In December 2009, a subsidy of RMB3,000,000 was granted by Shenzhen
Bureau of Science, Technology and Information Council for financing a
project to carry out the research and development of H1N1. The subsidy is
not required to be repaid to Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and
Information Council. The amount of RMB383,000 (2011: RMB382,000)
was recognised as income to match the research and development
expense of HIN1 incurred during the year.

9) In June 2010, a subsidy of RMB18,000,000 was granted by the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality pursuant to the preferential
treatments given to biological industry under the policies of the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality for the purpose of supporting
the relevant research and development projects. The amount of
RMB6,943,000 (2011: RMB5,299,000) was recognised as income to match
the research and development expenses incurred during the year.

h) In April 2011, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by Science, Industry,
Trade and Information Technology Commission of Shenzhen Municipality
for financing the research and development of #ZEHINTRRHESZE H
The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount
of RMB360,000 was recognised as income to match the research and
development expenses incurred during the year 2011.

i) In December 2008, a subsidy of RMB450,000 was granted by @/
BEXEBERMF and @INTHEUS for financing the research and
development of KYMEEEEEIRF. The subsidy is not required to be
repaid to the authorities. The amount of RMB450,000 was recognised as
income to match the research and development expenses incurred during
the year 2011.

))  In December 2008, a subsidy of RMB370,000 was granted by #&/H &+
BB and f@MMRIEEAME for financing the research and development
of KIIRFREIEEK 5 7. The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the
authorities as the Group obtained the approval for the project. The amount
of RMB 370,000 was recognised as income to match the research and
development expenses incurred during the year 2010.

k) In September 2009, a subsidy of RMB100,000 was granted by @M &
ZERIZRITF for financing the research and development of FHEA.
The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount
of RMB100,000 was recognised as income to match the research and
development expenses incurred during the year 2011.

) During the year 2012, the Group obtained several subsidies with a
total of approximately RMB1,405,000 (2011: RMB2,321,000) from
local government authorities for financing the relevant research and
development projects. These subsidies are not required to be repaid to the
authorities. The amount of RMB1,285,000 was recognised as income to
match with research and development expenses.
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EIE W R (48)
fia: : ()

f)

h)

RZZTAE+=—F  FIWmREIEM
EE{tZEE’K T ARK 3,000,000 LA
B EAETHIERHININEBEE - %48
Eﬁﬂfﬁﬂéﬁ%?ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬂﬁ E&
B€ - AR#¥383,000L(ZFE——%: A
R#382,0000) & BEERRBKAR
NREREREENHINTIFERS -

RZFE—ZTFEXA FITARBFR
BHUEMEXENEERERTARE
18,000,000 LY/ BN 1E R ETAERA TR 7T I
FZIEE NS - ARM6,943,0007T (=
T——4: AR#¥5,299,000) &EEER
FERFERABRANLERERNE LN
BRI o

#:?——imﬁ! FINEE - T - 7y
EERMZEEE T AR 400,000
mﬁ%ﬁ%uﬁ%ﬁﬂmmﬁmﬁaﬁ
c ZAERTEETEAKE - AR
3&@%M$%EEEDEWAMEé%:
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RZZBENE+_A BINHTERERE
KAt REEMN T B BE T AR 450,000
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PRABE - ZHPHEFTEETEBE
% - AR¥450,0000 S5 CEERARA
NEEER =S ——FHREENMERS -

RZZEZNE+=F BNTHEBESR
M RIEE T BT AR 370,000 TH)
B ERMTE RBBCKDIARE B
BIMEE - LB B EEETABEE -
BEAEBERBSZEENIE . AR
370,000 CH & FEE EHER BRAUE AR
—E-TEELENWERAS -

R-ZZETZAENLA BNTERERER
BT AR 100,000/ 8) - {EATT
LAZERAFMNME - XM EBAEET
ERAKIE - ARB100,0000& 580 EERER
ABWMANRER - ——FHREEH
BHX -

RZTE—ZF  AEERZEEHRITHE
PIEL 15 4258 49 A R % 1,405,000 (=&
—— & AR%2,321,0007T) K% B #
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note
4 and note 30, there were no other forms of government assistance

from which the Group has directly benefited.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
 E_ T ——F+_A=1+—HLFE

30. EZE W (48)
BERS - B4R 305 R BB
O o 7 g2 B 4 H T 3 0 BRT 8 B o
HEE% -

31. Share Capital 31. AR
2012 2011
Number Number
of shares of shares 2012 2011
—Z2--F —E——F
REE RiHEE —E--F% —2——F
Note ‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FizE T T ARET T ARETT
Registered, issued and fully paid: ETE - BETRBRRA -
Domestic shares of RMBO.10 each SREEAR.10T
HRER () 1,252,000 1,252,000 125,200 125,200
H shares of RMBO0.10 each SREMBAREC.10T
IHAR (ii) 426,000 426,000 42,600 42,600

Registered, issued and fully paid:
At 1 January and at 31 December

R-A—-AK
t=A=+-A

The owners of domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Notes:

i) The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange.

BT  DEITRARER -

1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800

1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800

WE BN HR BB AB ERET R EIRE
B UBERRARREH AT —
T - MERNEBREHBRHERRBHRTEES
BRIZER -

ff

R

) AEBRRBARMEFESRZ S LT °

i) The H shares have been issued and listed on the Growth Enterprises i) HREEZZEZERAFNAARABEFTIEIRE

Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 5 September

2005.

BMARZMARRRAIER LR o
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3

)

BT —_F+_A=+—HILFE
2. Reserves 32. #1B
a) The Group a) A&KH
The Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and AEBRAFERATFENFESER
prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in E) BN ARSEHRANZR
equity.
b) The Company b) Z&AAF
Statutory
Share reserve Accumulated
premium fund losses Total
R5EE EERAE ZitEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®¥TR AR¥TR
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—H—H 554,844 3,330 (130,024) 428,150
Profit for the year and total AN
comprehensive income MAFEEH
for the year Waiez - = 2,390 2,390
At 31 December 2011 R-ZB——F+—-"A=+—H
and 1 January 2012 r=—ZF——F—H—H 554,844 3,330 (127,634) 430,540
Profit for the year and total REZ A
comprehensive income RAFEEZE
for the year sS4 za - - 4,778 4,778
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+-_fA=+—H 554,844 3,330 (122,856) 435,318
Under the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Company’s RIBERBEDERERARARARNERE
articles of association, the Company has to make provision to the BRAR - RRARAREE REIRER
statutory reserve fund from its net profit after tax but before dividend FIBE BRI 2B 1F H AR B 5 UK AT &Y AE T
distribution. BAES -
Share premium o ROERE
Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in excess of REBETZROEENRD EBLHEE

their par value less share issue expenses.
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32. Reserves (Continued)

d)

e)

f)

g)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the difference between the total amount
of fair value of shares issued to the immediate holding company and
the amount of the net assets value acquired during the acquisition of
Neptunus Fuyao.

Statutory Reserve Fund

The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
reserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of the
Company'’s issued share capital. Any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or
for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the remaining balance
is not less than 20% of the issued share capital after such capitalisation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of a jointly controlled
entity. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(s).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the Company had no distributable reserves,
while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and regulations,
amounted to approximately RMB122,856,000 (2011: approximately
RMB127,634,000).

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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e)

f)

g)
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 E—E——Ft+ - A=1+—HILFE

fié s (&)

A
EARBEAEBERAAETHRGA
AFERERRNEE T REC WBEE
FEZMMER -

EEAE
ARBRELBERBEPREEZIM KR
ROMAN10% DEEEEATE  BEEXRH
BREBEINARREHITRANS0% A
b o NAR]AEZ(FH AR BRIMNERK < 0%
EABRAAARBMER  HEAMRK
o EBRBEATONETEBENERED
BEBITRA20% °

BE 7 5

PE W B AR I R ) A8 O B 7%
RITEENMBINEZER - ZHBEIRIE
B RE 1(s) PR & AT R AR -

2 AR
RZFE——F+=-A=+—8 ' ARFL
EOHIRMEE MRARRABERA
AIRERETERAAGE  HR2FEEA
AR#122,856,000 T (=ZF——4F : HA
R#127,634,0007T) °
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32. Reserves (Continued)

h) Capital management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, entrusted
loans from the immediate parent company and financial assistance
from fellow subsidiary and immediate parent company) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends
plus adjusted net debt.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2011, was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The
gearing ratio at 31 December 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

32.

h)

feti fh (78)

wAEE
AEBERARNE B ARRAEERFE
BEMEED TR NBEARTERD
BRABHMFISIAEE SRS - TER
BRI BB LR K E R SRS S (B R A 2
RAEGRE -

AEBERERERRIREELERNE
B UHEFESRROR(TEERSEE
IKFER) BB B AR TS R B 2 &
REFNTE  TERBEEBERTNHESY
BARGEBIELAR -

AEBRFEFRCHBEAR L KMEE
EREEAGEE UM E > ARERE
FEBRERBER (BEFERRITEER
BEERARZAEREREZNBARRE
BEARNHBEER) INIE R HDIRAE
BAEEMAEEEY  KHEELXBERE
=T AR R 3 R AT 0 R AR B 5 0 A8 F
EREFHE -

RZE——F  AKEHIMNKER_T
——FHR AEFELBELER3I0%
F70%2H - ARFRAREEARBL
X AEEA S HEIRMS FREARS
S BTG ARREEERN -
HFHEEREKEEEENRLAE -
RZE—ZFR=ZF——F+ZA=+—
HRERBELERQOT

138 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



32. Reserves (Continued)

h)

33.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

32. &tk (&)

Capital management (Continued) h) BXREE
Note 2012 2011
M —B-C-F —T——%
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Total borrowings BB
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt SRITIEE 27 86,000 76,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate HESAREER
parent Company 29 9,000 9,000
Financial assistance from a fellow B RHEB AR ER
subsidiary 26(ii) 1,000 -
Financial assistance from the BEESARUEER
immediate parent company 26(iii) 2,300 -
98,300 85,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REeRIREEEY 25 (248,366) (226,675)
Adjusted net surplus KRR RS (150,066) (141,675)
Total equity Ak 518,354 486,276
Gearing ratio BARBELE N/A N/A

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the gearing ratio of the Group was
nil. Except for a subsidiary of the Group is subject to externally imposed
capital requirements under lending arrangements in interest-bearing
bank borrowings as disclosed in note 27, neither the company nor its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Contingent Liability
At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the Company
had any significant contingent liability.

RZE——FER_FT——F+_A=+—
B AEENERBBLEELE - RAKE

B ERARRERE

BENARINRER

FRTE MR BISNGRARKT FE27 PR ER) © R ]
sk H BT A Rl R KRR B E 83 A= 512K

BARERRE

33. AEE

RERPERE - NERERA R B EA
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

a) Credit risk
The Group
i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults.

i) Inrespect of trade and other receivables, in order to minimise risk,
the management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position and conditions
are performed on each and every major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 90 days from the date of
billing.

i) In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The default risk of the industry and location in
which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
concentrations of credit risk for which individual trade or other
receivable’s balance exceeds 10% of the total trade and other
receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 23.

140 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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34. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

a)

b)

Polices (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
iv)  Deposits with financial institutions

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established credit rating
or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has certain concentration of
credit risk as 61% (2011: 65%) of total cash and cash equivalents
were deposited with two financial institution in China with high credit
ratings.

The Company

As at 31 December 2012, the Company has certain concentration of
credit risk as 99% (2011: 96%) of total cash and cash equivalents
were deposited with two financial institution in China with high credit
ratings.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquid fund. As at 31 December 2012, the Group has available un-
utilised banking facilities of approximately RMB5,379,000 (2011:
RMB1,135,000) details of which are disclosed in note 27.

The following liquidity and interest risk tables set out the weighted
average effective interest rate and the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company is required to pay:

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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sERERERBRRBER (&)

FERR (&)
iv) RE@EREZER

REEFHIRE NS BB ORIE(SE
ERR ZSTREBDEIZIR
RN EEFRSAEMEE ERZE
TREBESZEREENA  BE
EBTrEBEARRST TERITEE

rEEH
RZZE——F+_-_A=+—H BaREH
61%(—F——F :65% ) HNELRELSE
EVERRAMRETENSEETR SR
HrE - AEAEBEEETEESTRAR -

AKRE]
R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—H BrREef
99% (—ZZE——4F : 96% ) HIRE RIREE
BOMERAMREFTENSEETR S/
® ARARAREE T EEESRAR -

REE R K
AEEETENESEEEEEERNFNE
SEEER BHEURSASETEHKR
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ATEHERBTRBAESCT K RETE
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AT ESERBIRERBNEALEZER
B UAENEHREHRABEST K - N
EEEKBRITEEEARDESHNEER
BeMR-_E——F+-A=+—H &E&E
Er R ARTEE RO ARYS,379,000
T(ZF——4% : AR®1,135,0007) * &F
B BRI 27 -

THRBE S KA XE R 2R
RRAEERARB R EENINEFS
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. M REKREE B ZEREER (8)
Polices (Continued)
b). Liquidity risk (Continued) b) REBELE (&)
i) The Group ) AEEH
012 0N
og-If 3%
Weighted More than ~ More than Total Weighted Morethan ~ More than Total
average  Within  Tyearbut  2yearsbut contractual alerage Within -~ 1yearbut 2 yearsbut contractual

cffecive  1yearor lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted ~ Camying  effectve  fyearor  lessthan  lessthen  Morethan undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate ondemand  2yeas  Syeas  Syears castflow  amount interestrate ondemand  2yes  Syeas  Syeas  cshflow amount

il Al
nETH R-5RE BE-F BERE #iEgRE MERy R-ERE BB BERE FERE
EEflz BEZRR [EORRE EIWEE BEIE REME  REE ERAE BEEN ROIRE BONRE  BARR  MESE FEE
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 % RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBIOO0  RMB'000
ARETT ARMTT AR®TR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR MBI ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARRTR
Sevedbankloans BEERTER
Variable rates LS 6% 89,54 - - - 89,524 86,000 623% 710n - - - 7101 76,000

Entrsted loans from ~~ EERAR]

immediate parent FRRR

company - 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000 5% 9450 - - - 9450 9,000
- Inerestbearing inancial - REABRAFH

asstance from the GEEEE)

immediate parent

Company 6% 21380 = = - W3R B0 : - - - - - -
- Iterest-bearng financil ~RERZHERT

asistance fom a GEEEE)

fellow subsidiary 0% 10,037 - - - 1007 10,000 = = = = = = =
Amount due to ENEESATNE
immediate parent
company - 16,232 - - - 16,232 16,232 - 18433 - - - 18433 18433
Amount due o EfRZNBATE
Tellow subsidiaies - 3298 - - - 3298 3298 - 87 - - - 87 867
Trade and other EREAREDERTE
payables - 159,159 - - - 159159 159,159 - 112,926 - - - 196 1196
311,630 - - - 3830 306689 218748 - - - 288 2176
*  The immediate parent company agreed to waive interest on the entrusted * HEBRSRATRE#HRSE AR 9,000,0007TH
loan of RMB9,000,000. ZrtE R TR -
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Polices (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

b)

)
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34. B EKREE B ERBK (&)

b) RBEZEE (&)

ii)  The Company i) AR A
012 011
8% .
Weighted More than  More than Total Weighted Morethan  More than Total
average Within ~1yearbut 2 years but contractual alerage Within - 1yearbut ~ 2yearshut contractual
effective ~ Tyearor lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Camying  effectie  fyeror  lessthan  lessthen  Morethan undiscounted  Carying
infeestrate  ondemand  2years  Syeas  Syears castflow  amount interestrate  ondemand 2 years 5 years Syeas  ashflow  amount
af &
WEYE W-FRE RE-F BERF FiR5E MRy R-FRx BEE  BERE Fiize
REd= BEEZRE BONRE @OMREF @ERE  REME 0 BEE IR RERM BONRE EJRIE  BERE  MBEE  BEE
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 % RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMBI000
ARETR ARMTT ARBTn ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR
Entnsted loans fom ~~ EBSA7
immediate Rk
parent company - 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000 5% 9450 - - - 9450 9,000
Interest-bearing REERBLTN
financelasistance~~ HSEHED
from immediate
parent company 6% 1380 = = - W30 23000 = = = = = = =
Amount due to EEESNTE
mmediate
parent company - 290 - - - 290 2902 - 5103 = = = 5103 5103
Amountdue to EfHEATE
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 1353 - - - 1353 1353
Amountdue to EiRZNEAE
fellow subsidiares - 281 - - - 2813 281 - 53 - - - 53 536
Trade and other NG REEN
payables - 8158 - - - 8158 8158 - 6810 - - - 6810 6810
7% - - -am sn B - - - BRI
@ The immediate parent company agreed to waive interest on the entrusted @ HESQRRE#H 2 AR 9,000,000 T4
loan of RMB9,000,000. RREBHOFS o
Interest rate risk o FEERK
The Group KEE

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings which are at
variable interest rates.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately RMB860,000 (2011:

RMB850,000).

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE

AEEEYEMAEBBHTHER - T
= AR B 0 BT B SR 1T 5 B VT BB

o

R-ZE——F+_A=+—H HAXRE
25 H0 8 A 100 ¢ T P A L E e
T REBOBRREER R BEIEE
WA 1A A R 860,000 T (=T ——
& : AR¥850,0007T) °
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

<)

d)

Polices (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis points (2011: 100 basis points) increase or decrease in
interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to the
executive directors and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2011.

The Company
As the Company has no significant bank deposits and interest bearing
liabilities, the executive directors consider the risk is not significant.

Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group's functional currency is Renminbi as
substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi. The
Group'’s transactional foreign exchange exposure was insignificant.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, converted using
the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

34.

(9]

d)

sEREE R BRREBER (&)

AzE b (E)
FERES T IR S RBPLERA 2 F R
ERRETE - oM IBER2RBLERA H
REESH T EARBEEFTE S KEE MR
o FERAI00EZ(ZZ——F : 100E
I WMSBR D TR R EEEE A BERED
FERABEFRFER - TERTESHE
B HE MR RSB HTE - DN
BT ——FHRMEEETT

A2 ]
HRARRYEEANRTEREHNE A
B BTEERRARALTERX -

B R

BA - WEARMIMNERRMEIPEE - &
RATBEZXBERRA A AARE
B BAKENNEEERARE - K&
B BINERBEDN
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Rz BAANREZS
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34. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

d)

Polices (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
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34. BRI EIE B R R BUR (&)

d) E#¥ERE)

The Group REE
2012 2011
—B-C-F —B——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY
United States Dollars ETT 49,444 111,357
Hong Kong Dollars BIT 17,638 25,600
Net exposure arising from recognised FE#REEAXEE
assets [\ B 5 B 67,082 136,957
The Company rEE
2012 2011
—B-C=F —E——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY
United States Dollars ESyI 49,396 111,308
Hong Kong Dollars BT 17,622 25,585
Net exposure arising from recognised AEBREEAX G
assets [B\ R 67,018 136,893

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Polices (Continued)
d) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's
and the Company’s profit after tax and accumulated loss that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group and the Company
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained

34. M EREEERE

d) EHEEER(

&)

BRE DT

REHRBAERE - BRE

SRBUR (48)

Hip = e & &

ZD

o AN B KRR B 8 N E E R A B E
ERAIEEL S EAKE kAR R
Bgm N & RETEENG B 25MT -

constant.
The Group REH
2012 2011
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange rates accumulated loss  exchange rates accumulated loss
IMEEZR HBRBEBRIR SNEFESR  HRRTE R A K
2, (fd) ReEEHEE ZCRd)  BitEEmpe
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5% 882 5% 1,280
(5%) (882) (5%) (1,280)
United States Dollars e 5% 2,472 5% 5,568
(5%) (2,472) (5%) (5,568)
The Company NG|
2012 2011
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange rates accumulated loss exchange rates accumulated loss
SMEEE HRBEENR SNERESR  HIRRTLIEIE I R
2/ 08d) BEBEHNEE i CRd)  RitEBHTE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5% 881 5% 1,279
(5%) (881) (5%) (1,279)
United States Dollars = 5% 2,470 5% 5,565
(5%) (2,470) (5%) (5,565)
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34. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

d)

e)

f)

Polices (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ and the Company’s profit after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, converted into Renminbi at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group and the Company which
expose the Group and the Company to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2011.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Fair values

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts
of interest-bearing bank borrowings and entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company approximate their fair values.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in
estimating the fair values of the following financial instruments.

i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

AT ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLD A
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34. M AMREE B ERBK (&)

d) E#¥ERE)
ERMINROFZERARMAREEET
EEBRAARRZBYERRAELIR
ERHERTZEXBRE/ARBUHEZ
5|z FREOBR TR &8 ) B Aot ©

BRENNMECBRREXEHCERANEN
AEARBERARBMFEZHMBEITAM
R MaZELASAEERARANRZ
BB R ARZINERR - —F——%F
Z M INAME R BT o

EEERR  ARERUPEREK ZAR KR
BERBRAFERN Z R - SURE DT INE
BBz R NEARRE

e) A¥HE
ReRBEEEY - EUGKIE R HMEK
FIE - B ERERREBGRIAEN A FEEE
REEES  REAZZSHE I AKX
RIEHRNEE - A EBTEILREEEA
AEEEFNEAEEELEQAFERS °

f) AFPEME
TXHABF T BT AN R FEMRA
B EETNERRR °

) WEEHREE
RNFEURARRBERRHOBELBLUS
BTARAMSEKUBETE -
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35. Material Related Party Transactions 35.

During the year, the Group and the Company have the following
material transactions with related parties.

a) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group entered
into certain continuing connected transactions.

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year:

Related party transactions with the immediate parent

BERBEEIRS
MAERERN  AEBERAAT S EEES
EITTHEARS

a) MEBE_T-——_F+-_HA=+—ALt
FE  AKEFLETHERERS

b) AEERAFENGHEMEFHETT
FIERR S ¢

HEBRARETHHRELRS

company
Name of
related parties Relationship Nature of transactions 2012 201
BELER BE RatE ~B-CF —2——F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARBT AREFT
Neptunus Immediate parent Entrusted loans from immediate (i)ii) 9,000 9,000
Bio-engineering company parent company
BIEY BE&RA EBRRAETER
Obtained additional entrusted loans
from immediate parent company (i) 30,000 -
BERSAREREINIZTER
Accrued interest for the entrusted loan 810 1,758
it RIS
Interest-bearing financial assistance (i) 23,000 -
WS aHER
Obtained additional interest 30,000 -
- bearing financial assistance
from immedlate parent company (i)
BEBNAREREINNEHEEY
Accrued interest for the 590 4,285

interest-bearing assistance

MEEBERHHE
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

Entrusted loans from the immediate parent company

i)

In April 2007, the Group obtained a RMB39,000,000 interest-
bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on 5 April 2009.

On 13 December 2007, the Group obtained a RMB9,000,000
interest-bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on 5 April 2009.

On 2 December 2008, the immediate parent company agreed to
extend the repayment date of the above two entrusted loans for at
least one year to 5 April 2010.

On 18 March 2010, the immediate parent company agreed to
further extend the repayment dates of the entrusted loans to 5 April
2011.

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of the entrusted loan in the amount
of RMB9,000,000 unless and until: (1) the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the
operations of the Company and/or its business objectives as set
out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August
2005 (the “Prospectus”); and (2) each of the independent non-
executive directors was of the opinion that the repayment of
such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect
the operations of the Company and/or the implementation of its
business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company
would make an announcement in respect of the decision of the
independent non-executive directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the
relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 attributable to the entrusted loan in the
amount of RMB9,000,000 was waived by Neptunus Bio-engineering
for both 2011 and 2012.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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5. ERBEELR S (&)

b) AEERNAFEAZMEREESTETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

it
PR [S7Na e e

) R-ZZTZTLFWNA A£EEBHE
TEMESHEZXBERARE
39,000,0007T ° ZFEERAEEA -
BEWNBSERER-_TTNFMNA
ARAEE-

RZZZ+F+T_A+=H  &x&E
BETEMESHEZTERAR
#9,000,0007T ° It ZFEERAEIK
- BEHMESE  ER-_ZTNF
MARABEE -

RZZZEN\F+=-A=-8 HESAD
AIREER MMEAREREED
BL—FE_FT-TFWARA -

RZZ—FF=A+/\B - EBEA
AREE-—FERE_FT——FNA
AH -

R-ZT——FMARB EESRAQ
RE—FTREERZAERARE
9,000,000 TR EEH - RIERET
2 (WVEEZREZAETETSY
HRARRR_ZEZERAFNA=TI
BHZEMBRER ([HBRER] AR
NREE R, HNEZEEZERTF
FE D RQ)EBNIFNITEEIREA
EEZBRRETETETSHIRE
RERNAQARLER HHEER
EHETEXTATE  BARAH
MBI IEMITEETNEQ)BATERE
BHAE  RO)ARA RN BB BE
EEHBERSRRRBEF -

R_B——FR_F——F - F5tls
K AFR®9,000,000 T ERTFIEAR
¥ 450,000 TG EEMERE ©

2012F 5 43 149



Notes to the Financial Statements

P e

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

ES — ==
4= —=

—HE+-A=1t—HItEE

35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

i)

(Continued)

On 25 November 2011, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in
the amount of RMB39,000,000.

On 25 March 2012, the Company obtained a RMB30,000,000
interest-bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 0.5% per month and
repayable within one year.

On 4 September 2012, the Company repaid the entrusted loan in
amount of RMB30,000,000.

The financial assistance was unsecured, bearing interest ranging
from 5.31% to 5.81%, and repayable on demand.

The Company repaid the finance assistance in the amount of
approximately RMB18,810,000 and approximately RMB72,345,000
on 15 June 2011 and 25 November 201 Trespectively.

On 5 September 2012, the Company obtained RMB30,000,000
interest-bearing financial assistance. The financial assistance
is unsecured, bearing interest at 6%. On 31 December 2012,
the Company repaid the financial assistance in the amount of
RMB7,000,000.

35. E K8

by AEBERAFEANEGE
FBEBARRS

fies -

i)

BHERS (88)

1RRETTET T
(&)

(#)
(%)

RZF——F+—HA=+HHB &
EENZREREBEARR
39,000,0007T

RZF——F=A=+HB ' &ARF
B TEYMES —EMNERTBRA
R #30,000,0007C ° & 7L 18 3K & EIK
1 B ANB0SERER—FRIEE -

R-ZT——FhAWA  AREEE
Z B3 AR 30,000,000 T ©

TS A B BRI

BENT531%
£581% REERKTHE

HER -

n= EAH+£E& =——
$+ A=+AAB  AREHHIEE
W%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁAE%mﬁmomﬁ
72,345,000 7T °

R-ZT——FNARA  NARES
P 581 7% & Bh A R % 30,000,0007T °
MBS E B AEETE RIS 6E -
R-ZB——F+-A=+—0 ' &A
RIEEMISE B ARK7,000,0007T °
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35. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

5. ERBEELR S (&)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

AREERAFENEHEBAETETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

ERAMEARETHNREIRS

Name of
related parties Relationship Nature of transactions 2012 2011
HEL AR B REME E-CF —2——f
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTT ARBFT
Neptunus Fellow Reimbursement of water, (iii), (v) 278 196
Pharmaceutical subsidiary electricity and fuel costs
BEER RZAKBAR KB RIREI A& TR
Management fees (iii), (vi) - 10
ERER
Property management Fees (iii), (vi) - 60
MEEEER
R & D service income (iif), (vii) - 2,000
RERBEA
Acquisition of 20% equity interest (iii), (x) - 200
of Jiangsu Neptunus
WEBTE 8 T20% M
Purchase of raw materials (iii), (ix) 304 293
FBERIE
Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow Sales of goods (iii), (ix) 7,79 7,099
Changjian subsidiary HEEY
Pharmaceutical RZHBAR
Co., Ltd
RIS ERE
BEARRA
Hangzhou Fellow Processing income (iii), (ix) 436 50
Neptunus Bio- subsidiary RIEBA
engineering Co.,Ltd EER)EING Disposal of plant and (i), (viii) = 50
MEZED equipment
TEERARA HERE KR

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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35. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

5. ERBELXRS (&)

b) AKERAFEARNZEFESETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

EEAMBLARETHHRELIRS

(Continued) (#&)
Name of
related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note 2012 2011
BELER BE% RXHHE i Z2-ZF —2——f
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Zhejiang Neptunus Fellow Sales of goods (i), (ix) 205 193
Pharmaceutical subsidiary HEEN
Co. Ltd BESH PN
I TRE
ARAA
Shandong Fellow Sales of goods (i), (ix) 203 34
Neptunus Yihe subsidiary HEEY
Pharmaceutical BN
Company Limited Interest-bearing (iii), (xii) 10,000 -
WG ERTEEE financial assistance
BRRA MR EBEE
Accrued interest for the 430 -
interest-bearing assistance
Wit S BT A BT 7 &
Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow Commission income (iv), (xi) 663 -
Jiankang Technology subsidiary AelA
Development EELENE
Company Ltd
AEEREREER
BRATA
Notes: FiteE
i)~ The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties is iii) ﬁt%@gﬁﬁj%%;&/ﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁ
also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. SENREERE AT
iv)  The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties iv) &t%?ﬁgﬁﬁg%ﬁﬂ_&@iﬂ_‘ﬁﬁﬁ
is also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. The ﬁﬁqﬁ%&%@\ﬂ c RAFEER
director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Feng is also a director of these RELTENTALSHEETNES -
related parties.
v)  The reimbursement of water, electricity and fuel costs was based on v) 733&%”‘*452?556%%15%?%4;%
pre-agreed rates with reference to the Group’s production activities. @EE%QT& R (B AR
= E °
vi)  The management fees and property management fees were charged vi) @%%@Em RERERNRBELER
at pre-agreed rates. & EEEULER o
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

vii)

viii)

iX)

X)

Xi)

xii)

The R & D service income was charged at pre-agreed rates.

During the year 2011, the Company disposed of plant and
equipment with a carrying amount of approximately R\VIB73,000 to
Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd., at the consideration
of RMB50,000.

The purchases, sales and processing income received were
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms as
those charged to and contracted with other third party suppliers and
customers respectively.

On 8 June 2011, the Company entered into a sales and purchases
agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical for the acquisition of
the 20% equity interest in Jiangsu Neptunus for a consideration of
RMB200,000.

On 16 October 2012, the Company entered into a 2-year
distribution agreement with Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang
Technology Development Company Limited. The commission income
derived from the distribution of food products and healthcare food
products were made in the ordinary cause of business and at the
terms agreed by both parties.

On 27 April 2012, the Group obtained RMB10,000,000 interest-
bearing financial assistance. The financial assistance is unsecured,
bearing interest at 6%.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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5. ERBEERRS (8)

b) AEERNAFEAZMEREESTETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

ERAMBLARNETHNHEELIRS
(%)

BieE - (&)

T3 BRI WA T IR TR L W ik O (B AR UK
HY °

vii)

RZT——FR  ARARAEBAR
#50,0007T AN E EEMTIEHR
ARHEREEHARKET3,0007TH
RS R sR A o

viii)

ix) BUWEBHEE - HEREERATIR
—REBBIZD  REEME=TH#
&R e B P R] SLAV U K 7T 49 4R R
B GRFRETT -

x) RIZZE——FANB  ARRHEE
FERETVESEHZ  WREBLI&HS
F 20% &t - REAARY 200,000
7TEG

xi)y RIZTE—Z—F+A+H KAAAHE
FINTHE RN EERBRAAG
NREHE - AEME c KERER
mERERRNMAERARAEEL
BIREPET  BFRDOKEFRE -

R-ZE——FMA-+"H KEE
S AR 10,000,000 7T HI T S8 7
&Bh - M E IS AR AEIEF - B
KE6% °

Xii)
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

5. ERBELXRS (&)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEERAFENGHEMEFHETT
parties during the year: (Continued) HNERRS : (&)

Related party transactions with related party HERELETHEERS

Name of

related parties Relationship Nature of transactions 2012 2011

BELER B% RHHE —E--f —T——F

Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Mzt ARBTR ARBTL
Shenzhen Nepstar Related company Sales of goods (xiii) 5,817 6,632
Pharmaceutical BELT HEEN
Co., Ltd
("Nepstar Pharmaceutical”)
AMImETER
BEBRAR
()

Notes: ek -

xii)  The director of the immediate parent company, Mr. Zhang Si Min xii) BEEBAREERERLENARE
is also the director of the related party. The income received were FRPVEER K - BB ATIR —
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms as MEBBER  REHME=F%F
these charged to and contracted with other third party customers. FiT &1 3 89 W ER K2 5T 49 48 [&] &9 16 5

11>
o  Guarantees o HER
xiv) In 2011, Neptunus Bio-engineering provided a corporate guarantee xiv) RZT——F  BFTENHAEE

to the extent of RMB32,000,000 for the bank loan granted to the
Group (Note 27).

EENBETERBEELAEARYE
32,000,000 7T ifi #2 £ A Bl AR (B &E
27) °
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

d)  Financing arrangements

Notes to the Financial Statements

LYp e

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

5. ERBEELR S (&)

d) BELZH

The Group The Company
A5H Y|
Amounts due to Related interest Amounts due to Related interest
related parties expenses related parties expenses
EfBEr¢H REALHR EfBErEH REAERX
2012 201 212 2011 2012 2011 212 201

S%-cF “F-F ZB--F 3-fF RF “F-F “RCF “FF
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBO00
ARBFR AR¥Tn ARBFR ARETR ABMTR ARMTn ARMTR ARETR

Entrusted loans from the EBBARZRER
immediate parent company

Interest-bearing financial assistance EBSATMKEHER
from the immeiate parent company

Interest-bearing financial assistance REMBARNM S HHES
from a fellow subsidiary

9,000 9,000 810 1758 9,000 9,000 810 1,758
23,000 = 590 4285 23,000 = 590 4,285

10,000 = 430 = = = = =
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

d)

Financing arrangements (Continued)
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 29.

The interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate
parent company is unsecured, bearing interest at 6% (2011:
5.81%) and repayable on demand.

The interest-bearing financial assistance from a fellow subsidiary is
unsecured, bearing interest at 6% and repayable on demand.

The immediate parent company of the Group agreed to provide
two entrusted loans with a total amount of RMB48,000,000.
The entrusted loan with an amount of RMB39,000,000 has been
repaid on 25 November 2011.

On 26 March 2012, the immediate parent company of the Group
agreed to provide additional entrusted loan of RMB30,000,000,
the entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 0.5% per
month and was fully repaid on 4 September 2012.

5. ERBELXRS (&)

d)

BMERHE(E)
HER QR ARG R AR F
BRI EE 29 4K ER o

REEBESRARNKETHERA
K BR A% (T ——F:
5.81%) BEEEZEKTERE -

KERZKERROMNETEER S
BEER BXR6% BEEERTE
= o

AEENEBEEARRERNASEEIR
W IE 4 58 B A R #48,000,000 7T
R Z LK - B AR 39,000,000
TEAERER=_Z—F+—A
—t+HBEE-

R—BE——-F=F=-+ B &
SEEESRARBERBARE
30,000,000 STHIFEINE REMB R © 5% &
AERAEERRTGANOSE - WE
RZZE——FNANBBHEN -
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

e)  Outstanding balances with related parties

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
 E_ T ——F+_A=1+—HLFE

35. EREERRS ()
o) MRBHMBETLEL

The Group
rEE

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December

PEWBEE 5 RIE FEfREE A R
R+=A=+—H R+=A=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E-CF —T——4F —E——& T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARE®TT AR¥TRE ARETH

Entrusted loans from the HBSRRIZAER
immediate parent company
Amount due from/to the

immediate parent company

Amount due from/to fellow e e R R P B

subsidiaries: NEIFRIE
Neptunus Pharmaceutical BEREZE
Tongal Pharmaceutical ERRE

Zhejiang Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Neptunus
Changjian Pharmaceutical
Co., Limited

Shenzhen Neptunnus Jiankang  #IIMETEREEREEAR

Technology Development NG|
Company Limited
Shandong Neptunus Yihe
Pharmaceutical Company
Limited
Hangzhou Neptunus
Bio-engineering Co., Ltd.

Amounts due from FEUREE A RIFUA -
related companies:

Nepstar Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. 2R E 5%

The balances with these related companies are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable within one year.

e FE M BB & R B FUR

T ETBEFRAAF
ANEERREBERR LR

RSN E BEFR A

MINEEEYTRRERAR

= = 9,000 9,000

22 2,161 39,232 18,433

- 2,897 334 173

= = = 536

49 24 - -
2,830 1,176 - =
- - 2,534 =

- = 10,430 58

= = = 100
2,879 4,097 13,298 867
1,130 3,107 = =
4,031 9,365 61,530 28,300
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

e)  Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

5. ERBELXRS (&)

e) MHARBEMNRES &R (E)

The Company
NG
Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
PR BAE S TR ENBERLRE
RMt+=A=+—H R+t-A=t—H
2012 2011 2012 2011
=g-=% - % =g-=fF “"T—F%
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TE AR¥TR ARETH

Entrusted loans from the BB RAELER
immediate parent company

Amount due to the immediate ~ FEEBRARIFUIE
parent company:
Neptunus Bio-engineering

Amount due from/(to) a subsidiary: FEU /&P B A AU ¢

Ascendent Bio-technology NHRER R ERAF
Company Limited

Jiangsu Neptunus IEET

Neptunus Fuyao BEEE

Amount due from/to fellow e,/ e R R F /B A RIZUR

subsidiaries:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical BEEEE

Tongai Pharmaceutical EERRE

Shenzhen Neptunnus YT ERERR
Jiankang Technology ERERAF
Development Company
Limited

Shenzhen Neptunus RIBERBEEGRARF
Changjian Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd

- - 9,000 9,000
s - 25,902 5,103
61 47 - _
7,319 - - 1,353
51,855 12,000 - -
59,235 12,047 1,353
- 2,897 278 -
- - - 536
- - 2,535 -
28 - - -
28 2,897 2,813 536
59,263 14,944 37,715 15,992
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

f)

Key management personnel emoluments

Emoluments for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8 are as
follows:

Total emoluments are included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R M et

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

5. ERBEELR S (&)

fy FEEWEASHS
FTEEREAEMESBEINTAR
REENSE(RMF7REE) kX
HFETHESFHHES NS (R
SHHE) T

HEHEEERTEIRA] (RN

5(b)) Al °
2012 2011
—E-—-F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREFT
Salaries and other short-term e M EMRHE B R
employee benefits 2,891 2,809
Retirement scheme contributions B & 135 134
3,026 2,943

The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
are provided in the Reports of the directors.

9) HEE L (b) R (o) MRIET X 5B
BRHEER ETHRRNE20Z/MR
ENFRBEWEERD - BIER ETHRA
FENREZRFANEETERSE -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
BE-—T——F+-_A=t+—RAIEE

36. Disposal of a Jointly Controlled Entity

As mentioned in Note 13, the Group disposed of its jointly controlled
entity during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The net assets/(liabilities) at the date of disposal were as follows:

36. hE—FEHRZEHEE
BEMME3AL - ARERBE T ——
F+-A=t-BLEFEHELARLE)

TEE o

REEBRFEE (BE)WNT

Total
ok
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment LEN Y ] 228,383
Prepaid land lease payment TEf - AE & FRIE 18,553
Inventories F& 2,242
Deposit for acquisition of property, WY - BE &
plant and equipment RIS 354
Other receivables A FEUGRIE 8,368
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEE 10,652
Other payables H A e IR (25,496)
Short-term bank borrowings EHIRTTER (20,400)
222,656
Exchange reserve M 5 (1 4,155
226,811
Total consideration BRE 247,841
Gain on disposal HE — R E S
of a jointly controlled entity 21,030
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising AHEEARRS
on disposal MA (i) 58
Cash consideration received WHHIER 2 (& 247,841
Cash and cash equivalent disposal of ~ HEMIRE MRS EHE (10,652)
Net inflow of cash and cash RS —BHERZGE
equivalents in respect of disposal Re MESEEN
of jointly controlled entity WEMAFEE 237,189
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R M e

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012
HE_T——F+_-_fF=+—HIFE

37. Commitments 37. &I
a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2012 a) UTRZE——F+-_A=+—H*k
authorised and not provided for in the financial statements were IR KB A EIE I R R B 7S R E H 1
as follows: & :
The Group The Company
FEE VNG

2012 2011 2012 2011

—E-C-F —E2——F —B-C-F —T——F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TT AR®TR ARETT

Property, plant and equipment
Contracted for, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of 100% equity interest
of Neptunus Changjian
Others

Authorised, but not contracted for:
Plant and equipment
Land

Intangible assets

Contracted for, but not provided for:
Technical know-how, net of deposits

Authorised, but not contracted for:
Acquisition of Intangible Asset

Mk  BERRE
BETAMBARESS -
ME - BERRE
Y EREER
AR
Hit

ERUEERFTA -
i Kok s
T

BYEE

BRTAEARES -
SRR GNkRRe)

EATHLAERETAY -
WEETEE

10,497 13,101 4,518 =
5,080 = 5,080 =
= = = 1,820
15,577 13,101 9,598 1,820
= 63,836 = =
18,890 - = -
34,467 76,937 9,598 1,820
1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300
13,000 = 13,000 =
14,300 1,300 14,300 1,300
48,767 78,237 23,898 3,120
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37. Commitments (Continued) 37. A&IE (1)
b) At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments by W-—ZT——F+=-_A=+—H " RBE
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: ST 5B A5 A 4D B R 2R S (R & R
BEEITE
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——F IZB--fF —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARBTT ARWTR ARE®TZT

Within 1 year R—FR 4,068 407 307 314
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHERAFA 12,449 = - =
16,517 407 307 314
The Group as lessee leases office premises under operating lease AEBREBECEHELHEAE T
arrangements. Leases for the office premises are negotiated for NE - WAEMENFERLCHEAE—
one to five years term. None of the leases includes contingent ZRF c ZEHEW TN EHAEE ©
rental.
38. Immediate and Ultimate Controlling Parent 38. EE REm&EN

Company

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate and RZZE——F+-_A=+—0H EFRA

ultimate controlling parent company of the Group to be Shenzhen AEBEBHRAARKKERE AT SR

Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Neptunus Group RAYITEEEY T ERG AR A A RIR

Co., Ltd. respectively, which are incorporated in the PRC. Shenzhen NEEEERGERAR - MERFY

Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. produces consolidated financial A B RE A AT o 5§T5ﬂ\|?ﬁ535$¢%15fiﬁﬁ

statements for public use. DERATRERBIEARA
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39. Subsequent Events

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of a
subsidiary

On 11 December 2012, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering, the immediate
parent company of the Company and Shenzhen Netpunus Yinhe
Pharmaceutical Investment Company Limited (“Neptunus Yinhe”), a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, for the acquisition of the 100%
equity interests in Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”) for a consideration of
RMB5,080,000 of which RMB1,524,000 shall be payable to Neptunus
Bio-engineering and RMB3,556,000 shall be payable to Neptunus
Yinhe. Neptunus Changjian was principally engaged in the business of
sales and distribution of drugs, health supplements and food and is the
holder of the licenses in relation to sales and distribution of drugs and
health supplements and food. Neptunus Changjian ceased the business
before the acquisition. The acquisition was completed on 4 January
2013.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2012, total Group’s
revenue for the year would have been increased to approximately
RMB598,031,000 and the profit for the year would have been
increased to approximately RMB40,912,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
the revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2012, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results. Acquisition
related costs amounting to approximately RMB153,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred.

As at the date of this report, the Group has not finalised the fair value
assessment of assets and liabilities acquired through the acquisition
as at the date of acquisition. Due to the short time frame, the Group
had not yet collected all the books and record for valuation, and the
assessment of carrying amount of assets and liabilities of the acquiree is
still in progress.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 E_ T ——F+_A=T—HILFE

39. Hi8$=1H
ERNE-—EMBATKBEERSE

R-_T——&+-A+—H KAFHEAK
NAEESRRETEYRARTRRHK
BRAENRYITE TR TEEELEGR AR
(MgEHM )T BEE R - WER R
MEIREEHGRAR(IEBEIREDHN
>EEz - REAARKS5,080,000T @ &
AR 1,524,000 TESZ NGB TEY R
AR¥ 3,556,000 LA F4A/EG TR /8
FTREFZENEHERDHED - RER
MEMER BAEHEERSHESR -
RERMERNFAIEZEAEA - BEER
RAWEBBAT RIS - ZWBR =2 —=
F—HMHHEK °

RZZE—=F—A—HEKKE &
FEREEBEEFEEHENARE
598,031,000 7T &2 A F [E I E #5150 49 A
R #40,912,0007T - 5EERHEM A A
B WP —ERTAEBR_T——F—
A—BERBEEELEERMBREXERE
MG EEE W TRBIEARRERENTE
Al o W B AB R AN 49 A R85 153,000 7T I £
ATABEEAE -

RARERH  AEERKERBBBYK
BEEMUBNEENBEERERRE
BERATENME - AREME - REEWR
BISAERNGHENKRE R - wEE
TREENBEZRAESEZINEETS
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bZs —
x_=

BRI AT RAE
CHEER FLESEL-S 30
BATF A5 2 3R R A R i1 ) T REE B
m$X&ﬁmz£Xﬁ¢m%%igﬁ
BBBRTESEERRARYBE

40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements 40.
a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty a)
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

&‘ﬂéﬁﬁ&ﬁTﬂEﬁﬁ@f‘Eﬂjéﬁﬁlﬁ%E’ﬂé

AR - SR e

i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid ) YE BERREUARANEESE
lease payments
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value EEMAIKESEEHE AN FEREE
less cost to sell and its value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, KAMEREBEENRSE o 5
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present FREER - BT RIIE SR
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market REHBAKER  EFRANFTHEAEA
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific R IR TS B ERZE
to the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to ERTZEBEZHRAFINER  FF
the level of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The T UL A KR AL L B A 1E H E K H
Group uses all readily available information in determining an o AEBEFAMBHREANEREA]
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable KWE¢BEAENGHE - BIEEEM
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable —IS'ZHE!’JTE: % DA T2 U F 48 & B AN Y
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating costs. o hET SR E @57 iTﬁEE’\]
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on EEETEF EBERNTE BEZ-E
the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in additional E 7R 2R A aﬂz%’éﬁ@\\mﬂﬁ%%iﬁﬂ
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods. B2 REOBEERRX - 2WMALEER
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and RYE - BE K% 1%5’]&%@@&151‘}
prepaid lease payments as at the end of the reporting period e o R4 A AR 164,635,000 7T
are approximately RMB164,635,000 and RMB68,729,000 M AR¥ 68,729,000 7T °
respectively.

i)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment i) ¥ BERREITE

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recovered during the year. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Y - BE REBRELSEEMTEER
REENGTAIERAFHRNEERE
HIE - AETEMNMIMHREHEAR
BOFTERISE  ASETHYHE
ER A AT T Z - A ERF
%M$EI%WM§FmﬂEW¥E
% WEEREBRITEFHE

W SCRI AT A EANEE) - *X%%%
MEAXSIERE -
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40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

iii)

iv)

v)

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful debts
based on an evaluation of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, where applicable, at the end of each reporting period.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the trade and other
receivables balances and the historical write-off experience, net
of recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.
The carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period is
approximately RMB69,274,000.

Write-down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence of
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in the estimation.

Capitalised development expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. In the development phase of an internal
project, the Group has to exercise judgement to identify an
intangible asset and demonstrate that the asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. To demonstrate how an
intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,
the Group assesses the future economic benefits to be received
from the asset. If the asset will generate economic benefits only in
combination with other assets, the Group applies the concept of
cash-generating units.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 E_ T ——F+_A=1+—HLFE

40. ER ST R HE (&)

a) MM TIREEEZENEZERRE (E)
iii)  FEW L E A

\EE2RIBLARE  AEERBEEK

SRIA AR N H M FE YR IA /9 AT W B i e

R T - #RRRBEEE(WE
) - B TR EWGIERR R H

th JE UK SR TR 4 £ O AR e I JBE S ST H A0

BB E B E - WMREAR

BRSO B R - ATRe A ZEEZEING

WAEE SRAEEENEREERELD

B AR 69,274,000 7T °

iv) #EFE
FEBESETREFEOMOR - 1hF
BEt2EFERE ST - REIARK
EmmHEER K EEE &R L
Erm e o RIRMER - WEENK
HEEXREEREGEFATREFE - A
AEBEEMBFENEER - ERNTR
AREHLER  EREREENER
AJ BE ﬁﬁﬁ%Tﬂ b 5t e =
Ei_Tﬁ€$2¥iTE/\ e

v) EBAREREZH
MELHABEEMELENRAY  Rg
RUATHERATAREFTERNR T AE
T AR B AL R R SRR Y A B DA
FAREEERM ERI{T - ARFH
EERZEBEE WA NFERSKH
EZEE « ZEBENAEERRE
BRIz - EEMNEIRE AT A BIE
B ARRHABRGER EHFTEX
o RAERIE B ABME - A5EE
Pk B & B R M - ERARIE
BEBBRREEERKEERNE - B
AR T A BE A Q0] AT B R AR R 2R A
B AEEFEZEEEGES
BRRE TR - MBRZEEEERE
HEMEE—BOBERTHELELE
fla AIASEERASEASENMT
B o
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40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

Vi)

Vii)

viii)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on whether there has been
an impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 1(j)ii). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rate, and other assumptions underlying
the value-in-use calculations. The carrying amount as at the end
of reporting period is approximately RMB130,770,000.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives
involves management’s estimation. The Group reassesses the
useful life of the intangible assets and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the
future period.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilized, management’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period are approximately RMB1,308,000 and
RMB36,2 13,000 respectively.

40. &

EEETEET R E (&)

a) MENTREERZRNERRER (H)

vi)

EEEERE

BEE N E1()() W ETER - &R
SEBFHENEERGREETA
Ao AR AIR e EE BN S REIRE
FREBETEEETE - ZTEHER
CERAETEENRRERLEMED
B Er RBRER - BREBIATRRIAZR - AR
B AEBENEEEENSIEL M
BE - 2EHRBPLAEBNEARBALNAA
R ¥ 130,770,000 7T °

vii) BB E#E

BV EEREREEENEMF A&
FRERHE#E - BEAERFRY
REBEMMG - AKEEGLELE
ENAEAFR - WEAFHENR
RIGETEE - BRAERIAIRER EZF
BIHRE > MZBRMGEFTRREA[E T

B -

viii) FriFH

BEMSHRBEBSIRHEETRINA
REBEEBELNAE - AEEE
B ER SO EWERTIRR
BEE ANEBEHZERINFG
BRI E HIRT Al - AR R B A EE DI
WATE B - KAHEEERA N
ERNEEORRBEERBEAE - B
RELRTEFHIEE E R RAERHNE
Tt I AT PR VR 85 oK FA B 7S 4K S B
TERR BEHEMNTGHEIHBER
a0 SRR 7] A tH 3R FE AR AR 5 R 2 LA 4
EEFBEE  AeBERABINNE
EHRMBEEE - RREHKR BT/
BEENELCHEEENREED
B 49 A& A B #1,308,000 7T & A R
36,213,000 7T ©
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40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements 40. EEZFHETT R HIER (&)
(Continued)
a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) a) MHENIEERZENEZEZRRE(E)
ix) Deposit for acquisition of land ix) l/ﬁ? B TR IR T
At the end of reporting period, the Group has not yet completed REEHAR - A& E 3 oK 72 AL p
the Lands Acquisition for the new production base in Lianjiang. IR EEREMAINE - REB(GET
The Group estimates it will be completed in the first quarter BRZFE—=FF—FZRUE - M
in 2013. The deposit is refundable if the transaction is not RSWARTHKA FTREZE - ETH&
completed. The classification and the carrying amount of the SO ERARAEDREASEEY
deposit paid is based on the Group's estimates on completion of T R TER U T MR JE © 5% 1l
Lands Acquisition. Changes in this estimate could have significant .quEi’] '''''' CEEENIReN DB REERE
impact on the classification and carrying amount of the deposit AREAEARTE - NIREMR ' k@
paid. The carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period is @%’97/%}\&#} 17,330,000 7T °

approximately RMB17,330,000.

b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's b) EHAXREEETBENEZSTHE
accounting policies
In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and liabilities, the EEFTHMEEMBENERETDSEE K
Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future events SERTHEENRREHER 2 MPER
on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. These HZESEEMBBENFEEL THRE - %
estimates involve assumptions about such items as cash flows and :1&%5&&%%}5&@}%E’Jiﬂéﬁiiﬂﬁfﬁ
discount rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based ZHEMNBR A5EBREBENK
on historical experience and expectations of future events and are %ﬁa"u%ﬁ;ﬁ)}:%#é’ﬁﬁ sHEH GETFERE -
reviewed periodically. In addition to assumptions and estimations of WEHIEH o B ¥R R E )RR A 5T
future events, judgements are also made during the process of applying Gy REBHBSHBRREBEEETEER
the Group'’s accounting policies. FIEf -

RYIHBERBFEEVRMROBRAT  2012F 53 167



Notes to the Financial Statements

P e

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

HE-T——F+-A=1+—HILLFE
41. Possible Impact of Amendments, New 41.

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the Year ended 31 December

2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and Interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guildance'

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement'

Employee Benefits'

BE-8——F+=A=+—
17 B E AR E 4 o 2 3R

1E5] ~ #=]2ER

=/ 45

2=

KR BEE

BEEAMBRRAY  TEGHMASE

EHATREBEE-—ZE——FE+=-_HFA=1+—
HIEFE MARERRESET - eI E KB
1 o

BB SRS ER BAN B S &L
(B3I R) —ETNER

—T——FREH
ZEE

B IREER BRE-MBEER
ENEACCHIES) IS AEH 2

BT IRE ER B ISR
FIRRBBRE 5 95 2B ml K

HAERIE T 5 BHRBERESR?
CHES)

BB TSRS R RAVBHRE B
F10%  BBUME  CHREBEREM
WMEEAE1IRR BEIEE:
B RS ER BEES
F125 (BETA)

B IREER BEEE?
F10% - BBUB
WMERAE 125K
BRESEERE 27 %

CHES)

B RE ER SRTAS
E 95

BAB RS R REMBHREK
E 105

BB EIRE R BERH
E1158

BB TR A BENEMEER
F125% e

BN IREER NFEEFE'
%B%

ERETENE19 EEFF
B(ZT——F
1ERTIR)
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41. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the Year ended 31 December
2012 (Continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised on 2011) Separate Financial Statements'

HKAS 28 (as revised on 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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M BEZE——-F+ZA=+—

H LS E B BB RE R
1B5] ~ Ml R RBRENEE
8 (%)

BEGIERE27 EBERBERE
R(ZE—F
£3])

EBEHERFE 28 BEMELRE"
W(ZE—F
{?ET)

BRG] Hit2E=EEH
EREACCHES) 5|3k

BERGRTELE CRHEENCREE
325 (IBETA) KB ARHH 2

B (BRI BHE BAESEEDD
REEZEE) HIBRAG AT
—ZEE 205

! RIB—=F—A - HIZRHABRNFE
R EK

? N-Z—MF—HA—HHZRARNFE
HM A

3 REZE—AF— A HAZERARNFE
HREK

fRIEFEA B ZRFARNFE
R E K

$;‘%IE{E§WEWEZ$%EJ&1 R BB

SRR P RABEBREELNOT
Z-FEMARL AEESHNTHER
HEAREEEERMESEVBERREDE
EEATE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

T FEBERHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for TXHINAEERBER AT REENHEEREE
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial HEERE  DHESEEEAMKERME®RE
statements’ is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=1t—-HILEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—¥--F —T——% ZT-TF ZTENEF —FTT/\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE ARBTT AR%TE ARETR

RESULTS Ed5

TURNOVER ] 530,458 474,652 38,256 3,696 16,310
Cost of sales SHERMA (334,960) (309,811) (25,876) (2,719) (7.477)
Gross profit EA 195,498 164,841 12,380 977 8,833

Other revenue Hg A 11,371 9,973 8,361 712 2,650

Other net income HAW N F5E 625 22,853 28,859 6,344 =
Selling and distribution costs HERD RS (75,743) (63,772) (7,232) (1,157) (3,242)
Administrative expenses GG (48,253) (56,460) (37,200) (25,166) (13,047)
Other operating expenses HAab R (36,305) (20,853) (20,350) (7,523) (20,234)
Profit/(Loss) from operations mgRF/ (B518) 47,193 56,582 (15,182) (25,813) (25,040)
Finance costs BMsER (6,590) (14,084) (15,330) (11,663) (5,831)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION B ARF (B518) 40,603 42,498 (30,512) (37,476) (30,871)
Income Tax Fig®t (4,525) (13,045) 131 = 276

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RERRF,/(E518) 36,078 29,453 (30,381) (37,476) (30,595)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AT

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY VA/NGIEZ =N 24,298 21,686 (30,104) (37,476) (30,595)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEE R RS 11,780 7,767 (277) = =

36,078 29,453 (30,381) (37,476) (30,595)
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Five Year Financial Summary
I F B 5 47 22

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—-HLEFE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-—F —E——4F —E-TF —ETNEF —EENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT AREETFIT AREETIT AREFTT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHEE
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 870,736 761,317 985,700 343,426 299,128
TOTAL LIABILITIES waE (352,382) (275,041) (529,832) (310,075) (228,266)
518,354 486,276 455,868 33,351 70,862

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation. Government grant related to an expense item
was presented in other revenue, and is reclassified and deducted directly
from related borrowing cost in order to provide more relevant information to
the users of the financial statements.

ETHRSBEEFT D BUTARFENZT
BT EF AT EEMBAIE T2 - REEH D
B RNABEERAERTR - R BRKER
ERHEZHEER -
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PROPERTY IN PRC

Location Intended use
b HE A&
Kuiqgi Village, Industrial

Gushan Twon,

Jin"an District

Fuzhou City

Fujian Province

The PRC
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Gross
Site area floor area
T EE EEER
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(FFHK) (FFHK)
166,109.5 58,434.74
166,109.5 58,434.74
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